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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
þ ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE

ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008

or
o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from                      to                     

Commission file number: 000-53206

GRUBB & ELLIS HEALTHCARE REIT, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
(To be named Healthcare Trust of America, Inc.)

Maryland 20-4738467
(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer
Identification No.)
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None None
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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of
the Securities Act.

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or
Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes o     No þ

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for
such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to
such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes þ     No o

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§ 229.405 of this
chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant�s knowledge, in definitive proxy
or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this
Form 10-K. o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or
a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer�, �accelerated filer�, and �smaller reporting
company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated
filer

o Accelerated filer o

Non-accelerated filer þ (Do not check if a smaller reporting
company)

Smaller reporting
company

o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the
Act). Yes o     No þ

While there is no established market for the registrant�s common stock, the aggregate market value of the registrant�s
common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of June 30, 2008, the last business day of the registrant�s most
recently completed second fiscal quarter, was approximately $393,196,000, assuming a market value of $10.00 per
share which is the price per share in our current offering.

As of March 13, 2009, there were 91,264,688 shares of common stock of the registrant outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
None
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PART I

Item 1.  Business.

The use of the words �we,� �us� or �our� refers to Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. and its subsidiaries,
including Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Holdings, L.P., except where the context otherwise requires.

OUR COMPANY

Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc., a Maryland corporation, was incorporated on April 20, 2006. Upon or prior to
the completion of our transition to self-management, we intend to change our name to Healthcare Trust of America,
Inc. We were initially capitalized on April 28, 2006 and therefore we consider that our date of inception. We provide
stockholders the potential for income and growth through investment in a diversified portfolio of real estate properties,
focusing primarily on medical office buildings and healthcare related facilities. We may also invest in other real estate
related assets. We focus primarily on investments that produce recurring income. We have qualified and elected to be
taxed as a real estate investment trust, or REIT, under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code,
for federal income tax purposes and we intend to continue to be taxed as a REIT.

We are conducting a best efforts initial public offering, or our offering, in which we are offering up to
200,000,000 shares of our common stock for $10.00 per share and up to 21,052,632 shares of our common stock
pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan, or the DRIP, for $9.50 per share, aggregating up to $2,200,000,000.
We will sell shares in our offering until the earlier of September 20, 2009, or the date on which the maximum amount
has been sold. As of December 31, 2008, we had received and accepted subscriptions in our offering for
73,824,809 shares of our common stock, or $737,398,000, excluding shares of our common stock issued under the
DRIP.

We conduct substantially all of our operations through Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Holdings, L.P., to be named
Healthcare Trust of America Holdings, L.P., or our operating partnership. We are currently externally advised by
Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Advisor, LLC, or our advisor, pursuant to an advisory agreement, as amended and
restated on November 14, 2008 and effective as of October 24, 2008, or the Advisory Agreement, between us, our
advisor and Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, LLC, or Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, who is the managing member of
our advisor. Our advisor is affiliated with us in that we and our advisor have a common officer, who also owns an
indirect equity interest in our advisor. Our advisor engages affiliated entities, including Triple Net Properties Realty,
Inc., or Realty, and Grubb & Ellis Management Services, Inc. to provide various services to us, including property
management services.

The Advisory Agreement expires on September 20, 2009. Our main objectives in amending the Advisory Agreement
on November 14, 2008 were to reduce our acquisition and asset management fees and to set the framework for our
transition to self-management. Under the Advisory Agreement, as amended November 14, 2008, our advisor agreed to
use reasonable efforts to cooperate with us as we pursue a self-management program. Upon or prior to completion of
our transition to self-management and/or the termination of the Advisory Agreement we will no longer be advised by
our advisor or consider our company to be sponsored by Grubb & Ellis Company, or Grubb & Ellis.

The Advisory Agreement, as amended November 14, 2008, also provides that our advisor and Grubb & Ellis Realty
Investors agree to coordinate the timing, marketing and other activities for any new healthcare REIT sponsored by
Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors or its affiliates so as not to negatively impact our company. In addition, the equity
raising for any new healthcare REIT sponsored by Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors or its affiliates shall not begin until
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after the end of our offering, provided that, consistent with industry practice and standards and without there being
any negative impact on our equity raise, such new healthcare REIT may initiate a limited equity raise from a limited
broker dealer group, commencing August 1, 2009 or later, to satisfy the escrow requirements applicable to such new
healthcare REIT.
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At the commencement of our offering we had minimal assets and operations and we did not believe that it was
efficient at that time to engage our own internal management team. As of March 26, 2009, we had acquired 43
geographically diverse properties and other real estate related assets for a total purchase price of $1,000,520,000. As a
result of our growth and success, our board of directors believes that we now have the critical mass required to support
a self-management structure. Our board of directors believes that self-management will enable us to better position
our company for success in the future for several reasons discussed below:

Management Team.  We believe that our management team, led by Scott D. Peters, our Chief Executive Officer,
President and Chairman of the board of directors, has the experience and expertise to efficiently and effectively
operate our company. In addition, we have hired a Chief Accounting Officer, Kellie S. Pruitt. We have also hired three
other employees and have engaged two independent consultants to assist us with acquisitions, asset management and
accounting. We intend to continue to hire additional employees and engage independent consultants to expand our
self-management infrastructure, assist in our transition to a self-managed company and fulfill other responsibilities,
including acquisitions, accounting, asset management, strategic investing and corporate and securities compliance.
Mr. Peters is leading our transition to a self-management structure. Our internal management team, led by Mr. Peters,
will manage our day-to-day operations and oversee and supervise our employees and third party service providers,
who will be retained on an as-needed basis. All key personnel will report directly to Mr. Peters.

Governance.  An integral part of our self-management program is our experienced board of directors. Our board of
directors provides effective ongoing governance for our company and spends a substantial amount of time overseeing
our transition to self-management. Our governance and management framework is one of our key strengths.

Significantly Reduced Cost.  From inception through December 31, 2008, we incurred to our advisor and its affiliates
approximately $28,479,000 in acquisition fees; approximately $7,767,000 in asset management fees; approximately
$2,963,000 in property management fees; and approximately $1,513,000 in leasing fees. Although we will incur the
costs associated with having our own employees and independent consultants and we expect third party property
management expenses and third party acquisition expenses, including legal fees, due diligence fees and closing costs,
to remain approximately the same as under external management, we believe that the total cost of the
self-management program will be substantially less than the cost of external management. While our board of
directors, including a majority of our independent directors, previously determined that the fees to our advisor were
fair, competitive and commercially reasonable to us and on terms and conditions not less favorable to us than those
available from unaffiliated third parties, we now believe that by having our own employees and independent
consultants manage our operations and retain third party providers, we will significantly reduce the cost structure of
our company.

No Internalization Fees.  Unlike many other non-listed REITs that internalize or pay to acquire various management
functions and personnel, such as advisory and asset management services, from their sponsor or advisor prior to listing
on a national securities exchange for substantial fees, we will not be required to pay such fees under our
self-management program. We believe that by not paying such fees, as well as operating more cost-effectively under
our self-management program, we will save a substantial amount of money. To the extent that our management and
board of directors determine that utilizing third party service providers for certain services is more cost-effective than
conducting such services internally, we will pay for these services based on negotiated terms and conditions consistent
with the current marketplace for such services on an as-needed basis.

Funding of Self-Management.  We believe that the cost of the self-management program will be substantially less than
the cost of external management. Therefore, although we are incurring additional costs now related to our transition to
self-management, we expect the cost of the self-management program to be effectively funded by future cost savings.
Pursuant to the Advisory Agreement, as amended November 14, 2008, we have already reduced acquisition fees and
asset management fees payable to our advisor, which we believe will result in substantial cost savings. In addition, we
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savings in the future as a result of reduced and/or eliminated acquisition fees, asset management fees, internalization
fees and other outside fees.

Dedicated Management and Increased Accountability.  Under our self-management program, our officers and
employees will only work for our company and will not be associated with any outside advisor or other third party
service providers. Our management team, led by Mr. Peters, has direct oversight of employees, independent
consultants and third party service providers on an ongoing basis. We believe that these direct reporting relationships
along with our performance-based compensation programs and ongoing oversight by our management team create an
environment for and will achieve increased accountability and efficiency.

Conflicts of Interest.  We believe that self-management works to remove inherent conflicts of interest that necessarily
exist between an externally advised REIT and its advisor. The elimination or reduction of these inherent conflicts of
interest is one of the major reasons that we elected to proceed with the self-management program.

Prior to or upon the completion of our transition to self-management, we intend to change our name to �Healthcare
Trust of America, Inc.�

On December 7, 2007, NNN Realty Advisors, Inc., or NNN Realty Advisors, which previously served as our sponsor,
merged with and into a wholly owned subsidiary of Grubb & Ellis. The transaction was structured as a reverse merger
whereby stockholders of NNN Realty Advisors received shares of common stock of Grubb & Ellis in exchange for
their NNN Realty Advisors shares of common stock and, immediately following the merger, former NNN Realty
Advisor stockholders held approximately 59.5% of the common stock of Grubb & Ellis. As a result of the merger, we
consider Grubb & Ellis to be our sponsor. Following the merger, NNN Healthcare/Office REIT, Inc., NNN
Healthcare/Office REIT Holdings, L.P., NNN Healthcare/Office REIT Advisor, LLC, NNN Healthcare/Office
Management, LLC, Triple Net Properties, LLC and NNN Capital Corp. changed their names to Grubb & Ellis
Healthcare REIT, Inc., Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Holdings, L.P., Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Advisor, LLC,
Grubb & Ellis Healthcare Management, LLC, Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, LLC and Grubb & Ellis Securities, Inc.,
respectively.

Developments during 2008 and 2009

� On November 14, 2008, we amended and restated the Advisory Agreement, which reduced our acquisition and
asset management fees and set the framework for our transition to self-management. We also hired Mr. Peters,
who previously served as a non-employee executive officer, as our full-time employee pursuant to an
employment agreement. We began the transition to self-management immediately after the effective date of the
amendments to the Advisory Agreement. We have continued to implement our self-management program and
continue to rely on our advisor, our board of directors, Mr. Peters and our other employees and consultants to
manage our investments and operate our day-to-day activities.

� As of December 31, 2008, we owned 41 geographically diverse properties, 33 of which are medical office
buildings, five of which are healthcare related facilities, three of which are quality commercial office
properties, all of which comprise 5,156,000 square feet of gross leasable area, or GLA, and one real estate
related asset for an aggregate purchase price of $966,416,000, in 17 states.

� As of March 26, 2009, we have acquired a medical office condominium and a four-building medical office
property comprising 188,000 square feet of GLA for an aggregate purchase price of $34,104,000 in two states.

� As of March 13, 2009, we had received and accepted subscriptions in our offering for 89,030,880 shares of our
common stock, or $889,301,000, excluding shares of our common stock issued under the DRIP.
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� On March 13, 2009, Shannon K S Johnson resigned from her position as our Chief Financial Officer.
Ms. Johnson will continue to provide non-exclusive services to us in her role as a Financial Reporting Manager
of Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors.
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� On March 17, 2009, our board of directors appointed Kellie S. Pruitt, our Chief Accounting Officer and
principal accounting officer, to also serve as our principal financial officer.

Our Structure

The following is a summary of our and our advisor�s organizational structure as of December 31, 2008:

6
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The following chart shows our structure upon the completion of our transition to self-management:

* Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Advisor, LLC owns less than a 0.01% interest in us and in our operating
partnership.

Our principal executive offices are located at 1551 N. Tustin Avenue, Suite 300, Santa Ana, CA 92705 and the
telephone number is (714) 667-8252. In connection with our transition to self-management, we have established a new
corporate office which houses our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Accounting Officer. The address of our new
office is The Promenade, 16427 North Scottsdale Road, Suite 440, Scottsdale, AZ 85254 and our telephone number at
that address is (480) 998-3478. We anticipate that prior to or upon the completion of our transition to
self-management, our new office will serve as our principal executive office. Our sponsor maintains a web site at
www.gbe-reits.com/healthcare at which there is additional information about us and our affiliates. The contents of that
site are not incorporated by reference in, or otherwise a part of, this filing. We make our periodic and current reports
available at www.gbe-reits.com/healthcare as soon as reasonably practicable after such materials are electronically
filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC. They are also available for printing by
any stockholder upon request. We anticipate that prior to or upon our transition to self-management, we will establish
a new website.

CURRENT INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Our investment objectives are:

� to acquire quality properties that generate sustainable growth in cash flows from operations to pay regular cash
distributions;

� to preserve, protect and return our stockholders� capital contributions;

� to realize growth in the value of our investments upon our ultimate sale of such investments; and

� to be prudent, patient and deliberate, taking into account current real estate markets.

Each property we acquire is carefully and diligently reviewed and analyzed to make sure it is consistent with our short
and long-term investment objectives. Our goal is to at all times maintain a strong balance sheet
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and always have sufficient funds to deal with short and long-term operating needs. Macro-economic disruptions have
broadly impacted the economy and have caused an imbalance between buyers and sellers of real estate assets,
including medical office buildings and other healthcare related real estate assets. We anticipated that these tough
economic conditions would create opportunities for our company to acquire such assets at higher capitalization rates,
as the real estate market adjusted downward. In the fourth quarter of 2008, we opted not to proceed with certain deals
which we determined merited re-pricing. We renegotiated other deals to lower pricing points. We had cash on hand of
over $128,000,000 as of December 31, 2008, which we intend to use to acquire assets that are priced at levels
consistent with today�s economy. We believe that during this turbulent economic cycle, our cash on hand will provide
our company with opportunities to acquire medical office buildings and other healthcare related real estate assets at
favorable pricing.

We cannot assure our stockholders that we will attain these objectives or that our capital will not decrease. Our board
of directors may change our investment objectives if it determines it is advisable and in the best interests of our
stockholders.

Decisions relating to the purchase or sale of investments will be made by our advisor and management, subject to the
oversight by our board of directors. See Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance for a
description of the background and experience of our directors and officers as well as the officers of our advisor.

Business Strategies

We seek to invest in a diversified portfolio of real estate, focusing primarily on investments that produce recurring
income. Our real estate investments focus on medical office buildings and healthcare related facilities. We have also
invested to a limited extent in quality commercial office buildings and other real estate related assets. However, we do
not presently intend to invest more than 15.0% of our total assets in other real estate related assets. Our other real
estate related assets will generally focus on common and preferred stock of public or private real estate companies and
certain other securities. We seek to maximize long-term stockholder value by generating sustainable growth in cash
flow and portfolio value. In order to achieve these objectives, we may invest using a number of investment structures
which may include direct acquisitions, joint ventures, leveraged investments, issuing securities for property and direct
and indirect investments in real estate. In order to maintain our exemption from regulation as an investment company
under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or the Investment Company Act, we may be required to
limit our investments in other real estate related assets.

In addition, when and as determined appropriate by our advisor and management, the portfolio may also include
properties in various stages of development other than those producing recurring income. These stages would include,
without limitation, unimproved land, both with and without entitlements and permits, property to be redeveloped and
repositioned, newly constructed properties and properties in lease-up or other stabilization, all of which will have
limited or no relevant operating histories and no recurring income. Our advisor and management team will make this
determination based upon a variety of factors, including the available risk adjusted returns for such properties when
compared with other available properties, the appropriate diversification of the portfolio, and our objectives of
realizing both recurring income and capital appreciation upon the ultimate sale of properties.

For each of our investments, regardless of property type, our advisor and management team seek to ensure that we
invest in properties with the following attributes:

� Quality.  We seek to acquire properties that are suitable for their intended use with a quality of construction
that is capable of sustaining the property�s investment potential for the long-term, assuming funding of
budgeted maintenance, repairs and capital improvements.
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� Location.  We seek to acquire properties that are located in established or otherwise appropriate markets for
comparable properties, with access and visibility suitable to meet the needs of its occupants.
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� Market; and Supply and Demand.  We focus on local or regional markets which have potential for stable and
growing property level cash flow over the long-term. These determinations will be based in part on an
evaluation of local economic, demographic and regulatory factors affecting the property. For instance, we will
favor markets that indicate a growing population and employment base or markets that exhibit potential
limitations on additions to supply, such as barriers to new construction. Barriers to new construction include
lack of available land and stringent zoning restrictions. In addition, we will generally seek to limit our
investments in areas that have limited potential for growth, except where we believe that we have a competitive
advantage.

� Predictable Capital Needs.  We seek to acquire properties where the future expected capital needs can be
reasonably projected in a manner that would allow us to meet our objectives of growth in cash flow and
preservation of capital and stability.

� Cash Flow.  We seek to acquire properties where the current and projected cash flow, including the potential
for appreciation in value, would allow us to meet our overall investment objectives. We will evaluate cash flow
as well as expected growth and the potential for appreciation.

We will not invest more than 10.0% of the offering proceeds available for investment in unimproved or non-income
producing properties or in other investments relating to unimproved or non-income producing property. A property:
(1) not acquired for the purpose of producing rental or other operating income; or (2) with no development or
construction in process or planned in good faith to commence within one year, will be considered unimproved or
non-income producing property for purposes of this limitation.

We are not limited as to the geographic area where we may acquire properties. We are not specifically limited in the
number or size of properties we may acquire or on the percentage of our assets that we may invest in a single property
or investment. The number and mix of properties we acquire will depend upon real estate and market conditions and
other circumstances existing at the time we are acquiring our properties and making our investments and the amount
of proceeds we raise in our offering and potential future offerings.

Acquisition Strategies

Real Property Investments

We seek to invest in a diversified portfolio of properties, focusing primarily on properties that produce recurring
income. We generally seek investments in medical office buildings and healthcare related facilities. We have also
invested to a limited extent in quality commercial office properties.

We generally seek to acquire properties of the types described above that will best enable us to meet our investment
objectives, taking into account the diversification of our portfolio at the time, relevant real estate and financial factors,
the location, income-producing capacity and the prospects for long-range appreciation of a particular property and
other considerations. As a result, we may acquire properties other than the types described above. In addition, we may
acquire properties that vary from the parameters described above for a particular property type.

The consideration to be paid for each real estate investment must be authorized by a majority of our directors or a duly
authorized committee of our board of directors, which is ordinarily based on the fair market value of the investment. If
the majority of our independent directors or a duly authorized committee of our board of directors so determines, or if
the investment is to be acquired from an affiliate, the fair market value determination will be supported by an
appraisal obtained from a qualified, independent appraiser selected by a majority of our independent directors.
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Our investments in real estate generally include our holding fee simple title or long-term leasehold interests. Our
investments may be made either directly through our operating partnership or indirectly through investments in joint
ventures, limited liability companies, general partnerships or other co-ownership arrangements with the developers of
the properties, affiliates of our advisor or other persons. See �Joint Venture Investments� below.
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In addition, we may purchase properties and lease them back to the sellers of such properties. We will use our best
efforts to structure any such sale-leaseback transaction such that the lease will be characterized as a �true lease� and so
that we will be treated as the owner of the property for federal income tax purposes. However, no assurance can be
given that the Internal Revenue Service, or the IRS, will not challenge such characterization. In the event that any
such sale-leaseback transaction is re-characterized as a financing transaction for federal income tax purposes,
deductions for depreciation and cost recovery relating to such property would be disallowed or significantly reduced.

Our obligation to close a transaction involving the purchase of a real property asset is generally conditioned upon the
delivery and verification of certain documents from the seller or developer, including, where appropriate:

� plans and specifications;

� environmental reports (generally a minimum of a Phase I investigation);

� building condition reports;

� surveys;

� evidence of marketable title subject to such liens and encumbrances as are acceptable to our advisor;

� when required to be filed with the SEC and delivered to stockholders, audited financial statements covering
recent operations of real properties having operating histories;

� title insurance policies; and

� liability insurance policies.

In determining whether to purchase a particular property, we may, in circumstances in which our advisor and
management deem it appropriate, obtain an option on such property, including land suitable for development. The
amount paid for an option, if any, is normally surrendered if the property is not purchased, and is normally credited
against the purchase price if the property is purchased. We may also enter into arrangements with the seller or
developer of a property whereby the seller or developer agrees that if, during a stated period, the property does not
generate a specified cash flow, the seller or developer will pay to us in cash a sum necessary to reach the specified
cash flow level, subject in some cases to negotiated dollar limitations.

We will not purchase or lease properties in which our sponsor, our advisor, our directors or any of their affiliates have
an interest without a determination by a majority of our disinterested directors and a majority of our disinterested
independent directors that such transaction is fair and reasonable to us and at a price to us no greater than the cost of
the property to the affiliated seller or lessor, unless there is substantial justification for the excess amount and the
excess amount is reasonable. In no event will we acquire any such property at an amount in excess of its current
appraised value as determined by an independent expert selected by our disinterested independent directors.

We intend to obtain adequate insurance coverage for all properties in which we invest. However, there are types of
losses, generally catastrophic in nature, for which we do not intend to obtain insurance unless we are required to do so
by mortgage lenders. See �Risk Factors � Risks Related to Investments in Real Estate � Uninsured losses relating to real
estate and lender requirements to obtain insurance may reduce stockholders� returns.�

Joint Venture Investments
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We have entered and may continue to enter into joint ventures, general partnerships and other arrangements with one
or more entities or individuals, including real estate developers, operators, owners, investors and others, some of
whom may be affiliates of our advisor, for the purpose of acquiring real estate. Such joint ventures may be leveraged
with debt financing or unleveraged. We may enter into joint ventures to further diversify our investments or to access
investments which meet our investment criteria that would
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otherwise be unavailable to us. In determining whether to invest in a particular joint venture, we will evaluate the real
estate that such joint venture will own or is being formed to own under the same criteria used in the selection of our
other properties. However, we will not participate in tenant-in-common syndications or transactions.

Joint ventures with unaffiliated third parties may be structured such that the investment made by us and the
co-venturer are on substantially different terms and conditions. For example, while we and a co-venturer may invest
an equal amount of capital in an investment, the investment may be structured such that we have a right to priority
distributions of cash flow up to a certain target return while the co-venturer may receive a disproportionately greater
share of cash flow than we are to receive once such target return has been achieved. This type of investment structure
may result in the co-venturer receiving more of the cash flow, including appreciation, of an investment than we would
receive. See �Risk Factors � Risks Associated with Joint Ventures � We may structure our joint venture relationships in a
manner which may limit the amount we participate in the cash flow or appreciation of an investment.�

We may only enter into joint ventures with other programs sponsored by Grubb & Ellis, or Grubb Ellis programs, or
affiliates of our advisor or any of our directors for the acquisition of properties if:

� a majority of our directors, including a majority of the independent directors, approve the transaction as being
fair and reasonable to us; and

� the investment by us and such affiliate are on substantially the same terms and conditions that are no less
favorable than those that would be available to unaffiliated third parties.

Our entering into joint ventures with our advisor or any of its affiliates will result in certain conflicts of interest.

Investments in Other Real Estate Related Assets

We may invest in the following types of other real estate related assets: (1) equity securities such as the common
stock, preferred stock and convertible preferred securities of public or private real estate companies (including other
REITs, real estate operating companies and other real estate companies); (2) debt securities such as commercial
mortgages, mortgage loan participations and debt securities issued by other real estate companies; and (3) certain
other types of securities that may help us reach our diversification and other investment objectives. These other
securities may include, but are not limited to, mezzanine loans, bridge loans, and certain non-United States, or U.S.,
dollar denominated securities.

We have substantial discretion with respect to the selection of specific securities investments. Our charter provides
that we may not invest in equity securities unless a majority of the directors (including a majority of the independent
directors) not otherwise interested in the transaction approve such investment as being fair, competitive and
commercially reasonable. Consistent with such requirements, in determining the types of real estate related assets to
make, we will adhere to a board-approved asset allocation framework consisting primarily of components such as:
(1) target mix of securities across a range of risk/reward characteristics, (2) exposure limits to individual securities and
(3) exposure limits to securities subclasses (such as common equities and mortgage debt). Within this framework, we
will evaluate specific criteria for each prospective investment in real estate related assets including:

� the position of the overall portfolio to achieve an optimal mix of real property and real estate related assets;

� diversification benefits relative to the rest of the securities assets within our portfolio;

� fundamental securities analysis;
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� quality and sustainability of underlying property cash flows;

� broad assessment of macro economic data and regional property level supply and demand dynamics;

� potential for delivering high recurring income and attractive risk-adjusted total returns; and
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� additional factors considered important to meeting our investment objectives.

We are not specifically limited in the number or size of our investments in other real estate related assets, or on the
percentage of the net proceeds from our offering that we may invest in a single real estate related asset or pool of real
estate related assets. However, we do not presently intend to invest more than 15.0% of our total assets in other real
estate related assets. The specific number and mix of real estate related assets in which we invest will depend upon
real estate market conditions, other circumstances existing at the time we are investing in our real estate related assets
and the amount of proceeds we raise in our offering. We will not invest in securities of other issuers for the purpose of
exercising control and the first or second mortgages in which we intend to invest will likely not be insured by the
Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the Veterans Administration or otherwise guaranteed or insured.

Operating Strategies

Our primary operating strategy is to acquire suitable properties that meet our acquisition standards and to enhance the
performance and value of those properties through management strategies designed to address the needs of current and
prospective tenants. Our management strategies include:

� aggressively leasing available space through targeted marketing augmented, where possible, by our advisor and
its affiliates� local asset and property management offices or third party property management companies;

� controlling operating expenses through the centralization of asset and property management, leasing,
marketing, financing, accounting, renovation and data processing activities;

� emphasizing regular maintenance and periodic renovation to meet the needs of tenants and to maximize
long-term returns; and

� financing acquisitions and refinancing properties when favorable terms are available to increase cash flow.

Disposition Strategies

We intend to hold each property or other real estate related asset we acquire for an extended period. However,
circumstances might arise which could result in a shortened holding period for certain investments. In general, the
holding period for real estate related assets is expected to be shorter than the holding period for real property assets.
An investment in a property or security may be sold before the end of the expected holding period if:

� diversification benefits exist associated with disposing of the investment and rebalancing our investment
portfolio;

� an opportunity arises to pursue a more attractive investment;

� in the judgment of our advisor and management team, the value of the investment might decline;

� with respect to properties, a major tenant involuntarily liquidates or is in default under its lease;

� the investment was acquired as part of a portfolio acquisition and does not meet our general acquisition criteria;

� an opportunity exists to enhance overall investment returns by raising capital through sale of the investment; or
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� in the judgment of our advisor and management team, the sale of the investment is in our best interests.

The determination of whether a particular property or other real estate related asset should be sold or otherwise
disposed of will be made after consideration of relevant factors, including prevailing economic conditions, with a
view towards maximizing our investment objectives. We cannot assure our stockholders that this objective will be
realized. The sales price of a property which is net leased will be determined in large
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part by the amount of rent payable under the lease(s) for such property. If a tenant has a repurchase option at a formula
price, we may be limited in realizing any appreciation. In connection with our sales of properties we may lend the
purchaser all or a portion of the purchase price. In these instances, our taxable income may exceed the cash received in
the sale. The terms of payment will be affected by custom in the area in which the investment being sold is located
and the then-prevailing economic conditions.

FINANCING POLICIES

We intend to use secured and unsecured debt as a means of providing additional funds for the acquisition of properties
and other real estate related assets. Our ability to enhance our investment returns and to increase our diversification by
acquiring assets using additional funds provided through borrowing could be adversely effected if banks and other
lending institutions reduce the amount of funds available for the types of loans we seek. When interest rates are high
or financing is otherwise unavailable on a timely basis, we may purchase certain assets for cash with the intention of
obtaining debt financing at a later time.

We anticipate that aggregate borrowings, both secured and unsecured, will not exceed 60.0% of all of our properties�
and other real estate related assets� combined fair market values, as determined at the end of each calendar year
beginning with our first full year of operations. For these purposes, the fair market value of each asset will be equal to
the purchase price paid for the asset or, if the asset was appraised subsequent to the date of purchase, then the fair
market value will be equal to the value reported in the most recent independent appraisal of the asset. Our policies do
not limit the amount we may borrow with respect to any individual investment. As of December 31, 2008, our
aggregate borrowings were 47.9% of all of our properties� and other real estate related assets� combined fair market
values.

Our board of directors reviews our secured and unsecured aggregate borrowings at least quarterly to ensure that such
borrowings are reasonable in relation to our net assets. Our borrowing policies provide that the maximum amount of
such borrowings in relation to our net assets will not exceed 300.0%, unless any excess in such borrowing is approved
by a majority of our directors and is disclosed in our next quarterly report along with the justification for such excess.
For the purposes of this determination, net assets are our total assets, other than intangibles, calculated at cost before
deducting depreciation, amortization, bad debt and other similar non-cash reserves, less total liabilities and computed
at least quarterly on a consistently-applied basis. Generally, the preceding calculation is expected to approximate
75.0% of the sum of the aggregate cost of our real estate and real estate related assets before depreciation,
amortization, bad debt and other similar non-cash reserves. As of March 27, 2009 and December 31, 2008, our
leverage did not exceed 300.0% of the value of our net assets.

By operating on a leveraged basis, we will have more funds available for our investments. This generally allows us to
make more investments than would otherwise be possible, potentially resulting in enhanced investment returns and a
more diversified portfolio. However, our use of leverage increases the risk of default on loan payments and the
resulting foreclosure of a particular asset. In addition, lenders may have recourse to assets other than those specifically
securing the repayment of the indebtedness.

Our advisor has used its best efforts to obtain financing on the most favorable terms available to us and we will
refinance assets during the term of a loan only in limited circumstances, such as when a decline in interest rates makes
it beneficial to prepay an existing loan, when an existing loan matures or if an attractive investment becomes available
and the proceeds from the refinancing can be used to purchase such investment. The benefits of the refinancing may
include an increased cash flow resulting from reduced debt service requirements, an increase in distributions from
proceeds of the refinancing, and an increase in diversification of assets owned if all or a portion of the refinancing
proceeds are reinvested.
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Our charter restricts us from borrowing money from any of our directors or from our advisor or its affiliates unless
such loan is approved by a majority of our directors (including a majority of the independent directors) not otherwise
interested in the transaction, as fair, competitive and commercially reasonable and no less favorable to us than
comparable loans between unaffiliated parties.

13

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 24



Table of Contents

BOARD REVIEW OF OUR INVESTMENT POLICIES

Our board of directors has established written policies on investments and borrowing. Our board is responsible for
monitoring the administrative procedures, investment operations and performance of our company and our advisor to
ensure such policies are carried out. Our charter requires that our independent directors review our investment policies
at least annually to determine that our policies are in the best interest of our stockholders. Each determination and the
basis thereof is required to be set forth in the minutes of our applicable meetings of our directors. Implementation of
our investment policies also may vary as new investment techniques are developed. Our investment policies may not
be altered by our board of directors without the approval of our stockholders.

As required by our charter, our independent directors have reviewed our policies outlined above and determined that
they are in the best interest of our stockholders because: (1) they increase the likelihood that we will be able to acquire
a diversified portfolio of income producing properties, thereby reducing risk in our portfolio; (2) there are sufficient
property acquisition opportunities with the attributes that we seek; (3) our executive officers, directors and affiliates of
our advisor have expertise with the type of real estate investments we seek; and (4) our borrowings have enabled us to
purchase assets and earn rental income more quickly, thereby increasing our likelihood of generating income for our
stockholders and preserving stockholder capital.

TAX STATUS

We have qualified and elected to be taxed as a REIT beginning with our taxable year ended December 31, 2007 under
Sections 856 through 860 of the Code for federal income tax purposes and we intend to continue to be taxed as a
REIT. To continue to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, we must meet certain organizational and
operational requirements, including a requirement to pay distributions to our stockholders of at least 90.0% of our
annual taxable income (computed without regard to the dividends paid deduction and excluding net capital gains). As
a REIT, we generally are not subject to federal income tax on net income that we distribute to our stockholders.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we will then be subject to federal income taxes on our taxable
income and will not be permitted to qualify for treatment as a REIT for federal income tax purposes for four years
following the year during which qualification is lost unless the Internal Revenue Services, or the IRS, grants us relief
under certain statutory provisions. Such an event could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and
net cash available for distribution to stockholders.

DISTRIBUTION POLICY

In order to continue to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, among other things, we must distribute at
least 90.0% of our annual taxable income to our stockholders. The amount of distributions we pay to our stockholders
is determined by our board of directors and is dependent on a number of factors, including funds available for the
payment of distributions, our financial condition, capital expenditure requirements and annual distribution
requirements needed to maintain our status as a REIT under the Code. If our investments produce sufficient cash flow,
we expect to pay distributions to our stockholders on a monthly basis. However, our board of directors could, at any
time, elect to pay distributions quarterly to reduce administrative costs. Because our cash available for distribution in
any year may be less than 90.0% of our taxable income for the year, we may obtain the necessary funds by borrowing,
issuing new securities or selling assets to pay out enough of our taxable income to satisfy the distribution requirement.

See Item 5. Market for Registrant�s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities � Distributions, for a further discussion on distribution rates approved by our board of directors.
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COMPETITION

We compete with many other real estate investment entities, including financial institutions, institutional pension
funds, real estate developers, other REITs, other public and private real estate companies and private real estate
investors for the acquisition of medical office buildings, healthcare related facilities and quality commercial office
properties. During the acquisitions process, we compete with others who have a comparative advantage in terms of
size, capitalization, depth of experience, local knowledge of the marketplace, and extended contacts throughout the
region. Any combination of these factors may result in an increased purchase price for real properties or other real
estate related assets which may reduce the number of opportunities available that meet our investment criteria. If the
number of opportunities that meet our investment criteria are limited, our ability to increase stockholder value may be
adversely impacted.

We face competition in leasing available medical office buildings, healthcare related facilities and quality commercial
office properties to prospective tenants. As a result, we may have to provide rent concessions, incur charges for tenant
improvements, offer other inducements, or we may be unable to timely lease vacant space, all of which may have an
adverse impact on our results of operations. At the time we elect to dispose of our properties, we will also be in
competition with sellers of similar properties to locate suitable purchasers.

Conflicts of interest will exist to the extent that we are advised by our advisor and we acquire properties in the same
geographic areas where other Grubb & Ellis programs own the same type of properties. In such a case, a conflict could
arise in the leasing of our properties in the event that we and another program managed by Grubb & Ellis or its
affiliates were to compete for the same tenants in negotiating leases, or a conflict could arise in connection with the
resale of our properties in the event that we and another program managed by Grubb & Ellis or its affiliates were to
attempt to sell similar properties at the same time.

In addition, our advisor will seek to reduce conflicts that may arise with respect to properties available for sale or rent
by making prospective purchasers or tenants aware of all such properties. However, these conflicts cannot be fully
avoided in that our advisor may establish differing compensation arrangements for employees at different properties
or differing terms for resales or leasing of the various properties.

GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS

Many laws and governmental regulations are applicable to our properties and changes in these laws and regulations,
or their interpretation by agencies and the courts, occur frequently.

Costs of Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  Under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as
amended, or the ADA, all places of public accommodation are required to comply with federal requirements related to
access and use by disabled persons. Although we believe that we are in substantial compliance with present
requirements of the ADA, none of our properties have been audited and we have only conducted investigations of a
few of our properties to determine compliance. We may incur additional costs in connection with compliance with the
ADA. Additional federal, state and local laws also may require modifications to our properties or restrict our ability to
renovate our properties. We cannot predict the cost of compliance with the ADA or other legislation. We may incur
substantial costs to comply with the ADA or any other legislation.

Costs of Government Environmental Regulation and Private Litigation.  Environmental laws and regulations hold us
liable for the costs of removal or remediation of certain hazardous or toxic substances which may be on our properties.
These laws could impose liability without regard to whether we are responsible for the presence or release of the
hazardous materials. Government investigations and remediation actions may have substantial costs and the presence
of hazardous substances on a property could result in personal injury or similar claims by private plaintiffs. Various
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laws also impose liability on persons who arrange for the disposal or treatment of hazardous or toxic substances and
such person often must incur the cost of removal or remediation of hazardous substances at the disposal or treatment
facility. These laws often impose liability whether or not the person arranging for the disposal ever owned or operated
the disposal facility. As the owner and operator of our properties, we may be deemed to have arranged for the disposal
or treatment of hazardous or toxic substances.
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Use of Hazardous Substances by Some of Our Tenants.  Some of our tenants routinely handle hazardous substances
and wastes on our properties as part of their routine operations. Environmental laws and regulations subject these
tenants, and potentially us, to liability resulting from such activities. We require our tenants, in their leases, to comply
with these environmental laws and regulations and to indemnify us for any related liabilities. We are unaware of any
material noncompliance, liability or claim relating to hazardous or toxic substances or petroleum products in
connection with any of our properties.

Other Federal, State and Local Regulations.  Our properties are subject to various federal, state and local regulatory
requirements, such as state and local fire and life safety requirements. If we fail to comply with these various
requirements, we may incur governmental fines or private damage awards. While we believe that our properties are
currently in material compliance with all of these regulatory requirements, we do not know whether existing
requirements will change or whether future requirements will require us to make significant unanticipated
expenditures that will adversely affect our ability to make distributions to our stockholders. We believe, based in part
on engineering reports which are generally obtained at the time we acquire the properties, that all of our properties
comply in all material respects with current regulations. However, if we were required to make significant
expenditures under applicable regulations, our financial condition, results of operations, cash flow and ability to
satisfy our debt service obligations and to pay distributions could be adversely affected.

SIGNIFICANT TENANTS

As of December 31, 2008, none of our tenants at our consolidated properties accounted for 10.0% or more of our
aggregate annual rental revenue.

GEOGRAPHIC CONCENTRATION

As of December 31, 2008, we had interests in seven consolidated properties located in Texas, which accounted for
17.1% of our total rental income and interests in five consolidated properties located in Indiana, which accounted for
15.5% of our total rental income. As of December 31, 2008, Medical Portfolio 3, located in Indiana, accounted for
11.3% of our aggregate total rental income. This rental income is based on contractual base rent from leases in effect
as of December 31, 2008. Accordingly, there is a geographic concentration of risk subject to fluctuations in each state�s
economy.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2008, we had one employee, Scott D. Peters, our Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chairman of the board of directors. Mr. Peters manages our day-to-day operations and oversees our transition to
self-management.

Since December 31, 2008, we have hired four additional employees, including a Chief Accounting Officer. In
connection with our transition to self-management, we intend to hire additional employees and independent
consultants to serve in key organizational positions and to fulfill other responsibilities, including accounting, strategic
investing and corporate and securities compliance.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT INDUSTRY SEGMENTS

The Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards,
SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, which establishes standards for
reporting financial and descriptive information about an enterprise�s reportable segments. We have determined that we
have one reportable segment, with activities related to investing in medical office buildings, healthcare related
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real estate related assets are geographically diversified and management evaluates operating performance on an
individual portfolio level. However, as each of our assets has similar economic characteristics, tenants, and products
and services, our assets have been aggregated into
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one reportable segment for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date
of Inception) through December 31, 2006.

Item 1A.  Risk Factors.

Investment Risks

There is currently no public market for shares of our common stock. Therefore, it will be difficult for our
stockholders to sell their shares and, if our stockholders are able to sell their shares, our stockholders will likely sell
them at a substantial discount.

There currently is no public market for shares of our common stock. We do not expect a public market for our stock to
develop prior to the listing of our shares on a national securities exchange, which we do not expect to occur in the near
future and which may not occur at all. Additionally, our charter contains restrictions on the ownership and transfer of
our shares, and these restrictions may inhibit our stockholders� ability to sell their shares. We have adopted a share
repurchase plan, but it is limited in terms of the amount of shares that may be repurchased annually. Our board of
directors may also limit, suspend, terminate or amend our share repurchase plan upon 30 days written notice.
Therefore, it will be difficult for our stockholders to sell their shares promptly or at all. If our stockholders are able to
sell their shares, our stockholders may only be able to sell them at a substantial discount from the price our
stockholders paid. This may be the result, in part, of the fact that, at the time we make our investments, the amount of
funds available for investment will be reduced by up to 11.5% of the gross offering proceeds, which will be used to
pay selling commissions, the marketing support fee, due diligence expense reimbursements and organizational and
offering expenses. We will also be required to use gross offering proceeds to pay acquisition fees, acquisition
expenses and asset management fees. Unless our aggregate investments increase in value to compensate for these up
front fees and expenses, which may not occur, it is unlikely that our stockholders will be able to sell their shares,
whether pursuant to our share repurchase plan or otherwise, without incurring a substantial loss. We cannot assure our
stockholders that their shares will ever appreciate in value to equal the price they paid for our shares. Thus,
stockholders should consider their purchase of shares of our common stock as illiquid and a long-term investment, and
be prepared to hold their shares for an indefinite length of time.

As of March 26, 2009, we have acquired 43 geographically diverse properties and other real estate related assets
and have identified a limited number of additional properties to acquire with the net proceeds we will receive from
the future equity raise, and stockholders are therefore unable to evaluate the economic merits of most of our future
investments prior to purchasing shares of our common stock.

As of March 26, 2009, we have acquired 43 geographically diverse properties and other real estate related assets with
the net proceeds from our offering. As of March 26, 2009, we have only identified a limited number of additional
potential properties to acquire with the net proceeds we will receive from our offering. Other than these 43
geographically diverse properties and other real estate related assets, our stockholders are unable to evaluate the
manner in which the net proceeds are invested and the economic merits of our future investments prior to purchasing
shares of our common stock. Additionally, our stockholders do not have the opportunity to evaluate the transaction
terms or other financial or operational data concerning other investment properties or other real estate related assets.

If we are unable to find suitable investments, we may not be able to achieve our investment objectives.

Our stockholders must rely on management and our advisor to evaluate our investment opportunities, and
management and our advisor may not be able to achieve our investment objectives or may make unwise decisions or
our advisor may make decisions that are not in our best interest because of conflicts of interest. Further, we cannot
assure our stockholders that acquisitions of real estate or other real estate related assets made using the proceeds of our
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We face competition for the acquisition of medical office buildings and other healthcare related facilities, which
may impede our ability to make future acquisitions or may increase the cost of these acquisitions.

We compete with many other entities engaged in real estate investment activities for acquisitions of medical office
buildings and healthcare related facilities, including national, regional and local operators, acquirers and developers of
healthcare real estate properties. The competition for healthcare real estate properties may significantly increase the
price we must pay for medical office buildings and healthcare related facilities or other assets we seek to acquire and
our competitors may succeed in acquiring those properties or assets themselves. In addition, our potential acquisition
targets may find our competitors to be more attractive because they may have greater resources, may be willing to pay
more for the properties or may have a more compatible operating philosophy. In particular, larger healthcare real
estate REITs may enjoy significant competitive advantages that result from, among other things, a lower cost of
capital and enhanced operating efficiencies. In addition, the number of entities and the amount of funds competing for
suitable investment properties may increase. This competition will result in increased demand for these assets and
therefore increased prices paid for them. Because of an increased interest in single-property acquisitions among
tax-motivated individual purchasers, we may pay higher prices if we purchase single properties in comparison with
portfolio acquisitions. If we pay higher prices for medical office buildings and healthcare related facilities, our
business, financial condition and results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our stockholders may be
materially and adversely affected.

Our stockholders may be unable to sell their shares because their ability to have their shares repurchased pursuant
to our share repurchase plan is subject to significant restrictions and limitations.

Even though our share repurchase plan may provide our stockholders with a limited opportunity to sell their shares to
us after they have held them for a period of one year or in the event of death or disability, our stockholders should be
fully aware that our share repurchase plan contains significant restrictions and limitations. Further, our board of
directors may limit, suspend, terminate or amend any provision of the share repurchase plan upon 30 days written
notice. Repurchase of shares, when requested, will generally be made quarterly. Repurchases will be limited to:
(1) those that could be funded from the net proceeds from the sale of shares of our common stock under the DRIP in
the prior 12 months, and (2) 5.0% of the weighted average number of shares of our common stock outstanding during
the prior calendar year. In addition, our stockholders must present at least 25.0% of their shares of our common stock
for repurchase, and until you have held your shares of our common stock for at least four years, repurchases will be
made for less than they paid for their shares of our common stock. Therefore, in making a decision to purchase shares
of our common stock, our stockholders should not assume that they will be able to sell any of their shares of our
common stock back to us pursuant to our share repurchase plan at any particular time or at all.

We are conducting a �best efforts� offering and if we are unable to continue to raise proceeds in this offering, we
will be limited in the number and type of investments we may make, which will result in a less diversified portfolio.

Our offering is being made on a �best efforts� basis, whereby Grubb & Ellis Securities, Inc., or Grubb & Ellis Securities,
or our dealer manager, and the broker-dealers participating in our offering are only required to use their best efforts to
sell our shares of our common stock and have no firm commitment or obligation to purchase any of our shares of our
common stock. As a result, if we are unable to continue to raise proceeds under our offering, we will have limited
diversification in terms of the number of investments owned, the geographic regions in which our investments are
located and the types of investments that we make. Our stockholders� investment in our shares of our common stock
will be subject to greater risk to the extent that we lack a diversified portfolio of investments. In such event, the
likelihood of our profitability being affected by the poor performance of any single investment will increase.

Our offering is a fixed price offering and the fixed offering price may not accurately represent the current value of
our assets at any particular time. Therefore, the purchase price our stockholders paid for
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shares of our common stock may be higher than the value of our assets per share of our common stock at the time
of their purchase.

Our offering is a fixed price offering, which means that our offering price for shares of our common stock is fixed and
will not vary based on the underlying value of our assets at any time. Our board of directors arbitrarily determined our
offering price in its sole discretion. The fixed offering price for shares of our common stock has not been based on
appraisals for any assets we may own nor do we intend to obtain such appraisals. Therefore, the fixed offering price
established for shares of our common stock may not accurately represent the current value of our assets per share of
our common stock at any particular time and may be higher or lower than the actual value of our assets per share at
such time.

Payments to our advisor related to its subordinated participation interest in our operating partnership will reduce
cash available for distribution to stockholders.

Our advisor holds a subordinated participation interest in our operating partnership, pursuant to which it may be
entitled to receive a distribution upon the occurrence of certain events, including in connection with dispositions of
our assets, the termination or non-renewal of the Advisory Agreement other than for cause, certain mergers of our
company with another company or the listing of our common stock on a national securities exchange. The distribution
payable to our advisor will equal or approximate 15.0% of the net proceeds from the sales of our properties only after
we have made distributions to our stockholders of the total amount raised from our stockholders (less amounts paid to
repurchase shares of our common stock through our share repurchase plan) plus an annual 8.0% cumulative,
non-compounded return on average invested capital. Any distributions to our advisor by our operating partnership
upon dispositions of our assets and such other events will reduce cash available for distribution to our stockholders.

We presently intend to effect a liquidity event by September 20, 2013; however, there can be no assurance that we
will effect a liquidity event by such time or at all. If we do not effect a liquidity event, it will be very difficult for our
stockholders to have liquidity for their investment in shares of our common stock.

On a limited basis, our stockholders may be able to sell their shares of our common stock through our share
repurchase plan. However, in the future we may also consider various forms of liquidity events, including but not
limited to: (1) the listing of shares of our common stock on a national securities exchange; (2) our sale or merger in a
transaction that provides our stockholders with a combination of cash and/or exchange securities of a publicly traded
company; and (3) the sale of all or substantially all of our real property for cash or other consideration. We presently
intend to effect a liquidity event by September 20, 2013. However, we cannot assure our stockholders that we will
effect a liquidity event within such time or at all. If we do not effect a liquidity event, it will be very difficult for our
stockholders to have liquidity for their investment in shares of our common stock other than limited liquidity through
our share repurchase plan.

Because a portion of the offering price from the sale of shares of our common stock will be used to pay expenses and
fees, the full offering price paid by our stockholders will not be invested in real estate investments. As a result, our
stockholders will only receive a full return of their invested capital if we either: (1) sell our assets or our company for
a sufficient amount in excess of the original purchase price of our assets, or (2) the market value of our company after
we list shares of our common stock on a national securities exchange is substantially in excess of the original purchase
price of our assets.

Our property investments are geographically concentrated in certain states and subject to economic fluctuations in
those states.
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For the year ended December 31, 2008, we had interests in seven consolidated properties located in Texas, which
accounted for 17.1% of our total rental income and interests in five consolidated properties located in Indiana, which
accounted for 15.5% of our total rental income. As of December 31, 2008, Medical Portfolio 3, located in Indiana,
accounted for 11.3% of our aggregate total rental income. This rental income is based on contractual base rent from
leases in effect as of December 31, 2008. Accordingly, there is a geographic concentration of risk subject to
fluctuations in each state�s economy.
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Risks Related to Our Business

We have limited operating history and we cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully achieve our
investment objectives; and the prior performance of other Grubb & Ellis Group programs may not be an accurate
predictor of our future results.

We have limited operating history and we may not be able to achieve our investment objectives. We were formed in
April 2006, commenced our offering on September 20, 2006, and as of December 31, 2008, we have 41
geographically diverse properties and one other real estate related assets. As a result, an investment in shares of our
common stock may entail more risks than the shares of common stock of a REIT with a more substantial operating
history. In addition, past performance of other Grubb & Ellis Group programs should not be relied upon to predict our
future results.

Current dislocations in the credit markets and real estate markets could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations, financial condition and ability to pay distributions to our stockholders.

Domestic and international financial markets currently are experiencing significant dislocations which have been
brought about in large part by failures in the U.S. banking system. These dislocations have severely impacted the
availability of credit and have contributed to rising costs associated with obtaining credit. If debt financing is not
available on terms and conditions we find acceptable, we may not be able to obtain financing for investments. If this
dislocation in the credit markets persists, our ability to borrow monies to finance the purchase of, or other activities
related to, properties and other real estate related assets will be negatively impacted. If we are unable to borrow
monies on terms and conditions that we find acceptable, we likely will have to reduce the number of properties we can
purchase, and the return on the properties we do purchase may be lower. In addition, we may find it difficult, costly or
impossible to refinance indebtedness which is maturing. If interest rates are higher when the properties are refinanced,
we may not be able to finance the properties and our income could be reduced. In addition, if we pay fees to lock-in a
favorable interest rate, falling interest rates or other factors could require us to forfeit these fees. All of these events
would have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and ability to pay distributions.

In addition to volatility in the credit markets, the real estate market is subject to fluctuation and can be impacted by
factors such as general economic conditions, supply and demand, availability of financing and interest rates. To the
extent we purchase real estate in an unstable market, we are subject to the risk that if the real estate market ceases to
attract the same level of capital investment in the future that it attracts at the time of our purchases, or the number of
companies seeking to acquire properties decreases, the value of our investments may not appreciate or may decrease
significantly below the amount we pay for these investments.

Finally, the pervasive and fundamental disruptions that the global financial markets are currently undergoing have led
to extensive and unprecedented governmental intervention. Although the government intervention is intended to
stimulate the flow of capital and to undergird the U.S. economy in the short term, it is impossible to predict the actual
effect of the government intervention and what effect, if any, additional interim or permanent governmental
intervention may have on the financial markets and/or the effect of such intervention on us and our results of
operations. In addition, there is a high likelihood that regulation of the financial markets will be significantly increased
in the future, which could have a material impact on our operating results and financial condition.

We may suffer from delays in locating suitable investments, which could reduce our ability to make distributions to
our stockholders and reduce their return on their investment.

As of March 26, 2009, we have acquired 43 geographically diverse properties and other real estate related assets and
have identified a limited number of additional properties to acquire. There may be a substantial period of time before

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 37



the proceeds of our offering are invested in suitable investments, particularly as a result of current economic
environment and capital constraints. Because we are conducting our offering on a best efforts basis over time, our
ability to commit to purchase specific assets will also depend, in part, on the amount of proceeds we have received at a
given time. If we are delayed or unable to find additional suitable
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investments, we may not be able to achieve our investment objectives or make distributions to our stockholders.

The availability and timing of cash distributions to our stockholders is uncertain.

We expect to make monthly distributions to our stockholders. However, we bear all expenses incurred in our
operations, which are deducted from cash funds generated by operations prior to computing the amount of cash
distributions to our stockholders. In addition, our board of directors, in its discretion, may retain any portion of such
funds for working capital. We cannot assure our stockholders that sufficient cash will be available to make
distributions to them or that the amount of distributions will increase over time. Should we fail for any reason to
distribute at least 90.0% of our REIT taxable income, we would not qualify for the favorable tax treatment accorded to
REITs.

We may not have sufficient cash available from operations to pay distributions, and, therefore, distributions may
include a return of capital.

Distributions payable to our stockholders may include a return of capital, rather than a return on capital. We expect to
make monthly distributions to our stockholders. The actual amount and timing of distributions will be determined by
our board of directors in its discretion and typically will depend on the amount of funds available for distribution,
which will depend on items such as current and projected cash requirements and tax considerations. Our distribution
policy is set by our board of directors and is subject to change based on available cash flows. As a result, our
distribution rate and payment frequency may vary from time to time. During the early stages of our operations, we
may not have sufficient cash available from operations to pay distributions. Therefore, we may need to use proceeds
from this offering or borrowed funds to make cash distributions in order to maintain our status as a REIT, which may
reduce the amount of proceeds available for investment and operations or cause us to incur additional interest expense
as a result of borrowed funds. Further, if the aggregate amount of cash distributed in any given year exceeds the
amount of our REIT taxable income generated during the year, the excess amount will be deemed a return of capital.

We may not have sufficient cash available from operations to pay distributions, and, therefore, distributions may be
paid with offering proceeds or borrowed funds.

The amount of the distributions to our stockholders is determined by our board of directors and is dependent on a
number of factors, including funds available for payment of distributions, our financial condition, capital expenditure
requirements and annual distribution requirements needed to maintain our status as a REIT. On February 14, 2007,
our board of directors approved a 7.25% per annum distribution to be paid to stockholders beginning with our
February 2007 monthly distribution which was paid in March 2007.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, we paid distributions of $28,042,000 ($14,943,000 in cash and $13,099,000 in
shares of our common stock pursuant to the DRIP), as compared to cash flows from operations of $20,677,000. The
distributions paid in excess of our cash flows from operations were paid using proceeds from our offering. As of
December 31, 2008, we had an amount payable of $1,043,000 to our advisor and its affiliates for operating expenses,
on-site personnel and engineering payroll, lease commissions and asset and property management fees, which will be
paid from cash flows from operations in the future as they become due and payable by us in the ordinary course of
business consistent with our past practice.

As of December 31, 2008, no amounts due to our advisor or its affiliates have been deferred or forgiven. Our advisor
and its affiliates have no obligations to defer or forgive amounts due to them. In the future, if our advisor or its
affiliates do not defer or forgive amounts due to them and our cash flows from operations is less than the distributions
to be paid, we would be required to pay our distributions, or a portion thereof, with proceeds from our offering or
borrowed funds. As a result, the amount of proceeds available for investment and operations would be reduced, or we
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may incur additional interest expense as a result of borrowed funds.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, our funds from operations, or FFO, was $8,745,000. We paid distributions of
$28,042,000, of which $8,745,000 was paid from FFO and the remainder from proceeds from
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our offering. For more information about FFO, see Part II, Item 5. Market for Registrant�s Common Equity, Related
Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities � Distributions.

We are uncertain of our sources of debt or equity for funding our future capital needs. If we cannot obtain funding
on acceptable terms, our ability to make necessary capital improvements to our properties may be impaired or
delayed.

The gross proceeds of our offering will be used to buy a diversified portfolio of real estate and other real estate related
assets and to pay various fees and expenses. In addition, to continue to qualify as a REIT, we generally must distribute
to our stockholders at least 90.0% of our taxable income each year, excluding capital gains. Because of this
distribution requirement, it is not likely that we will be able to fund a significant portion of our future capital needs
from retained earnings. We have not identified any sources of debt or equity for future funding, and such sources of
funding may not be available to us on favorable terms or at all. If we do not have access to sufficient funding in the
future, we may not be able to make necessary capital improvements to our properties, pay other expenses or expand
our business.

We may structure acquisitions of property in exchange for limited partnership units in our operating partnership
on terms that could limit our liquidity or our flexibility.

We may acquire properties by issuing limited partnership units in our operating partnership in exchange for a property
owner contributing property to the partnership. If we enter into such transactions, in order to induce the contributors of
such properties to accept units in our operating partnership, rather than cash, in exchange for their properties, it may
be necessary for us to provide them additional incentives. For instance, our operating partnership�s limited partnership
agreement provides that any holder of units may exchange limited partnership units on a one-for-one basis for shares
of our common stock, or, at our option, cash equal to the value of an equivalent number of our shares of our common
stock. We may, however, enter into additional contractual arrangements with contributors of property under which we
would agree to repurchase a contributor�s units for shares of our common stock or cash, at the option of the
contributor, at set times. If the contributor required us to repurchase units for cash pursuant to such a provision, it
would limit our liquidity and thus our ability to use cash to make other investments, satisfy other obligations or to
make distributions to our stockholders. Moreover, if we were required to repurchase units for cash at a time when we
did not have sufficient cash to fund the repurchase, we might be required to sell one or more properties to raise funds
to satisfy this obligation. Furthermore, we might agree that if distributions the contributor received as a limited partner
in our operating partnership did not provide the contributor with a defined return, then upon redemption of the
contributor�s units we would pay the contributor an additional amount necessary to achieve that return. Such a
provision could further negatively impact our liquidity and flexibility. Finally, in order to allow a contributor of a
property to defer taxable gain on the contribution of property to our operating partnership, we might agree not to sell a
contributed property for a defined period of time or until the contributor exchanged the contributor�s units for cash or
shares of our common stock. Such an agreement would prevent us from selling those properties, even if market
conditions made such a sale favorable to us.

Until the termination or expiration of our Advisory Agreement, our success is dependent in part on the
performance of our advisor, which is a subsidiary of our sponsor.

Until the termination or expiration of our Advisory Agreement our ability to achieve our investment objectives and to
pay distributions is dependent in part on the performance of our advisor, which is a subsidiary of our sponsor, in
identifying and advising on the acquisition of investments, the determination of any financing arrangements, the asset
management of our investments and operation of our day-to-day activities. Our stockholders have no opportunity to
evaluate the terms of transactions or other economic or financial data concerning our investments that are not
described in our offering prospectus or other periodic filings made with the SEC. We rely in part on the management

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 41



ability of our advisor, subject to the oversight of our Chief Executive Officer and our board of directors. If our advisor
suffers or is distracted by adverse financial or operational problems in connection with its operations or the operations
of our sponsor unrelated to us, our advisor may be unable to allocate time and/or resources to our operations. If our
advisor is unable
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to allocate sufficient resources to oversee and perform our operations for any reason, we may be unable to achieve our
investment objectives or to pay distributions to our stockholders.

In March 2009, Grubb & Ellis reported that due to the disruptions in the credit markets, the severe and extended
general economic recession, and the significant decline in the commercial real estate market in 2008, it anticipates that
it will report a significant decline in operating earnings and net income for the fourth quarter of 2008 as compared to
the fourth quarter of 2007 and for the year ended December 31, 2008 as compared to the year ended December 31,
2007. In addition, Grubb & Ellis anticipates that it will recognize significant impairment charges to goodwill,
impairments on the value of real estate assets held as investments, and additional charges related to its activities as a
sponsor of investment programs in the quarter ended December 31, 2008. Grubb & Ellis has also reported that it is
restating certain of its previously issued financial statements. To the extent that any of the foregoing or any other
matters related to our sponsor impact the performance of our advisor, our results of operations, financial condition and
ability to pay distributions to our stockholders could also suffer.

After the termination or expiration of our Advisory Agreement and upon the completion of our transition to a
self-management program, we will not be able to rely on our advisor to manage our operations, which could
adversely impact our ability to achieve our investment objectives and pay distributions to our stockholders.

We are currently transitioning to a self-management program, which means that when our Advisory Agreement
expires on September 20, 2009 or is terminated, we do not intend to renew such agreement with our advisor or engage
a successor advisor; provided the parties may mutually agree to specified service arrangements. As we continue to
implement our self-management program, our advisor will have a more limited role in managing our business and
operations. After the termination or expiration of the Advisory Agreement, we will not be able to rely on our advisor
to provide services to us, including asset management services, property management services and investor relations
services. In addition, the Advisory Agreement provides that after termination or expiration, upon the request of our
advisor, we cannot use the name �Grubb & Ellis.� Upon the completion of our transition to self-management, we intend
to change our name to �Healthcare Trust of America, Inc.� We will rely on our board of directors, Mr. Peters and our
management team, as well as third party service providers, to identify and acquire future investments for us, determine
any financing arrangements, manage our investments and operate our day-to-day activities. If we are not successful in
hiring additional employees, engaging independent consultants or finding third parties to manage our operations, our
ability to achieve our investment objectives and pay distributions to our stockholders could suffer.

As we transition to self-management, our success is increasingly dependent on the performance of our board of
directors and our Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President.

As we transition to self-management, our ability to achieve our investment objectives and to pay distributions is
increasingly dependent upon the performance of our board of directors, Scott D. Peters, our Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and President, and our employees, in the identification and acquisition of investments, the
determination of any financing arrangements, the asset management of our investments and operation of our
day-to-day activities. Our stockholders will have no opportunity to evaluate the terms of transactions or other
economic or financial data concerning our investments that are not described in this Annual Report on Form 10-K or
other periodic filings with the SEC. We rely primarily on the management ability of our Chief Executive Officer and
the governance of our board of directors. We do not have any key man life insurance on Mr. Peters. We have entered
into an employment agreement for a term beginning November 1, 2008 to November 1, 2010 with Mr. Peters, but the
employment agreement contains various termination rights. If we were to lose the benefit of his experience, efforts
and abilities, our operating results could suffer. In addition, if any member of our board of directors were to resign, we
would lose the benefit of such director�s governance and experience. As a result of the foregoing, we may be unable to
achieve our investment objectives or to pay distributions to our stockholders.
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We are transitioning to be a self-managed company and we may not be successful in hiring additional employees
and/or third party service providers, which could impact our ability to achieve our investment objectives.

We currently have a full-time Chief Executive Officer and President, Scott D. Peters, and a Chief Accounting Officer,
Kellie S. Pruitt, and other personnel. We intend to engage additional employees and independent consultants. We may
also outsource certain services, including property management, to third parties. As we continue to implement our
self-management program, we will rely less on our advisor and will increasingly rely on our board of directors,
Mr. Peters and our other employees and consultants to manage our investments and operate our day-to-day activities.
If we are unsuccessful in hiring additional employees or engaging consultants and other third parties to provide
services to us, or if our employees and consultants and the additional employees that we hire or consultants and third
parties we engage do not perform at the level we expect, our ability to achieve our investment objectives and pay
distributions to our stockholders could suffer.

Our success may be hampered by the current slow down in the real estate industry.

Our business is sensitive to trends in the general economy, as well as the commercial real estate and credit markets.
The current macroeconomic environment and accompanying credit crisis has negatively impacted the value of
commercial real estate assets, contributing to a general slow down in our industry, which we anticipate will continue
through 2009. A prolonged and pronounced recession could continue or accelerate the reduction in overall transaction
volume and size of sales and leasing activities that we have already experienced, and would continue to put downward
pressure on our revenues and operating results. To the extent that any decline in our revenues and operating results
impacts our performance, our results of operations, financial condition and ability to pay distributions to our
stockholders could also suffer.

Our results of operations, our ability to pay distributions to our stockholders and our ability to dispose of our
investments are subject to international, national and local economic factors we cannot control or predict.

Our results of operations are subject to the risks of an international or national economic slow down or downturn and
other changes in international, national and local economic conditions. The following factors may affect income from
our properties, our ability to acquire and dispose of properties, and yields from our properties:

� poor economic times may result in defaults by tenants of our properties due to bankruptcy, lack of liquidity, or
operational failures. We may also be required to provide rent concessions or reduced rental rates to maintain or
increase occupancy levels;

� reduced values of our properties may limit our ability to dispose of assets at attractive prices or to obtain debt
financing secured by our properties and may reduce the availability of unsecured loans;

� the value and liquidity of our short-term investments and cash deposits could be reduced as a result of a
deterioration of the financial condition of the institutions that hold our cash deposits or the institutions or assets
in which we have made short-term investments, the dislocation of the markets for our short-term investments,
increased volatility in market rates for such investment or other factors;

� one or more lenders under our lines of credit could refuse to fund their financing commitment to us or could
fail and we may not be able to replace the financing commitment of any such lenders on favorable terms, or at
all;

� one or more counterparties to our interest rate swaps could default on their obligations to us or could fail,
increasing the risk that we may not realize the benefits of these instruments;
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� constricted access to credit may result in tenant defaults or non-renewals under leases;
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� job transfers and layoffs may cause vacancies to increase and a lack of future population and job growth may
make it difficult to maintain or increase occupancy levels; and

� increased insurance premiums, real estate taxes or energy or other expenses may reduce funds available for
distribution or, to the extent such increases are passed through to tenants, may lead to tenant defaults. Also, any
such increased expenses may make it difficult to increase rents to tenants on turnover, which may limit our
ability to increase our returns.

The length and severity of any economic slow down or downturn cannot be predicted. Our results of operations, our
ability to pay distributions to our stockholders and our ability to dispose of our investments may be negatively
impacted to the extent an economic slowdown or downturn is prolonged or becomes more severe.

The failure of any bank in which we deposit our funds could reduce the amount of cash we have available to pay
distributions and make additional investments.

Through 2009, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or FDIC, will only insure amounts up to $250,000 per
depositor per insured bank and after 2009, the FDIC will only insure up to $100,000 per depositor per bank; the FDIC
will insure amounts held in certain transaction-based, non-interest bearing accounts. We currently have cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash deposited in certain financial institutions in excess of federally-insured levels. If any of
the banking institutions in which we have deposited funds ultimately fail, we may lose any amount of our deposits
over any federally-insured amounts. The loss of our deposits could reduce the amount of cash we have available to
distribute or invest and could result in a decline in the value of our stockholders� investment.

Our advisor and its affiliates have no obligation to defer or forgive fees or loans or advance any funds to us, which
could reduce our ability to make investments or pay distributions.

In the past, our sponsor, or its affiliates have, in certain circumstances, deferred or forgiven fees and loans payable by
programs sponsored or managed by our sponsor. Our advisor and its affiliates, including our sponsor, have no
obligation to defer or forgive fees owed by us to our advisor or its affiliates or to advance any funds to us. As a result,
we may have less cash available to make investments or pay distributions.

Risks Related to Conflicts of Interest

We are subject to conflicts of interest arising out of relationships among us, our officers, our advisor and its affiliates,
including the material conflicts discussed below. The Conflicts of Interest section of our offering prospectus provides
a more detailed discussion of these conflicts of interest.

We will compete with our sponsor�s other programs for investment opportunities. As a result, our advisor may not
cause us to invest in favorable investment opportunities, which may reduce our returns on our investments.

Our sponsor, Grubb & Ellis, or its affiliates have sponsored existing programs with investment objectives and
strategies similar to ours, and may sponsor other similar programs in the future. As a result, we may be buying
properties at the same time as one or more of the other Grubb & Ellis Group programs managed or advised by
affiliates of our advisor. Officers and employees of our advisor may face conflicts of interest in allocating investment
opportunities between us and these other programs. For instance, our advisor may select properties for us that provide
lower returns to us than properties that its affiliates select to be purchased by another Grubb & Ellis Group program.
We cannot be sure that officers and employees acting for or on behalf of our advisor and on behalf of managers of
other Grubb & Ellis Group programs will act in our best interests when deciding whether to allocate any particular
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entities or programs managed by its affiliates, our advisor may not cause us to invest in favorable investment
opportunities that our advisor locates when it would be in our best interest to make such investments. As a result, we
may invest in less favorable investments, which may reduce our returns on our investments and ability to pay
distributions.
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Our sponsor has recently sponsored a REIT focused on acquiring medical office buildings and other healthcare
related facilities; such REIT�s offering could negatively impact our current offering as well as any future
offerings we may conduct; we share the same dealer manager and several of the same officers with such REIT,
which may create conflicts of interest; in addition, we may compete with such REIT with respect to acquiring
additional properties.

Our sponsor, Grubb & Ellis, is also the sponsor of Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT II, Inc., or REIT II. REIT II intends
to acquire medical office buildings and other healthcare related facilities, as well as other real estate related
investments using the proceeds from its proposed initial public offering.

REIT II�s offering could negatively impact our current offering as well as any future equity offerings we may conduct
if investors decide to purchase shares of the common stock of REIT II rather than our shares of common stock. In
addition, the dealer manager for our offering will also serve as the dealer manager for the offering of REIT II, which
may adversely affect the services provided by our dealer manager to our company. It may also create conflicts of
interest with respect to our dealer manager�s relationships with broker-dealers participating in our current offering.
After the termination or expiration of our Dealer Manager Agreement, we will not be able to rely on our current dealer
manager to provide services to us, including management of any future equity offerings we may conduct. Any future
dealer manager we may engage may be unable to secure relationships with key participating broker-dealers, including
broker-dealers participating in our current offering, thus negatively impacting our ability to raise additional capital.
Further, any future dealer manager we engage will compete with the dealer manager for REIT II for participating
broker-dealer relationships.

Some of our officers and some of the officers of our advisor are also officers of REIT II or the advisor for REIT II.
Danny Prosky, our Executive Vice President � Acquisitions, is serving as the President and Chief Operating Officer of
REIT II and as the President and Chief Operating Officer of the advisor to REIT II. Andrea R. Biller, our Executive
Vice President and Secretary, is serving as the Executive Vice President and Secretary of REIT II and as the Executive
Vice President of the advisor to REIT II. Jeffrey T. Hanson, the President of our advisor, is serving as the Chief
Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of REIT II and as the Chief Executive Officer of the advisor of REIT II.
These individuals have legal and fiduciary obligations to REIT II which are similar to and may conflict with those
they owe to us and our stockholders. In addition, these individuals may have conflicts of interest in allocating their
time and resources between our business and the business of REIT II. Also, our advisor and the advisor of REIT II are
affiliated entities and share many key personnel and employees. If such individuals, for any reason, are not able to
provide sufficient resources to manage our business, our business will suffer and this may adversely affect our results
of operations and the value of our stockholders� investments.

Finally, over time, REIT II may compete with us with respect to acquiring the real properties and other real estate
related assets we intend to acquire. As a result, the price we pay for such properties and assets may increase.

The conflicts of interest faced by our officers may cause us not to be managed solely in the best interests of our
stockholders, which may adversely affect our results of operations and the value of their investment.

Some of our officers are also officers or employees of our advisor, Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, which manages
our advisor, our sponsor and other affiliated entities which will receive fees in connection with our offering and
operations. Andrea R. Biller is our Executive Vice President and Secretary and also serves as the Executive Vice
President of our advisor, the General Counsel and Executive Vice President of Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, the
General Counsel, Executive Vice President and Secretary of our sponsor and the General Counsel, Executive Vice
President, Secretary and a Director of NNN Realty Advisors and the Secretary of Grubb & Ellis Securities. Ms. Biller
owns less than 1.0% of our sponsor�s outstanding common stock and owns a de minimis interest in several of our
sponsor�s other programs. Danny Prosky is our Executive Vice President � Acquisitions and also serves as the
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interest in other programs of our sponsor, and 3,000 shares of our common stock. In addition, each of Ms. Biller and
Mr. Prosky holds options to purchase a de minimis amount of our sponsor�s outstanding common stock. As of
December 31, 2008, Ms. Biller own 18.0% membership interests in Grubb & Ellis Healthcare Management, LLC,
which owns 25.0% of the membership interest of our advisor.

Some of the other programs of our sponsor in which our officers have invested and to which they provide services,
have investment objectives similar to our investment objectives. These individuals have legal and fiduciary
obligations to these entities which are similar to those they owe to us and our stockholders. As a result, they may have
conflicts of interest in allocating their time and resources between our business and these other activities. During times
of intense activity in other programs, the time they devote to our business may decline and be less than we require. If
our officers, for any reason, are not able to provide sufficient resources to manage our business, our business will
suffer and this may adversely affect our results of operations and the value of our stockholders� investments.

If we enter into joint ventures with affiliates, we may face conflicts of interest or disagreements with our joint
venture partners that will not be resolved as quickly or on terms as advantageous to us as would be the case if the
joint venture had been negotiated at arm�s length with an independent joint venture partner.

In the event that we enter into a joint venture with any other program sponsored or advised by our sponsor or one of
its affiliates, we may face certain additional risks and potential conflicts of interest. For example, securities issued by
the other programs sponsored by Grubb & Ellis may never have an active trading market. Therefore, if we were to
become listed on a national securities exchange, we may no longer have similar goals and objectives with respect to
the resale of properties in the future. Joint ventures between us and other Grubb & Ellis programs will not have the
benefit of arm�s-length negotiation of the type normally conducted between unrelated co-venturers. Under these joint
venture agreements, none of the co-venturers may have the power to control the venture, and an impasse could occur
regarding matters pertaining to the joint venture, including the timing of a liquidation, which might have a negative
impact on the joint venture and decrease returns to our stockholders.

Our advisor will face conflicts of interest relating to its compensation structure, which could result in actions that
are not necessarily in the long-term best interests of our stockholders.

Under the Advisory Agreement and pursuant to the subordinated participation interest our advisor holds in our
operating partnership, our advisor is entitled to fees and distributions that are structured in a manner intended to
provide incentives to our advisor to perform in our best interest and in the best interest of our stockholders. The fees
our advisor is entitled to include acquisition fees, asset management fees, property management fees and disposition
fees. The distributions our advisor may become entitled to receive would be payable upon distribution of net sales
proceeds to our stockholders, the listing of our shares of our common stock, the termination of the Advisory
Agreement, other than for cause, and if our advisor elects to defer payment upon termination, certain other
transactions. However, because our advisor does not maintain a significant equity interest in us and is entitled to
receive substantial minimum compensation regardless of our performance, our advisor�s interests are not wholly
aligned with those of our stockholders. In that regard, our advisor or its affiliates receives an asset management fee
with respect to the ongoing operation and management of properties based on the amount of our initial investment and
not the performance of those investments, which could result in our advisor not having adequate incentive to manage
our portfolio to provide profitable operations during the period we hold our investments. On the other hand, our
advisor could be motivated to recommend riskier or more speculative investments in order to increase the fees payable
to our advisor or for us to generate the specified levels of performance or net sales proceeds that would entitle our
advisor to fees or distributions.
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The distribution payable to our advisor may influence our decisions about listing our shares of our common stock
on a national securities exchange, merging our company with another company and acquisition or disposition of
our investments.

Our advisor�s entitlement to fees upon the sale of our assets and to participate in net sales proceeds could result in our
advisor recommending sales of our investments at the earliest possible time at which sales of investments would
produce the level of return to our stockholders which would entitle our advisor to compensation relating to such sales,
even if continued ownership of those investments might be in the best long-term interest of our stockholders. The
subordinated participation interest may require our operating partnership to make a distribution to our advisor upon
the listing of our shares of our common stock on a national securities exchange or the merger of our company with
another company in which our stockholders receive shares of our common stock that are traded on a national
securities exchange, if our advisor meets the performance thresholds for stockholder returns included in our operating
partnership�s limited partnership agreement even if our advisor is no longer serving as our advisor. To avoid making
this distribution, our independent directors may decide against listing our shares of our common stock or merging with
another company even if, but for the requirement to make this distribution, such listing or merger would be in the best
interest of our stockholders. In addition, the requirement to make this distribution could cause our independent
directors to make different investment or disposition decisions than they would otherwise make in order to satisfy our
obligation to the advisor.

We have and may continue to acquire assets from, or dispose of assets to, affiliates of our advisor, which could
result in us entering into transactions on less favorable terms than we would receive from a third party or that
negatively affect the public�s perception of us.

We have and may continue to acquire assets from affiliates of our advisor. Further, we may also dispose of assets to
affiliates of our advisor. Affiliates of our advisor may make substantial profits in connection with such transactions
and may owe fiduciary and/or other duties to the selling or purchasing entity in these transactions, and conflicts of
interest between us and the selling or purchasing entities could exist in such transactions. Because our independent
directors would rely on our advisor in identifying and evaluating any such transaction, these conflicts could result in
transactions based on terms that are less favorable to us than we would receive from a third party. Also, the existence
of conflicts, regardless of how they are resolved, might negatively affect the public�s perception of us.

Except for the current modification to our Advisory Agreement, the fees we pay our advisor under the Advisory
Agreement and the distributions payable to our advisor under our operating partnership agreement were not
determined on an arm�s-length basis and therefore may not be on the same terms as those we could negotiate with
an unrelated party.

Our independent directors relied on information and recommendations provided by our advisor to determine the fees
and distributions payable to our advisor and its affiliates under the Advisory Agreement and pursuant to the
subordinated participation interest in our operating partnership. As a result, except for the modifications made to the
Advisory Agreement and operating partnership agreement on November 14, 2008, these fees and distributions cannot
be viewed as having been determined on an arm�s-length basis and we cannot assure our stockholders that an
unaffiliated party would not be willing and able to provide to us the same services at a lower price.

Risks Associated with Our Organizational Structure

We may issue preferred stock or other classes of common stock, which issuance could adversely affect the holders
of our common stock issued pursuant to our offering.
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Our stockholders do not have preemptive rights to any shares of our common stock issued by us in the future. We may
issue, without stockholder approval, preferred stock or other classes of common stock with rights that could dilute the
value of our stockholder shares of our common stock. Our charter authorizes us to issue 1,200,000,000 shares of
capital stock, of which 1,000,000,000 shares of capital stock are designated as
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common stock and 200,000,000 shares of capital stock are designated as preferred stock. Our board of directors may
amend our charter to increase the aggregate number of authorized shares of capital stock or the number of authorized
shares of capital stock of any class or series without stockholder approval. If we ever created and issued preferred
stock with a distribution preference over our common stock, payment of any distribution preferences of outstanding
preferred stock would reduce the amount of funds available for the payment of distributions on our common stock.
Further, holders of preferred stock are normally entitled to receive a preference payment in the event we liquidate,
dissolve or wind up before any payment is made to our common stockholders, likely reducing the amount our
common stockholders would otherwise receive upon such an occurrence. In addition, under certain circumstances, the
issuance of preferred stock or a separate class or series of common stock may render more difficult or tend to
discourage:

� a merger, tender offer or proxy contest;

� assumption of control by a holder of large block of our securities; or

� removal of incumbent management.

Our stockholders� ability to control our operations is severely limited.

Our board of directors determines our major strategies, including our strategies regarding investments, financing,
growth, debt capitalization, REIT qualification and distributions. Our board of directors may amend or revise these
and other strategies without a vote of the stockholders. Our charter sets forth the stockholder voting rights required to
be set forth therein under the Statement of Policy Regarding Real Estate Investment Trusts adopted by the North
American Securities Administrators Association, or the NASAA Guidelines. Under our charter and Maryland law,
stockholders will have a right to vote only on the following matters:

� the election or removal of directors;

� any amendment of our charter, except that our board of directors may amend our charter without stockholder
approval to change our name or the name of other designation or the par value of any class or series of our
stock and the aggregate par value of our stock, increase or decrease the aggregate number of our shares of
stock, increase or decrease the number of our shares of any class or series that we have the authority to issue, or
effect certain reverse stock splits;

� our dissolution; and

� certain mergers, consolidations and sales or other dispositions of all or substantially all of our assets.

All other matters are subject to the discretion of our board of directors.

The limit on the percentage of shares of our common stock that any person may own may discourage a takeover or
business combination that may have benefited our stockholders.

Our charter restricts the direct or indirect ownership by one person or entity to no more than 9.8% of the value of our
then outstanding capital stock (which includes common stock and any preferred stock we may issue) and no more than
9.8% of the value or number of shares, whichever is more restrictive, of our then outstanding common stock. This
restriction may discourage a change of control of us and may deter individuals or entities from making tender offers
for shares of our common stock on terms that might be financially attractive to stockholders or which may cause a
change in our management. This ownership restriction may also prohibit business combinations that would have
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otherwise been approved by our board of directors and our stockholders. In addition to deterring potential transactions
that may be favorable to our stockholders, these provisions may also decrease their ability to sell their shares of our
common stock.

Our board of directors may change our investment objectives without seeking stockholder approval.

Our board of directors may change our investment objectives without seeking stockholder approval. Although our
board of directors has fiduciary duties to our stockholders and intends only to change our investment objectives when
our board of directors determines that a change is in the best interests of our
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stockholders, a change in our investment objectives could reduce our payment of cash distributions to our
stockholders or cause a decline in the value of our investments.

Maryland law and our organizational documents limit our stockholders� rights to bring claims against our officers
and directors.

Maryland law provides that a director will not have any liability as a director so long as he or she performs his or her
duties in good faith, in a manner he or she reasonably believes to be in our best interest, and with the care that an
ordinarily prudent person in a like position would use under similar circumstances. In addition, our charter provides
that, subject to the applicable limitations set forth therein or under Maryland law, no director or officer will be liable
to us or our stockholders for monetary damages. Our charter also provides that we will generally indemnify our
directors, our officers, our advisor and its affiliates for losses they may incur by reason of their service in those
capacities unless: (1) their act or omission was material to the matter giving rise to the proceeding and was committed
in bad faith or was the result of active and deliberate dishonesty, (2) they actually received an improper personal
benefit in money, property or services, or (3) in the case of any criminal proceeding, they had reasonable cause to
believe the act or omission was unlawful. Moreover, we have entered into separate indemnification agreements with
each of our directors and some of our executive officers. As a result, we and our stockholders may have more limited
rights against these persons than might otherwise exist under common law. In addition, we may be obligated to fund
the defense costs incurred by these persons in some cases. However, our charter does provide that we may not
indemnify our directors, our advisor and its affiliates for loss or liability suffered by them or hold them harmless for
loss or liability suffered by us unless they have determined that: (1) the course of conduct that caused the loss or
liability was in our best interests, (2) they were acting on our behalf or performing services for us, (3) the loss or
liability was not the result of negligence or misconduct by our non-independent directors, our advisor or its affiliates
or gross negligence or willful misconduct by our independent directors and (4) the indemnification or agreement to
hold harmless is recoverable only out of our net assets or the proceeds of insurance and not from our stockholders.

Certain provisions of Maryland law could restrict a change in control even if a change in control were in our
stockholders� interests.

Certain provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Law applicable to us prohibit business combinations with:

� any person who beneficially owns 10.0% or more of the voting power of our outstanding voting stock, which
we refer to as an interested stockholder;

� an affiliate or associate of ours who, at any time within the two-year period prior to the date in question, owns
10.0% or more of the voting power of our then outstanding stock, which we also refer to as interested
stockholder; or

� an affiliate of an interested stockholder.

These prohibitions last for five years after the most recent date on which the interested stockholder became an
interested stockholder. Thereafter, any business combination with the interested stockholder must be recommended by
our board of directors and approved by the affirmative vote of at least 80.0% of the votes entitled to be cast by holders
of our outstanding shares of our voting stock and two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast by holders of shares of our
voting stock other than shares held by the interested stockholder or by an affiliate or associate of the interested
stockholder. These requirements could have the effect of inhibiting a change in control even if a change in control
were in our stockholders� interest. These provisions of Maryland law do not apply, however, to business combinations
that are approved or exempted by our board of directors prior to the time that someone becomes an interested
stockholder.
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Our stockholders� investment return may be reduced if we are required to register as an investment company
under the Investment Company Act.

We are not registered as an investment company under the Investment Company Act. If for any reason, we were
required to register as an investment company, we would have to comply with a variety of substantive requirements
under the Investment Company Act imposing, among other things:

� limitations on capital structure;

� restrictions on specified investments;

� prohibitions on transactions with affiliates; and

� compliance with reporting, record keeping, voting, proxy disclosure and other rules and regulations that would
significantly change our operations.

We intend to continue to operate in such a manner that we will not be subject to regulation under the Investment
Company Act. In order to maintain our exemption from regulation under the Investment Company Act, we must
comply with technical and complex rules and regulations.

Specifically, so that we will not be subject to regulation as an investment company under the Investment Company
Act, we intend to engage primarily in the business of investing in interests in real estate and to make these investments
within one year after our offering ends. If we are unable to invest a significant portion of the proceeds of our offering
in properties within one year of the termination of our offering, we may avoid being required to register as an
investment company under the Investment Company Act by temporarily investing any unused proceeds in
government securities with low returns. Investments in government securities likely would reduce the cash available
for distribution to stockholders and possibly lower their returns.

In order to avoid coming within the application of the Investment Company Act, either as a company engaged
primarily in investing in interests in real estate or under another exemption from the Investment Company Act, we
may be required to limit our investment activities. In particular, we may limit the percentage of our assets that fall into
certain categories specified in the Investment Company Act, which could result in us holding assets we otherwise
might desire to sell and selling assets we otherwise might wish to retain. In addition, we may have to acquire
additional assets that we might not otherwise have acquired or be forced to forgo investment opportunities that we
would otherwise want to acquire and that could be important to our investment strategy. In particular, we will monitor
our investments in other real estate related assets to ensure continued compliance with one or more exemptions from
investment company status under the Investment Company Act and, depending on the particular characteristics of
those investments and our overall portfolio, we may be required to limit the percentage of our assets represented by
other real estate related assets.

If we were required to register as an investment company, our ability to enter into certain transactions would be
restricted by the Investment Company Act. Furthermore, the costs associated with registration as an investment
company and compliance with such restrictions could be substantial. In addition, registration under and compliance
with the Investment Company Act would require a substantial amount of time on the part of our advisor, its affiliates
and management thereby decreasing the time spent actively managing our investments. If we were required to register
as an investment company but failed to do so, we would be prohibited from engaging in our business, and criminal
and civil actions could be brought against us. In addition, our contracts would be unenforceable unless a court were to
require enforcement, and a court could appoint a receiver to take control of us and liquidate our business.
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To the extent we issue additional equity interests after you purchase shares of our common stock in this offering, your
percentage ownership interest in us will be diluted. In addition, depending upon the terms and pricing of any
additional offerings and the value of our real properties and other real estate related assets, you may also experience
dilution in the book value and fair market value of your shares.

31

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 59



Table of Contents

You may not receive any profits resulting from the sale of one of our properties, or receive such profits in a timely
manner, because we may provide financing to the purchaser of such property.

If we sell one of our properties during liquidation, you may experience a delay before receiving your share of the
proceeds of such liquidation. In a forced or voluntary liquidation, we may sell our properties either subject to or upon
the assumption of any then outstanding mortgage debt or, alternatively, may provide financing to purchasers. We may
take a purchase money obligation secured by a mortgage as partial payment. We do not have any limitations or
restrictions on our taking such purchase money obligations. To the extent we receive promissory notes or other
property instead of cash from sales, such proceeds, other than any interest payable on those proceeds, will not be
included in net sale proceeds until and to the extent the promissory notes or other property are actually paid, sold,
refinanced or otherwise disposed of. In many cases, we will receive initial down payments in the year of sale in an
amount less than the selling price and subsequent payments will be spread over a number of years. Therefore, you
may experience a delay in the distribution of the proceeds of a sale until such time.

Dilution and our Operating Partnership

Several potential events could cause our stockholders� investment in us to be diluted, which may reduce the overall
value of their investment.

The value of our common stock could be diluted by a number of factors, including:

� future offerings of our securities, including issuances under our distribution reinvestment plan and up to
200,000,000 shares of any preferred stock that our board of directors may authorize;

� private issuances of our securities to other investors, including institutional investors;

� issuances of our securities under our 2006 Incentive Plan;

� redemptions of units of limited partnership interest in our operating partnership in exchange for shares of our
common stock; or

� issuance of shares of our common stock to our advisor in connection with its subordinated interest in our
operating partnership.

To the extent we issue additional equity interests after investors purchase shares of our common stock in our offering,
such investors� percentage ownership interest in us will be diluted. In addition, depending upon the terms and pricing
of any additional offerings and the value of our real properties and other real estate related assets, investors may also
experience dilution in the book value and fair market value of their shares.

Our stockholders� interests may be diluted in various ways, which may reduce their returns.

Our board of directors is authorized, without stockholder approval, to cause us to issue additional shares of our
common stock or to raise capital through the issuance of preferred stock, options, warrants and other rights, on terms
and for consideration as our board of directors in its sole discretion may determine, subject to certain restrictions in
our charter in the instance of options and warrants. Any such issuance could result in dilution of the equity of our
stockholders. Our board of directors may, in its sole discretion, authorize us to issue common stock or other equity or
debt securities to: (1) persons from whom we purchase properties, as part or all of the purchase price of the property,
or (2) our advisor in lieu of cash payments required under the Advisory Agreement or other contract or obligation.
Our board of directors, in its sole discretion, may determine the value of any common stock or other equity issued in
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stock are offered by us to the public, the public offering price of the shares of our common stock will be deemed their
value.

32

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 61



Table of Contents

Risks Related to Investments in Real Estate

Changes in national, regional or local economic, demographic or real estate market conditions may adversely
affect our results of operations and our ability to pay distributions to our stockholders or reduce the value of their
investment.

We are subject to risks generally incident to the ownership of real property, including changes in national, regional or
local economic, demographic or real estate market conditions. We are unable to predict future changes in national,
regional or local economic, demographic or real estate market conditions. For example, a recession or rise in interest
rates could make it more difficult for us to lease real properties or dispose of them. In addition, rising interest rates
could also make alternative interest-bearing and other investments more attractive and therefore potentially lower the
relative value of our existing real estate investments. These conditions, or others we cannot predict, may adversely
affect our results of operations and, our ability to pay distributions to our stockholders or reduce the value of their
investment.

Some or all of our properties may incur vacancies, which may result in reduced revenue and resale value, a
reduction in cash available for distribution and a diminished return on investment.

Some or all of our properties may incur vacancies either by a default of tenants under their leases or the expiration or
termination of tenant leases. If vacancies continue for a long period of time, we may suffer reduced revenues resulting
in less cash distributions to our stockholders. In addition, the resale value of the property could be diminished because
the market value of a particular property will depend principally upon the value of the leases of such property.

We are dependent on tenants for our revenue, and lease terminations could reduce our distributions to our
stockholders.

The successful performance of our real estate investments is materially dependent on the financial stability of our
tenants. Lease payment defaults by tenants would cause us to lose the revenue associated with such leases and could
cause us to reduce the amount of distributions to our stockholders. If the property is subject to a mortgage, a default by
a significant tenant on its lease payments to us may result in a foreclosure on the property if we are unable to find an
alternative source of revenue to meet mortgage payments. In the event of a tenant default, we may experience delays
in enforcing our rights as landlord and may incur substantial costs in protecting our investment and re-leasing our
property. Further, we cannot assure our stockholders that we will be able to re-lease the property for the rent
previously received, if at all, or that lease terminations will not cause us to sell the property at a loss.

If we acquired real estate at a time when the real estate market was experiencing substantial influxes of capital
investment and competition for income producing properties, the real estate investments we have made may not
appreciate or may decrease in value.

Until recently, the real estate market has experienced a substantial influx of capital from investors. This substantial
flow of capital, combined with significant competition for income producing real estate, may have resulted in inflated
purchase prices for such assets. To the extent we purchased or in the future purchase real estate in such an
environment, we are subject to the risk that the real estate market may cease to attract the same level of capital
investment in the future, or if the number of companies seeking to acquire such assets decreases, the value of our
investment may not appreciate or may decrease significantly below the amount we paid for such investment.

Competition with third parties in acquiring properties and other investments may reduce our profitability and our
stockholders may experience a lower return on their investment.
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bank and insurance company investment accounts, pension funds, other REITs, real estate limited partnerships, and
foreign investors, many of which have greater resources than we do. Many of these entities may enjoy significant
competitive advantages that result from, among other things, a lower cost of
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capital and enhanced operating efficiencies. In addition, the number of entities and the amount of funds competing for
suitable investments may increase. As such, competition with third parties would result in increased demand for these
assets and therefore increased prices paid for them. If we pay higher prices for properties and other investments, our
profitability will be reduced and our stockholders may experience a lower return on their investment.

Long-term leases may not result in fair market lease rates over time; therefore, our income and our distributions to
our stockholders could be lower than if we did not enter into long-term leases.

We may enter into long-term leases with tenants of certain of our properties. Our long-term leases would likely
provide for rent to increase over time. However, if we do not accurately judge the potential for increases in market
rental rates, we may set the terms of these long-term leases at levels such that even after contractual rental increases,
the rent under our long-term leases is less than then-current market rental rates. Further, we may have no ability to
terminate those leases or to adjust the rent to then-prevailing market rates. As a result, our income and distributions to
our stockholders could be lower than if we did not enter into long-term leases.

We may incur additional costs in acquiring or re-leasing properties which could adversely affect the cash available
for distribution to our stockholders.

We may invest in properties designed or built primarily for a particular tenant of a specific type of use known as a
single-user facility. If the tenant fails to renew its lease or defaults on its lease obligations, we may not be able to
readily market a single-user facility to a new tenant without making substantial capital improvements or incurring
other significant re-leasing costs. We also may incur significant litigation costs in enforcing our rights as a landlord
against the defaulting tenant. These consequences could adversely affect our revenues and reduce the cash available
for distribution to our stockholders.

We may be unable to secure funds for future tenant or other capital improvements, which could limit our ability to
attract or replace tenants and decrease stockholders� return on investment.

When tenants do not renew their leases or otherwise vacate their space, it is common that, in order to attract
replacement tenants, we will be required to expend substantial funds for tenant improvements and leasing
commissions related to the vacated space. Such tenant improvements may require us to incur substantial capital
expenditures. If we have not established capital reserves for such tenant or other capital improvements, we will have
to obtain financing from other sources and we have not identified any sources for such financing. We may also have
future financing needs for other capital improvements to refurbish or renovate our properties. If we need to secure
financing sources for tenant improvements or other capital improvements in the future, but are unable to secure such
financing or are unable to secure financing on terms we feel are acceptable, we may be unable to make tenant and
other capital improvements or we may be required to defer such improvements. If this happens, it may cause one or
more of our properties to suffer from a greater risk of obsolescence or a decline in value, or a greater risk of decreased
cash flow as a result of fewer potential tenants being attracted to the property or existing tenants not renewing their
leases. If we do not have access to sufficient funding in the future, we may not be able to make necessary capital
improvements to our properties, pay other expenses or pay distributions to our stockholders.

Uninsured losses relating to real estate and lender requirements to obtain insurance may reduce stockholders�
returns.

There are types of losses relating to real estate, generally catastrophic in nature, such as losses due to wars, acts of
terrorism, earthquakes, floods, hurricanes, pollution or environmental matters, for which we do not intend to obtain
insurance unless we are required to do so by mortgage lenders. If any of our properties incurs a casualty loss that is
not fully covered by insurance, the value of our assets will be reduced by any such uninsured loss. In addition, other
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property, and we cannot assure stockholders that any such sources of funding will be available to us for such purposes
in the future. Also, to the extent we must pay unexpectedly large amounts for uninsured losses, we could suffer
reduced earnings that would result in less
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cash to be distributed to our stockholders. In cases where we are required by mortgage lenders to obtain casualty loss
insurance for catastrophic events or terrorism, such insurance may not be available, or may not be available at a
reasonable cost, which could inhibit our ability to finance or refinance our properties. Additionally, if we obtain such
insurance, the costs associated with owning a property would increase and could have a material adverse effect on the
net income from the property, and, thus, the cash available for distribution to our stockholders.

If one of our insurance carriers does not remain solvent, we may not be able to fully recover on our claims.

An insurance subsidiary of American International Group, or AIG, provides coverage under an umbrella insurance
policy we have obtained that covers our properties. Recently, AIG has announced that it has suffered from severe
liquidity problems. Although the U.S. Treasury and Federal Reserve have announced measures to assist AIG with its
liquidity problems, such measures may not be successful. If AIG were to become insolvent, it could have a material
adverse impact on AIG�s insurance subsidiaries. In the event that AIG�s insurance subsidiary that provides coverage
under our policy is not able to cover our claims, it could have a material adverse impact on the value of our properties
and our financial condition.

We may be unable to obtain desirable types of insurance coverage at a reasonable cost, if at all, and we may be
unable to comply with insurance requirements contained in mortgage or other agreements due to high insurance
costs.

We may not be able either to obtain certain desirable types of insurance coverage, such as terrorism, earthquake,
flood, hurricane and pollution or environmental matter insurance, or to obtain such coverage at a reasonable cost in
the future, and this risk may limit our ability to finance or refinance debt secured by our properties. Additionally, we
could default under debt or other agreements if the cost and/or availability of certain types of insurance make it
impractical or impossible to comply with covenants relating to the insurance we are required to maintain under such
agreements. In such instances, we may be required to self-insure against certain losses or seek other forms of financial
assurance.

Increases in our insurance rates could adversely affect our cash flow and our ability to make future cash
distributions to our stockholders.

We cannot assure our stockholders that we will be able to renew our insurance coverage at our current or reasonable
rates or that we can estimate the amount of potential increases of policy premiums. As a result, our cash flow could be
adversely impacted by increased premiums. In addition, the sales prices of our properties may be affected by these
rising costs and adversely affect our ability to make cash distributions to our stockholders.

We may obtain only limited warranties when we purchase a property and would have only limited recourse in the
event our due diligence did not identify any issues that lower the value of our property.

The seller of a property often sells such property in its �as is� condition on a �where is� basis and �with all faults,� without
any warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular use or purpose. In addition, purchase and sale agreements
may contain only limited warranties, representations and indemnifications that will only survive for a limited period
after the closing. The purchase of properties with limited warranties increases the risk that we may lose some or all of
our invested capital in the property, as well as the loss of rental income from that property.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may affect the markets in which we operate and have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and ability to pay distributions to our stockholders.
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our assets through damage, destruction, loss or increased security costs. Although we may obtain terrorism insurance,
we may not be able to obtain sufficient coverage to fund any losses we may incur. Risks associated with potential acts
of terrorism could sharply increase the premiums we pay for coverage against property and casualty claims. Further,
certain losses resulting from these types of events are uninsurable or not insurable at reasonable costs.

More generally, any terrorist attack, other act of violence or war, including armed conflicts, could result in increased
volatility in, or damage to, the United States and worldwide financial markets and economy, all of which could
adversely affect our tenants� ability to pay rent on their leases or our ability to borrow money or issue capital stock at
acceptable prices and have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and ability to pay
distributions to stockholders.

Delays in the acquisition, development and construction of real properties may have adverse effects on our results
of operations and returns to our stockholders.

Delays we encounter in the selection, acquisition and development of real properties could adversely affect
stockholders� returns. Where properties are acquired prior to the start of construction or during the early stages of
construction, it will typically take several months to complete construction and rent available space. Therefore,
stockholders could suffer delays in the receipt of cash distributions attributable to those particular real properties.
Delays in completion of construction could give tenants the right to terminate preconstruction leases for space at a
newly developed project. We may incur additional risks when we make periodic progress payments or other advances
to builders prior to completion of construction. Each of those factors could result in increased costs of a project or loss
of our investment. In addition, we are subject to normal lease-up risks relating to newly constructed projects.
Furthermore, the price we agree to for a real property will be based on our projections of rental income and expenses
and estimates of the fair market value of real property upon completion of construction. If our projections are
inaccurate, we may pay too much for a property.

Uncertain market conditions relating to the future disposition of properties could cause us to sell our properties at
a loss in the future.

We intend to hold our various real estate investments until such time as our advisor determines that a sale or other
disposition appears to be advantageous to achieve our investment objectives. Our advisor, subject to the oversight and
approval of our Chief Executive Officer and our board of directors, may exercise its discretion as to whether and when
to sell a property, and we will have no obligation to sell properties at any particular time. We generally intend to hold
properties for an extended period of time, and we cannot predict with any certainty the various market conditions
affecting real estate investments that will exist at any particular time in the future. Because of the uncertainty of
market conditions that may affect the future disposition of our properties, we cannot assure stockholders that we will
be able to sell our properties at a profit in the future. Additionally, we may incur prepayment penalties in the event we
sell a property subject to a mortgage earlier than we otherwise had planned. Accordingly, the extent to which our
stockholders will receive cash distributions and realize potential appreciation on our real estate investments will,
among other things, be dependent upon fluctuating market conditions.

We face possible liability for environmental cleanup costs and damages for contamination related to properties we
acquire, which could substantially increase our costs and reduce our liquidity and cash distributions to our
stockholders.

Because we own and operate real estate, we are subject to various federal, state and local environmental laws,
ordinances and regulations. Under these laws, ordinances and regulations, a current or previous owner or operator of
real estate may be liable for the cost of removal or remediation of hazardous or toxic substances on, under or in such
property. The costs of removal or remediation could be substantial. Such laws often impose liability whether or not
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Environmental laws also may impose restrictions on the manner in which property may be used or businesses may be
operated, and these restrictions may require substantial expenditures. Environmental laws provide for sanctions in the
event of noncompliance and may be enforced
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by governmental agencies or, in certain circumstances, by private parties. Certain environmental laws and common
law principles could be used to impose liability for release of and exposure to hazardous substances, including the
release of asbestos-containing materials into the air, and third parties may seek recovery from owners or operators of
real estate for personal injury or property damage associated with exposure to released hazardous substances. In
addition, new or more stringent laws or stricter interpretations of existing laws could change the cost of compliance or
liabilities and restrictions arising out of such laws. The cost of defending against these claims, complying with
environmental regulatory requirements, conducting remediation of any contaminated property, or of paying personal
injury claims could be substantial, which would reduce our liquidity and cash available for distribution to our
stockholders. In addition, the presence of hazardous substances on a property or the failure to meet environmental
regulatory requirements may materially impair our ability to use, lease or sell a property, or to use the property as
collateral for borrowing.

Our real estate investments may be concentrated in medical office or other healthcare related facilities, making us
more vulnerable economically than if our investments were diversified.

As a REIT, we invest primarily in real estate. Within the real estate industry, we have primarily acquired medical
office buildings and healthcare related facilities and intend to continue to acquire or selectively develop these types of
properties in the future. We are subject to risks inherent in concentrating investments in real estate. These risks
resulting from a lack of diversification become even greater as a result of our business strategy to invest to a
substantial degree in healthcare related facilities.

A downturn in the commercial real estate industry generally could significantly adversely affect the value of our
properties. A downturn in the healthcare industry could negatively affect our lessees� ability to make lease payments to
us and our ability to make distributions to our stockholders. These adverse effects could be more pronounced than if
we diversified our investments outside of real estate or if our portfolio did not include a substantial concentration in
medical office buildings and healthcare related facilities.

Certain of our properties may not have efficient alternative uses, so the loss of a tenant may cause us not to be able
to find a replacement or cause us to spend considerable capital to adapt the property to an alternative use.

Some of the properties we will seek to acquire are specialized medical facilities. If we or our tenants terminate the
leases for these properties or our tenants lose their regulatory authority to operate such properties, we may not be able
to locate suitable replacement tenants to lease the properties for their specialized uses. Alternatively, we may be
required to spend substantial amounts to adapt the properties to other uses. Any loss of revenues or additional capital
expenditures required as a result may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations and our ability to make distributions to our stockholders.

Our medical office buildings, healthcare related facilities and tenants may be unable to compete successfully.

Our medical office buildings and healthcare related facilities often face competition from nearby hospitals and other
medical office buildings that provide comparable services. Some of those competing facilities are owned by
governmental agencies and supported by tax revenues, and others are owned by nonprofit corporations and may be
supported to a large extent by endowments and charitable contributions. These types of support are not available to
our buildings.

Similarly, our tenants face competition from other medical practices in nearby hospitals and other medical facilities.
Our tenants� failure to compete successfully with these other practices could adversely affect their ability to make
rental payments, which could adversely affect our rental revenues. Further, from time to time and for reasons beyond
our control, referral sources, including physicians and managed care organizations, may change their lists of hospitals
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Any reduction in rental revenues resulting from the inability of our medical office buildings and healthcare related
facilities and our tenants to compete successfully may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our stockholders.

Our costs associated with complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act may reduce our cash available for
distributions.

Our properties may be subject to the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, or the ADA. Under the
ADA, all places of public accommodation are required to comply with federal requirements related to access and use
by disabled persons. The ADA has separate compliance requirements for �public accommodations� and �commercial
facilities� that generally require that buildings and services be made accessible and available to people with disabilities.
The ADA�s requirements could require removal of access barriers and could result in the imposition of injunctive
relief, monetary penalties or, in some cases, an award of damages. We attempt to acquire properties that comply with
the ADA or place the burden on the seller or other third party, such as a tenant, to ensure compliance with the ADA.
However, we cannot assure our stockholders that we will be able to acquire properties or allocate responsibilities in
this manner. If we cannot, our funds used for ADA compliance may reduce cash available for distributions and the
amount of distributions to our stockholders.

Our real properties are subject to property taxes that may increase in the future, which could adversely affect our
cash flow.

Our real properties are subject to real and personal property taxes that may increase as tax rates change and as the real
properties are assessed or reassessed by taxing authorities. Some of our leases generally provide that the property
taxes or increases therein are charged to the tenants as an expense related to the real properties that they occupy while
other leases will generally provide that we are responsible for such taxes. In any case, as the owner of the properties,
we are ultimately responsible for payment of the taxes to the applicable government authorities. If real property taxes
increase, our tenants may be unable to make the required tax payments, ultimately requiring us to pay the taxes even if
otherwise stated under the terms of the lease. If we fail to pay any such taxes, the applicable taxing authority may
place a lien on the real property and the real property may be subject to a tax sale. In addition, we are generally
responsible for real property taxes related to any vacant space.

Costs of complying with governmental laws and regulations related to environmental protection and human health
and safety may be high.

All real property investments and the operations conducted in connection with such investments are subject to federal,
state and local laws and regulations relating to environmental protection and human health and safety. Some of these
laws and regulations may impose joint and several liability on customers, owners or operators for the costs to
investigate or remediate contaminated properties, regardless of fault or whether the acts causing the contamination
were legal.

Under various federal, state and local environmental laws, a current or previous owner or operator of real property
may be liable for the cost of removing or remediating hazardous or toxic substances on such real property. Such laws
often impose liability whether or not the owner or operator knew of, or was responsible for, the presence of such
hazardous or toxic substances. In addition, the presence of hazardous substances, or the failure to properly remediate
those substances, may adversely affect our ability to sell, rent or pledge such real property as collateral for future
borrowings. Environmental laws also may impose restrictions on the manner in which real property may be used or
businesses may be operated. Some of these laws and regulations have been amended so as to require compliance with
new or more stringent standards as of future dates. Compliance with new or more stringent laws or regulations or
stricter interpretation of existing laws may require us to incur material expenditures. Future laws, ordinances or
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tanks, or activities of unrelated third parties may affect our real properties. In addition, there are various local, state
and

38

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 73



Table of Contents

federal fire, health, life-safety and similar regulations with which we may be required to comply, and which may
subject us to liability in the form of fines or damages for noncompliance. In connection with the acquisition and
ownership of our real properties, we may be exposed to such costs in connection with such regulations. The cost of
defending against environmental claims, of any damages or fines we must pay, of compliance with environmental
regulatory requirements or of remediating any contaminated real property could materially and adversely affect our
business, lower the value of our assets or results of operations and, consequently, lower the amounts available for
distribution to our stockholders.

Risks Related to the Healthcare Industry

Reductions in reimbursement from third party payors, including Medicare and Medicaid, could adversely affect the
profitability of our tenants and hinder their ability to make rent payments to us.

Sources of revenue for our tenants may include the federal Medicare program, state Medicaid programs, private
insurance carriers and health maintenance organizations, among others. Efforts by such payors to reduce healthcare
costs will likely continue, which may result in reductions or slower growth in reimbursement for certain services
provided by some of our tenants. In addition, the failure of any of our tenants to comply with various laws and
regulations could jeopardize their ability to continue participating in Medicare, Medicaid and other government
sponsored payment programs.

The healthcare industry continues to face various challenges, including increased government and private payor
pressure on healthcare providers to control or reduce costs. It is possible that our tenants will continue to experience a
shift in payor mix away from fee-for-service payors, resulting in an increase in the percentage of revenues attributable
to managed care payors, and general industry trends that include pressures to control healthcare costs. Pressures to
control healthcare costs and a shift away from traditional health insurance reimbursement to managed care plans have
resulted in an increase in the number of patients whose healthcare coverage is provided under managed care plans,
such as health maintenance organizations and preferred provider organizations. These changes could have a material
adverse effect on the financial condition of some or all of our tenants. The financial impact on our tenants could
restrict their ability to make rent payments to us, which would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our stockholders.

The healthcare industry is heavily regulated, and new laws or regulations, changes to existing laws or regulations,
loss of licensure or failure to obtain licensure could result in the inability of our tenants to make rent payments to
us.

The healthcare industry is heavily regulated by federal, state and local governmental bodies. Our tenants generally are
subject to laws and regulations covering, among other things, licensure, certification for participation in government
programs, and relationships with physicians and other referral sources. Changes in these laws and regulations could
negatively affect the ability of our tenants to make lease payments to us and our ability to make distributions to our
stockholders.

Many of our medical properties and their tenants may require a license or certificate of need, or CON, to operate.
Failure to obtain a license or CON, or loss of a required license or CON would prevent a facility from operating in the
manner intended by the tenant. These events could materially adversely affect our tenants� ability to make rent
payments to us. State and local laws also may regulate expansion, including the addition of new beds or services or
acquisition of medical equipment, and the construction of healthcare related facilities, by requiring a CON or other
similar approval. State CON laws are not uniform throughout the United States and are subject to change. We cannot
predict the impact of state CON laws on our development of facilities or the operations of our tenants.
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facilities. The repeal of CON laws could allow competitors to freely operate in previously closed markets. This could
negatively affect our tenants� abilities to make rent payments to us.
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In limited circumstances, loss of state licensure or certification or closure of a facility could ultimately result in loss of
authority to operate the facility and require new CON authorization to re-institute operations. As a result, a portion of
the value of the facility may be reduced, which would adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of
operations and our ability to make distributions to our stockholders.

Some tenants of our medical office buildings and healthcare related facilities are subject to fraud and abuse laws,
the violation of which by a tenant may jeopardize the tenant�s ability to make rent payments to us.

There are various federal and state laws prohibiting fraudulent and abusive business practices by healthcare providers
who participate in, receive payments from or are in a position to make referrals in connection with
government-sponsored healthcare programs, including the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Our lease arrangements
with certain tenants may also be subject to these fraud and abuse laws.

These laws include:

� the Federal Anti-Kickback Statute, which prohibits, among other things, the offer, payment, solicitation or
receipt of any form of remuneration in return for, or to induce, the referral of any item or service reimbursed by
Medicare or Medicaid;

� the Federal Physician Self-Referral Prohibition, which, subject to specific exceptions, restricts physicians from
making referrals for specifically designated health services for which payment may be made under Medicare or
Medicaid programs to an entity with which the physician, or an immediate family member, has a financial
relationship;

� the False Claims Act, which prohibits any person from knowingly presenting false or fraudulent claims for
payment to the federal government, including claims paid by the Medicare and Medicaid programs; and

� the Civil Monetary Penalties Law, which authorizes the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services to
impose monetary penalties for certain fraudulent acts.

Each of these laws includes criminal and/or civil penalties for violations that range from punitive sanctions, damage
assessments, penalties, imprisonment, denial of Medicare and Medicaid payments and/or exclusion from the Medicare
and Medicaid programs. Certain laws, such as the False Claims Act, allow for individuals to bring whistleblower
actions on behalf of the government for violations thereof. Additionally, states in which the facilities are located may
have similar fraud and abuse laws. Investigation by a federal or state governmental body for violation of fraud and
abuse laws or imposition of any of these penalties upon one of our tenants could jeopardize that tenant�s ability to
operate or to make rent payments, which may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our stockholders.

Adverse trends in healthcare provider operations may negatively affect our lease revenues and our ability to make
distributions to our stockholders.

The healthcare industry is currently experiencing:

� changes in the demand for and methods of delivering healthcare services;

� changes in third party reimbursement policies;

� 
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� continued pressure by private and governmental payors to reduce payments to providers of services; and

� increased scrutiny of billing, referral and other practices by federal and state authorities.
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These factors may adversely affect the economic performance of some or all of our healthcare related tenants and, in
turn, our lease revenues and our ability to make distributions to our stockholders.

Our healthcare related tenants may be subject to significant legal actions that could subject them to increased
operating costs and substantial uninsured liabilities, which may affect their ability to pay their rent payments to us.

As is typical in the healthcare industry, our healthcare related tenants may often become subject to claims that their
services have resulted in patient injury or other adverse effects. Many of these tenants may have experienced an
increasing trend in the frequency and severity of professional liability and general liability insurance claims and
litigation asserted against them. The insurance coverage maintained by these tenants may not cover all claims made
against them nor continue to be available at a reasonable cost, if at all. In some states, insurance coverage for the risk
of punitive damages arising from professional liability and general liability claims and/or litigation may not, in certain
cases, be available to these tenants due to state law prohibitions or limitations of availability. As a result, these types
of tenants of our medical office buildings and healthcare related facilities operating in these states may be liable for
punitive damage awards that are either not covered or are in excess of their insurance policy limits. We also believe
that there has been, and will continue to be, an increase in governmental investigations of certain healthcare providers,
particularly in the area of Medicare/Medicaid false claims, as well as an increase in enforcement actions resulting
from these investigations. Insurance is not available to cover such losses. Any adverse determination in a legal
proceeding or governmental investigation, whether currently asserted or arising in the future, could have a material
adverse effect on a tenant�s financial condition. If a tenant is unable to obtain or maintain insurance coverage, if
judgments are obtained in excess of the insurance coverage, if a tenant is required to pay uninsured punitive damages,
or if a tenant is subject to an uninsurable government enforcement action, the tenant could be exposed to substantial
additional liabilities, which may affect the tenant�s ability to pay rent, which in turn could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our
stockholders.

We may experience adverse effects as a result of potential financial and operational challenges faced by the
operators of our senior healthcare facilities.

Operators of our senior healthcare facilities may face operational challenges from potentially reduced revenue streams
and increased demands on their existing financial resources. Our skilled nursing operators� revenues are primarily
derived from governmentally-funded reimbursement programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid. Accordingly, our
facility operators are subject to the potential negative effects of decreased reimbursement rates offered through such
programs. Our operators� revenue may also be adversely affected as a result of falling occupancy rates or slow
lease-ups for assisted and independent living facilities due to the recent turmoil in the capital debt and real estate
markets. In addition, our facility operators may incur additional demands on their existing financial resources as a
result of increases in senior healthcare operator liability, insurance premiums and other operational expenses. The
economic deterioration of an operator could cause such operator to file for bankruptcy protection. The bankruptcy or
insolvency of an operator may adversely affect the income produced by the property or properties it operates. Our
financial position could be weakened and our ability to make distributions could be limited if any of our senior
healthcare facility operators were unable to meet their financial obligations to us.

Our operators� performance and economic condition may be negatively affected if they fail to comply with various
complex federal and state laws that govern a wide array of referrals, relationships and licensure requirements in the
senior healthcare industry. The violation of any of these laws or regulations by a senior healthcare facility operator
may result in the imposition of fines or other penalties that could jeopardize that operator�s ability to make payment
obligations to us or to continue operating its facility. In addition, legislative proposals are commonly being introduced
or proposed in federal and state legislatures that could affect major changes in the senior healthcare sector, either
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operations.
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The unique nature of our senior healthcare properties may make it difficult to lease or transfer such properties
and, as a result, may negatively affect our performance.

Senior healthcare facilities present unique challenges with respect to leasing and transferring the same. Skilled
nursing, assisted living and independent living facilities are typically highly customized and may not be easily
modified to accommodate non-healthcare related uses. As a result, these property types may not be suitable for lease
to traditional office tenants or other healthcare tenants with unique needs without significant expenditures or
renovations. These renovation costs may materially adversely affect our revenues, results of operations and financial
condition. Furthermore, because transfers of healthcare facilities may be subject to regulatory approvals not required
for transfers of other types of property, there may be significant delays in transferring operations of senior healthcare
facilities to successor operators. If we are unable to efficiently transfer our senior healthcare properties our revenues
and operations may suffer.

Risks Related to Investments in Other Real Estate Related Assets

We do not have substantial experience in acquiring mortgage loans or investing in other real estate related assets,
which may result in our other real estate related assets failing to produce returns or incurring losses.

None of our officers or the management personnel of our advisor have any substantial experience in acquiring
mortgage loans or investing in other real estate related assets in which we may invest. We may make such investments
to the extent that our advisor, in consultation with our board of directors, determines that it is advantageous for us to
do so. Our and our advisor�s lack of expertise in making investments in other real estate related assets may result in our
real estate related assets failing to produce returns or incurring losses, either of which would reduce our ability to
make distributions to our stockholders.

Real estate related equity securities in which we may invest are subject to specific risks relating to the particular
issuer of the securities and may be subject to the general risks of investing in subordinated real estate securities.

We may invest in the common and preferred stock of both publicly traded and private real estate companies, which
involves a higher degree of risk than debt securities due to a variety of factors, including the fact that such investments
are subordinate to creditors and are not secured by the issuer�s property. Our investments in real estate related equity
securities will involve special risks relating to the particular issuer of the equity securities, including the financial
condition and business outlook of the issuer. Issuers of real estate related common equity securities generally invest in
real estate or real estate related assets and are subject to the inherent risks associated with real estate related assets,
including risks relating to rising interest rates.

The mortgage loans in which we may invest may be impacted by unfavorable real estate market conditions, which
could decrease their value.

If we make additional investments in mortgage loans, we will be at risk of loss on those investments, including losses
as a result of defaults on mortgage loans. These losses may be caused by many conditions beyond our control,
including economic conditions affecting real estate values, tenant defaults and lease expirations, interest rate levels
and the other economic and liability risks associated with real estate described above under the heading �Risks Related
to Investments in Real Estate Related Assets�. If we acquire property by foreclosure following defaults under our
mortgage loan investments, we will have the economic and liability risks as the owner described above. We do not
know whether the values of the property securing any of our investments in other real estate assets will remain at the
levels existing on the dates we initially make the related investment. If the values of the underlying properties drop,
our risk will increase and the values of our interests may decrease.
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If there are defaults under our mortgage loan investments, we may not be able to foreclose on or obtain a suitable
remedy with respect to such investments. Specifically, we may not be able to repossess and sell the
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underlying properties quickly which could reduce the value of our investment. For example, an action to foreclose on
a property securing a mortgage loan is regulated by state statutes and rules and is subject to many of the delays and
expenses of lawsuits if the defendant raises defenses or counterclaims. Additionally, in the event of default by a
mortgagor, these restrictions, among other things, may impede our ability to foreclose on or sell the mortgaged
property or to obtain proceeds sufficient to repay all amounts due to us on the mortgage loan.

The mezzanine loans in which we may invest would involve greater risks of loss than senior loans secured by
income-producing real properties.

We may invest in mezzanine loans that take the form of subordinated loans secured by second mortgages on the
underlying real property or loans secured by a pledge of the ownership interests of either the entity owning the real
property or the entity that owns the interest in the entity owning the real property. These types of investments involve
a higher degree of risk than long-term senior mortgage lending secured by income producing real property because the
investment may become unsecured as a result of foreclosure by the senior lender. In the event of a bankruptcy of the
entity providing the pledge of its ownership interests as security, we may not have full recourse to the assets of such
entity, or the assets of the entity may not be sufficient to satisfy our mezzanine loan. If a borrower defaults on our
mezzanine loan or debt senior to our loan, or in the event of a borrower bankruptcy, our mezzanine loan will be
satisfied only after the senior debt. As a result, we may not recover some or all of our investment. In addition,
mezzanine loans may have higher loan to value ratios than conventional mortgage loans, resulting in less equity in the
real property and increasing the risk of loss of principal.

We expect a portion of our investments in other real estate related assets to be illiquid and we may not be able to
adjust our portfolio in response to changes in economic and other conditions.

We may purchase other real estate related assets in connection with privately negotiated transactions which are not
registered under the relevant securities laws, resulting in a prohibition against their transfer, sale, pledge or other
disposition except in a transaction that is exempt from the registration requirements of, or is otherwise in accordance
with, those laws. As a result, our ability to vary our portfolio in response to changes in economic and other conditions
may be relatively limited. The mezzanine and bridge loans we may purchase will be particularly illiquid investments
due to their short life, their unsuitability for securitization and the greater difficulty of recoupment in the event of a
borrower�s default.

Interest rate and related risks may cause the value of our investments in other real estate related assets to be
reduced.

Interest rate risk is the risk that fixed income securities such as preferred and debt securities, and to a lesser extent
dividend paying common stocks, will decline in value because of changes in market interest rates. Generally, when
market interest rates rise, the market value of such securities will decline, and vice versa. Our investment in such
securities means that the net asset value and market price of the common shares may tend to decline if market interest
rates rise.

During periods of rising interest rates, the average life of certain types of securities may be extended because of
slower than expected principal payments. This may lock in a below-market interest rate, increase the security�s
duration and reduce the value of the security. This is known as extension risk. During periods of declining interest
rates, an issuer may be able to exercise an option to prepay principal earlier than scheduled, which is generally known
as call or prepayment risk. If this occurs, we may be forced to reinvest in lower yielding securities. This is known as
reinvestment risk. Preferred and debt securities frequently have call features that allow the issuer to repurchase the
security prior to its stated maturity. An issuer may redeem an obligation if the issuer can refinance the debt at a lower
cost due to declining interest rates or an improvement in the credit standing of the issuer. These risks may reduce the

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 82



value of our other real estate related assets.

43

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 83



Table of Contents

If we liquidate prior to the maturity of our investments in other real estate assets, we may be forced to sell those
investments on unfavorable terms or at a loss.

Our board of directors may choose to effect a liquidity event in which we liquidate our assets, including our other real
estate related assets. If we liquidate those investments prior to their maturity, we may be forced to sell those
investments on unfavorable terms or at loss. For instance, if we are required to liquidate mortgage loans at a time
when prevailing interest rates are higher than the interest rates of such mortgage loans, we would likely sell such loans
at a discount to their stated principal values.

Risks Related to Debt Financing

We have and intend to incur mortgage indebtedness and other borrowings, which may increase our business risks,
could hinder our ability to make distributions and could decrease the value of our stockholders� investments.

We have and intend to continue to finance a portion of the purchase price of our investments in real estate and other
real estate related assets by borrowing funds. We anticipate that, after an initial phase of our operations when we may
employ greater amounts of leverage to enable us to purchase properties more quickly and therefore generate
distributions for our stockholders sooner, our overall leverage will not exceed 60.0% of our properties� and other real
estate related assets� combined fair market value of our assets. Under our charter, we have a limitation on borrowing
which precludes us from borrowing in excess of 300.0% of the value of our net assets, without the approval of a
majority of our independent directors. In addition, any excess borrowing must be disclosed to stockholders in our next
quarterly report following the borrowing, along with justification for the excess. Net assets for purposes of this
calculation are defined to be our total assets (other than intangibles), valued at cost prior to deducting depreciation or
other non-case reserves, less total liabilities. Generally speaking, the preceding calculation is expected to approximate
75.0% of the sum of (a) the aggregate cost of our real property investments before non-cash reserves and depreciation
and (b) the aggregate cost of our investments in other real estate related assets. In addition, we may incur mortgage
debt and pledge some or all of our real properties as security for that debt to obtain funds to acquire additional real
properties or for working capital. We may also borrow funds to satisfy the REIT tax qualification requirement that we
distribute at least 90.0% of our annual REIT taxable income to our stockholders. Furthermore, we may borrow if we
otherwise deem it necessary or advisable to ensure that we maintain our qualification as a REIT for federal income tax
purposes.

High debt levels will cause us to incur higher interest charges, which would result in higher debt service payments and
could be accompanied by restrictive covenants. If there is a shortfall between the cash flow from a property and the
cash flow needed to service mortgage debt on that property, then the amount available for distributions to our
stockholders may be reduced. In addition, incurring mortgage debt increases the risk of loss since defaults on
indebtedness secured by a property may result in lenders initiating foreclosure actions. In that case, we could lose the
property securing the loan that is in default, thus reducing the value of our stockholders� investments. For tax purposes,
a foreclosure on any of our properties will be treated as a sale of the property for a purchase price equal to the
outstanding balance of the debt secured by the mortgage. If the outstanding balance of the debt secured by the
mortgage exceeds our tax basis in the property, we will recognize taxable income on foreclosure, but we would not
receive any cash proceeds. We may give full or partial guarantees to lenders of mortgage debt to the entities that own
our properties. When we give a guaranty on behalf of an entity that owns one of our properties, we will be responsible
to the lender for satisfaction of the debt if it is not paid by such entity. If any mortgage contains cross collateralization
or cross default provisions, a default on a single property could affect multiple properties. If any of our properties are
foreclosed upon due to a default, our ability to pay cash distributions to our stockholders will be adversely affected.
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Higher mortgage rates may make it more difficult for us to finance or refinance properties, which could reduce the
number of properties we can acquire and the amount of cash distributions we can make to our stockholders.

If mortgage debt is unavailable on reasonable terms as a result of increased interest rates or other factors, we may not
be able to finance the initial purchase of properties. In addition, if we place mortgage debt on properties, we run the
risk of being unable to refinance such debt when the loans come due, or of being unable to refinance on favorable
terms. If interest rates are higher when we refinance debt, our income could be reduced. We may be unable to
refinance debt at appropriate times, which may require us to sell properties on terms that are not advantageous to us,
or could result in the foreclosure of such properties. If any of these events occur, our cash flow would be reduced.
This, in turn, would reduce cash available for distribution to our stockholders and may hinder our ability to raise more
capital by issuing securities or by borrowing more money.

Increases in interest rates could increase the amount of our debt payments and therefore negatively impact our
operating results.

Interest we pay on our debt obligations reduces cash available for distributions. Whenever we incur variable rate debt,
increases in interest rates would increase our interest costs, which would reduce our cash flows and our ability to
make distributions to our stockholders. If we need to repay existing debt during periods of rising interest rates, we
could be required to liquidate one or more of our investments in properties at times which may not permit realization
of the maximum return on such investments.

To the extent we borrow at fixed rates or enter into fixed interest rate swaps we will not benefit from reduced
interest expense if interest rates decrease.

We are exposed to the effects of interest rate changes primarily as a result of borrowings used to maintain liquidity
and fund expansion and refinancing of our real estate investment portfolio and operations. To limit the impact of
interest rate changes on earnings, prepayment penalties and cash flows and to lower overall borrowing costs while
taking into account variable interest rate risk, we may borrow at fixed rates or variable rates depending upon
prevailing market conditions. We may also enter into derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps and
caps in order to mitigate our interest rate risk on a related financial instrument. To the extent we borrow at fixed rates
or enter into fixed interest rate swaps we will not benefit from reduced interest expense if interest rates decrease.

Lenders may require us to enter into restrictive covenants relating to our operations, which could limit our ability
to make distributions to our stockholders.

When providing financing, a lender may impose restrictions on us that affect our ability to incur additional debt and
affect our distribution and operating policies. Loan documents we enter into may contain covenants that limit our
ability to further mortgage the property, discontinue insurance coverage, or replace our advisor. These or other
limitations may adversely affect our flexibility and our ability to achieve our investment objectives.

In connection with our transition to self-management, we may be required to provide notice or obtain the consent
of certain of our lenders, and our failure to obtain any required consents could result in a default under our loan
documents.

We may be required to provide notice to, and/or obtain consent from, certain of our lenders in connection with our
transition to self-management. To the extent that we are required to obtain the consent of a lender and such lender
does not provide consent, then in the event that we are otherwise unable to amend, refinance or pay off the applicable
loan, we may be in default under the loan documents. Such default would afford the applicable lender the right to
exercise the remedies available to it under the loan documents, including the right to accelerate the repayment of the

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 85



loan. To the extent that any of our loan repayments are accelerated, we may have difficulty, particularly given the
current status of the credit markets, obtaining replacement

45

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 86



Table of Contents

financing, or alternatively, the replacement financing we may obtain may not be on terms as advantageous as the
terms of our current financing arrangements. In addition, any acceleration of any of our debt without replacement
financing may leave us with insufficient cash to pay the distributions that we are required to pay to maintain our
qualification as a REIT and could have a significant, negative impact on our stockholders� investments.

Hedging activity may expose us to risks.

To the extent that we use derivative financial instruments to hedge against interest rate fluctuations, we will be
exposed to credit risk and legal enforceability risks. In this context, credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to
perform under the terms of the derivative contract. If the fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty
owes us, which creates credit risk for us. Legal enforceability risks encompass general contractual risks, including the
risk that the counterparty will breach the terms of, or fail to perform its obligations under, the derivative contract. If
we are unable to manage these risks effectively, our results of operations, financial condition and ability to pay
distributions to our stockholders will be adversely affected.

Interest-only indebtedness may increase our risk of default and ultimately may reduce our funds available for
distribution to stockholders.

We have and may continue to finance our property acquisitions using interest-only mortgage indebtedness. During the
interest-only period, the amount of each scheduled payment will be less than that of a traditional amortizing mortgage
loan. The principal balance of the mortgage loan will not be reduced (except in the case of prepayments) because there
are no scheduled monthly payments of principal during this period. After the interest-only period, we will be required
either to make scheduled payments of amortized principal and interest or to make a lump-sum or �balloon� payment at
maturity. These required principal or balloon payments will increase the amount of our scheduled payments and may
increase our risk of default under the related mortgage loan. If the mortgage loan has an adjustable interest rate, the
amount of our scheduled payments also may increase at a time of rising interest rates. Increased payments and
substantial principal or balloon maturity payments will reduce the funds available for distribution to stockholders
because cash otherwise available for distribution will be required to pay principal and interest associated with these
mortgage loans.

If we enter into financing arrangements involving balloon payment obligations, it may adversely affect our ability
to refinance or sell properties on favorable terms, and to make distributions to our stockholders.

Some of our financing arrangements may require us to make a lump-sum or balloon payment at maturity. Our ability
to make a balloon payment at maturity is uncertain and may depend upon our ability to obtain additional financing or
our ability to sell the particular property. At the time the balloon payment is due, we may or may not be able to
refinance the balloon payment on terms as favorable as the original loan or sell the particular property at a price
sufficient to make the balloon payment. The refinancing or sale could affect the rate of return to our stockholders and
the projected time of disposition of our assets. In an environment of increasing mortgage rates, if we place mortgage
debt on properties, we run the risk of being unable to refinance such debt if mortgage rates are higher at a time a
balloon payment is due. In addition, payments of principal and interest made to service our debts, including balloon
payments, may leave us with insufficient cash to pay the distributions that we are required to pay to maintain our
qualification as a REIT. Any of these results would have a significant, negative impact on our stockholders�
investments.

Risks Associated with Joint Ventures

The terms of joint venture agreements or other joint ownership arrangements into which we have entered and may
enter could impair our operating flexibility and our results of operations.
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co-ownership arrangements with the sellers of the properties, developers or other persons. These structures involve
participation in the investment by other parties whose interests and rights may not be the same as ours. Our joint
venture partners may have rights to take some actions over which we have no control and may take actions contrary to
our interests. Joint ownership of an investment in real estate may involve risks not associated with direct ownership of
real estate, including the following:

� a venture partner may at any time have economic or other business interests or goals which become
inconsistent with our business interests or goals, including inconsistent goals relating to the sale of properties
held in a joint venture or the timing of the termination and liquidation of the venture;

� a venture partner might become bankrupt and such proceedings could have an adverse impact on the operation
of the partnership or joint venture;

� actions taken by a venture partner might have the result of subjecting the property to liabilities in excess of
those contemplated; and

� a venture partner may be in a position to take action contrary to our instructions or requests or contrary to our
policies or objectives, including our policy with respect to qualifying and maintaining our qualification as a
REIT.

Under certain joint venture arrangements, neither venture partner may have the power to control the venture, and an
impasse could occur, which might adversely affect the joint venture and decrease potential returns to our stockholders.
If we have a right of first refusal or buy/sell right to buy out a venture partner, we may be unable to finance such a
buy-out or we may be forced to exercise those rights at a time when it would not otherwise be in our best interest to do
so. If our interest is subject to a buy/sell right, we may not have sufficient cash, available borrowing capacity or other
capital resources to allow us to purchase an interest of a venture partner subject to the buy/sell right, in which case we
may be forced to sell our interest when we would otherwise prefer to retain our interest. In addition, we may not be
able to sell our interest in a joint venture on a timely basis or on acceptable terms if we desire to exit the venture for
any reason, particularly if our interest is subject to a right of first refusal of our venture partner.

We may structure our joint venture relationships in a manner which may limit the amount we participate in the
cash flow or appreciation of an investment.

We may enter into joint venture agreements, the economic terms of which may provide for the distribution of income
to us otherwise than in direct proportion to our ownership interest in the joint venture. For example, while we and a
co-venturer may invest an equal amount of capital in an investment, the investment may be structured such that we
have a right to priority distributions of cash flow up to a certain target return while the co-venturer may receive a
disproportionately greater share of cash flow than we are to receive once such target return has been achieved. This
type of investment structure may result in the co-venturer receiving more of the cash flow, including appreciation, of
an investment than we would receive. If we do not accurately judge the appreciation prospects of a particular
investment or structure the venture appropriately, we may incur losses on joint venture investments or have limited
participation in the profits of a joint venture investment, either of which could reduce our ability to make cash
distributions to our stockholders.

Federal Income Tax Risks

Failure to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes would subject us to federal income tax on our taxable
income at regular corporate rates, which would substantially reduce our ability to make distributions to our
stockholders.
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We elected to be taxed as a REIT for federal income tax purposes beginning with our taxable year ended
December 31, 2007 and we intend to continue to be taxed as a REIT. To qualify as a REIT, we must meet various
requirements set forth in the Internal Revenue Code concerning, among other things, the ownership of our outstanding
common stock, the nature of our assets, the sources of our income and the amount of our distributions to our
stockholders. The REIT qualification requirements are extremely complex, and
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interpretations of the federal income tax laws governing qualification as a REIT are limited. Accordingly, we cannot
be certain that we will be successful in operating so as to qualify as a REIT. At any time, new laws, interpretations or
court decisions may change the federal tax laws relating to, or the federal income tax consequences of, qualification as
a REIT. It is possible that future economic, market, legal, tax or other considerations may cause our board of directors
to revoke our REIT election, which it may do without stockholder approval.

If we were to fail to qualify as a REIT for any taxable year, we would be subject to federal income tax on our taxable
income at corporate rates. In addition, we would generally be disqualified from treatment as a REIT for the four
taxable years following the year in which we lose our REIT status. Losing our REIT status would reduce our net
earnings available for investment or distribution to stockholders because of the additional tax liability. In addition,
distributions to stockholders would no longer be deductible in computing our taxable income, and we would no longer
be required to make distributions. To the extent that distributions had been made in anticipation of our qualifying as a
REIT, we might be required to borrow funds or liquidate some investments in order to pay the applicable federal
income tax. In addition, although we intend to operate in a manner intended to qualify as a REIT, it is possible that
future economic, market, legal, tax or other considerations may cause our board of directors to recommend that we
revoke our REIT election.

As a result of all these factors, our failure to qualify as a REIT could impair our ability to expand our business and
raise capital, and would substantially reduce our ability to make distributions to our stockholders.

To qualify as a REIT and to avoid the payment of federal income and excise taxes and maintain our REIT status,
we may be forced to borrow funds, use proceeds from the issuance of securities (including our offering), or sell
assets to pay distributions, which may result in our distributing amounts that may otherwise be used for our
operations.

To obtain the favorable tax treatment accorded to REITs, we normally will be required each year to distribute to our
stockholders at least 90.0% of our real estate investment trust taxable income, determined without regard to the
deduction for distributions paid and by excluding net capital gains. We will be subject to federal income tax on our
undistributed taxable income and net capital gain and to a 4.0% nondeductible excise tax on any amount by which
distributions we pay with respect to any calendar year are less than the sum of: (1) 85.0% of our ordinary income,
(2) 95.0% of our capital gain net income and (3) 100.0% of our undistributed income from prior years. These
requirements could cause us to distribute amounts that otherwise would be spent on acquisitions of properties and it is
possible that we might be required to borrow funds, use proceeds from the issuance of securities (including our
offering) or sell assets in order to distribute enough of our taxable income to maintain our REIT status and to avoid the
payment of federal income and excise taxes.

If our operating partnership fails to maintain its status as a partnership for federal income tax purposes, its income
would be subject to taxation and our REIT status would be terminated.

We intend to maintain the status of our operating partnership as a partnership for federal income tax purposes.
However, if the IRS were to successfully challenge the status of our operating partnership as a partnership, it would be
taxable as a corporation. In such event, this would reduce the amount of distributions that our operating partnership
could make to us. This would also result in our losing REIT status and becoming subject to a corporate level tax on
our own income. This would substantially reduce our cash available to pay distributions and the return on our
stockholders� investment. In addition, if any of the entities through which our operating partnership owns its properties,
in whole or in part, loses its characterization as a partnership for federal income tax purposes, it would be subject to
taxation as a corporation, thereby reducing distributions to our operating partnership. Such a recharacterization of our
operating partnership or an underlying property owner could also threaten our ability to maintain our REIT status.
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Our stockholders may have a current tax liability on distributions they elect to reinvest in shares of our common
stock.

If our stockholders participate in the DRIP, they will be deemed to have received, and for income tax purposes will be
taxed on, the amount reinvested in shares of our common stock to the extent the amount reinvested was not a tax-free
return of capital. As a result, unless our stockholders are a tax-exempt entity, they may have to use funds from other
sources to pay their tax liability on the value of the common stock received.

Dividends paid by REITs do not qualify for the reduced tax rates that apply to other corporate dividends.

Tax legislation enacted in 2003 and 2006 generally reduces the maximum tax rate for qualified dividends paid by
corporations to individuals to 15.0% through 2010. Dividends paid by REITs, however, generally continue to be taxed
at the normal rate applicable to the individual recipient, rather than the 15.0% preferential rate. Although this
legislation does not adversely affect the taxation of REITs or dividends paid by REITs, the more favorable rates
applicable to regular corporate dividends could cause potential investors who are individuals to perceive investments
in REITs to be relatively less attractive than investments in the stocks of non-REIT corporations that pay qualified
dividends, which could adversely affect the value of the stock of REITs, including our common stock.

In certain circumstances, we may be subject to federal and state income taxes as a REIT, which would reduce our
cash available for distribution to our stockholders.

Even if we qualify and maintain our status as a REIT, we may be subject to federal income taxes or state taxes. For
example, net income from a prohibited transaction will be subject to a 100% tax. We may not be able to make
sufficient distributions to avoid excise taxes applicable to REITs. We may also decide to retain capital gains we earn
from the sale or other disposition of our property and pay income tax directly on such income. In that event, our
stockholders would be treated as if they earned that income and paid the tax on it directly. However, our stockholders
that are tax-exempt, such as charities or qualified pension plans, would have no benefit from their deemed payment of
such tax liability. We may also be subject to state and local taxes on our income or property, either directly or at the
level of the companies through which we indirectly own our assets. Any federal or state taxes we pay will reduce our
cash available for distribution to our stockholders.

Distributions to tax-exempt stockholders may be classified as unrelated business taxable income.

Neither ordinary nor capital gain distributions with respect to our common stock nor gain from the sale of common
stock should generally constitute unrelated business taxable income to a tax-exempt stockholder. However, there are
certain exceptions to this rule. In particular:

� part of the income and gain recognized by certain qualified employee pension trusts with respect to our
common stock may be treated as unrelated business taxable income if shares of our common stock are
predominately held by qualified employee pension trusts, and we are required to rely on a special look-through
rule for purposes of meeting one of the REIT share ownership tests, and we are not operated in a manner to
avoid treatment of such income or gain as unrelated business taxable income;

� part of the income and gain recognized by a tax exempt stockholder with respect to our common stock would
constitute unrelated business taxable income if the stockholder incurs debt in order to acquire the common
stock; and

� part or all of the income or gain recognized with respect to our common stock by social clubs, voluntary
employee benefit associations, supplemental unemployment benefit trusts and qualified group legal services
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Complying with the REIT requirements may cause us to forego otherwise attractive opportunities.

To continue to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, we must continually satisfy tests concerning, among
other things, the sources of our income, the nature and diversification of our assets, the amounts we distribute to our
stockholders and the ownership of shares of our common stock. We may be required to make distributions to our
stockholders at disadvantageous times or when we do not have funds readily available for distribution, or we may be
required to liquidate otherwise attractive investments in order to comply with the REIT tests. Thus, compliance with
the REIT requirements may hinder our ability to operate solely on the basis of maximizing profits.

Changes to federal income tax laws or regulations could adversely affect stockholders.

In recent years, numerous legislative, judicial and administrative changes have been made to the federal income tax
laws applicable to investments in REITs and similar entities. Additional changes to tax laws are likely to continue to
occur in the future, and we cannot assure our stockholders that any such changes will not adversely affect the taxation
of a stockholder. Any such changes could have an adverse effect on an investment in shares of our common stock. We
urge our stockholders to consult with their own tax advisor with respect to the status of legislative, regulatory or
administrative developments and proposals and their potential effect on an investment in shares of our common stock.

Employee Benefit Plan, IRA and Other Tax-Exempt Investor Risks

We, and our stockholders that are employee benefit plans, individual retirement accounts, or IRAs, annuities described
in Sections 403(a) or (b) of the Code, Archer MSAs, health savings accounts, or Coverdell education savings accounts
(referred to generally as Benefit Plans and IRAs) will be subject to risks relating specifically to our having employee
benefit plans and IRAs as stockholders, which risks are discussed below.

If our stockholders fail to meet the fiduciary and other standards under the Employee Retirement Income Security
Act of 1974, or ERISA, or the Internal Revenue Code as a result of an investment in shares of our common stock,
such stockholder could be subject to criminal and civil penalties.

There are special considerations that apply to Benefit Plans or IRAs investing in shares of our common stock.
Stockholders investing the assets of a pension, profit sharing or 401(k) plan, health or welfare plan, or an IRA in us,
should consider:

� whether its investment is consistent with the applicable provisions of ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code, or
any other applicable governing authority in the case of a government plan;

� whether its investment is made in accordance with the documents and instruments governing its Benefit Plan or
IRA, including its Benefit Plan investment policy;

� whether its investment satisfies the prudence and diversification requirements of Sections 404(a)(1)(B) and
404(a)(1)(C) of ERISA;

� whether its investment will impair the liquidity of the Benefit Plan or IRA;

� whether its investment will constitute a prohibited transaction under Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of
the Code;

� 
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whether its investment will produce unrelated business taxable income, referred to as UBTI and as defined in
Sections 511 through 514 of the Code, to the plan or IRA; and

� its need to value the assets of the plan annually in accordance with ERISA and the Code.

In addition to considering their fiduciary responsibilities under ERISA and the prohibited transaction rules of ERISA
and the Code, trustees or others purchasing shares should consider the effect of the plan asset regulations of the
U.S. Department of Labor. To avoid our assets from being considered plan assets under those regulations, our charter
prohibits �benefit plan investors� from owning 25.0% or more of our common stock prior to the time that the common
stock qualifies as a class of publicly-offered securities, within the
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meaning of the ERISA plan asset regulations. However, we cannot assure stockholders that those provisions in our
charter will be effective in limiting benefit plan investor ownership to less than the 25.0% limit. For example, the limit
could be unintentionally exceeded if a benefit plan investor misrepresents its status as a benefit plan. Even if our
assets are not considered to be plan assets, a prohibited transaction could occur if we or any of our affiliates is a
fiduciary (within the meaning of ERISA) with respect to an employee benefit plan or IRA purchasing shares, and,
therefore, in the event any such persons are fiduciaries (within the meaning of ERISA) of investors plan or IRA, an
investor should not purchase shares unless an administrative or statutory exemption applies to an investor purchase.

Governmental plans, church plans, and foreign plans generally are not subject to ERISA or the prohibited transaction
rules of the Code, but may be subject to similar restrictions under other laws. A plan fiduciary making an investment
in our shares on behalf of such a plan should consider whether the investment is in accordance with applicable law
and governing plan documents.

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable.

Item 2.  Properties.

As of December 31, 2008, we have not entered into any leases for our principal executive offices located at
1551 N. Tustin Avenue, Suite 300, Santa Ana, California 92705. We did not have an address separate from our
advisor, Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, or our sponsor, Grubb & Ellis. Since we pay our advisor fees for its services,
we do not pay rent for the use of its space. In connection with our self-management program, on February 4, 2009, we
entered into a lease for our new principal executive offices located at The Promenade, 16427 North Scottsdale Road,
Suite 440, Scottsdale, AZ 85254. We anticipate that upon or prior to the completion of our transition to
self-management, this office will serve as our principal executive office.

As of December 31, 2008, we owned 41 geographically diverse properties, 33 of which are medical office properties,
five of which are healthcare related facilities and three of which are quality commercial office properties, comprising
5,156,000 square feet of GLA, for an aggregate purchase price of $951,416,000, in 17 states.

The following table presents certain additional information about our properties as of December 31, 2008:

%
Total

of
Annual

Rent

GLA % of Ownership Date Purchase Annual Annual Physical
Per

Leased

Property Property Location (Sq Ft) GLA Percentage Acquired Price Rent(1) Rent Occupancy
Sq

Ft(2)

Southpointe
Office Parke
and Epler
Parke I Indianapolis, IN 97,000 1.9% 100% 01/22/07 $ 14,800,000 $ 1,176,000 1.4% 90.4% $ 12.12
Crawfordsville
Medical
Office Park

Crawfordsville, IN 29,000 0.6 100% 01/22/07 6,900,000 593,000 0.7 100 20.12
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and Athens
Surgery Center
The Gallery
Professional
Building St. Paul, MN 106,000 2.1 100% 03/09/07 8,800,000 1,164,000 1.3 67.8 11.00
Lenox Office
Park, Building
G Memphis, TN 98,000 1.9 100% 03/23/07 18,500,000 2,176,000 2.5 100 22.24
Commons V
Medical Office
Building Naples, FL 55,000 1.1 100% 04/24/07 14,100,000 1,143,000 1.3 100 20.73
Yorktown
Medical Center
and
Shakerag
Medical Center

Fayetteville and
Peachtree City, GA 115,000 2.2 100% 05/02/07 21,500,000 2,385,000 2.7 83.8 20.74

Thunderbird
Medical Plaza Glendale, AZ 110,000 2.1 100% 05/15/07 25,000,000 1,777,000 2.0 69.1 16.17
Triumph
Hospital
Northwest
and Triumph
Hospital
Southwest

Houston and Sugar
Land, TX 151,000 2.9 100% 06/08/07 36,500,000 2,990,000 3.4 100 19.84

Gwinnett
Professional
Center Lawrenceville, GA 60,000 1.2 100% 07/27/07 9,300,000 928,000 1.1 67.5 15.46
1 & 4 Market
Exchange Columbus, OH 116,000 2.2 100% 08/15/07 21,900,000 1,499,000 1.7 92.6 12.95
Kokomo
Medical Office
Park Kokomo, IN 87,000 1.7 100% 08/30/07 13,350,000 1,349,000 1.6 98.2 15.48
St. Mary
Physicians
Center Long Beach, CA 67,000 1.3 100% 09/05/07 13,800,000 1,359,000 1.6 78.6 20.37
2750 Monroe
Boulevard Valley Forge, PA 109,000 2.1 100% 09/10/07 26,700,000 2,699,000 3.1 100 24.70
East Florida
Senior Care
Portfolio

Jacksonville, Winter
Park
and Sunrise, FL 355,000 6.9 100% 09/28/07 52,000,000 4,197,000 4.8 100 11.84

Northmeadow
Medical Center Roswell, GA 51,000 1.0 100% 11/15/07 11,850,000 1,239,000 1.4 98.6 24.30
Tucson
Medical Office
Portfolio Tucson, AZ 111,000 2.2 100% 11/20/07 21,050,000 1,641,000 1.9 67.0 14.75
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%
Total

of
Annual

Rent

GLA % of Ownership Date Purchase Annual Annual Physical
Per

Leased

Property Property Location (Sq Ft) GLA Percentage Acquired Price Rent(1) Rent Occupancy
Sq

Ft(2)

Lima Medical Office
Portfolio Lima, OH 195,000 3.8 100% 12/07/07 25,250,000 2,042,000 2.3 79.7 10.48
Highlands Ranch Medical
Plaza

Highlands Ranch,
CO 79,000 1.5 100% 12/19/07 14,500,000 1,607,000 1.8 85.8 20.41

Chesterfield Rehabilitation
Center Chesterfield, MO 112,000 2.2 80.0% 12/19/07 36,440,000 3,022,000 3.5 100 26.98
Park Place Office Park Dayton, OH 133,000 2.6 100% 12/20/07 16,200,000 2,084,000 2.4 93.0 15.71
Medical Portfolio 1 Overland, KS and

Largo,
Brandon and
Lakeland, FL 163,000 3.2 100% 02/01/08 36,950,000 3,334,000 3.8 96.6 20.47

Fort Road Medical
Building St. Paul, MN 50,000 1.0 100% 03/06/08 8,650,000 647,000 0.7 92.2 12.89
Liberty Falls Medical
Plaza

Liberty Township,
OH 44,000 0.9 100% 03/19/08 8,150,000 594,000 0.7 91.5 13.60

Epler Parke Building B Indianapolis, IN 34,000 0.7 100% 03/24/08 5,850,000 513,000 0.6 95.2 15.09
Cypress Station Medical
Office Building Houston, TX 52,000 1.0 100% 03/25/08 11,200,000 936,000 1.1 100 17.99
Vista Professional Center Lakeland, Fl 32,000 0.6 100% 03/27/08 5,250,000 362,000 0.4 89.3 11.30
Senior Care Portfolio 1 Arlington,

Galveston,
Port Arthur
and Texas City, TX
and Lomita and El
Monte, CA 226,000 4.4 100% Various 39,600,000 3,394,000 3.9 100 14.99

Amarillo Hospital Amarillo, TX 65,000 1.3 100% 05/15/08 20,000,000 1,666,000 1.9 100 25.73
5995 Plaza Drive Cypress, CA 104,000 2.0 100% 05/29/08 25,700,000 1,941,000 2.2 100 18.60
Nutfield Professional
Center Derry, NH 70,000 1.4 100% 06/03/08 14,200,000 1,140,000 1.3 100 16.29
SouthCrest Medical Plaza Stockbridge, GA 81,000 1.6 100% 06/24/08 21,176,000 1,447,000 1.7 79.1 17.94
Medical Portfolio 3 Indianapolis, IN 689,000 13.4 100% 06/26/08 90,100,000 9,810,000 11.3 87.6 14.23
Academy Medical Center Tucson, AZ 41,000 0.8 100% 06/26/08 8,100,000 808,000 0.9 94.3 19.71
Decatur Medical Plaza Decatur, GA 43,000 0.8 100% 06/27/08 12,000,000 1,046,000 1.2 99.5 24.36
Medical Portfolio 2 O�Fallon and

St. Louis, MO
and Keller and
Wichita Falls, TX 173,000 3.4 100% Various 44,800,000 3,736,000 4.3 97.7 21.64

Renaissance Medical
Centre Bountiful, UT 112,000 2.2 100% 06/30/08 30,200,000 2,188,000 2.5 88.5 19.51

Oklahoma City, OK 186,000 3.6 100% 09/16/08 29,250,000 3,374,000 3.9 92.8 18.11
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Oklahoma City Medical
Portfolio
Medical Portfolio 4 Phoenix, AZ, Parma

and Jefferson West,
OH,
and Waxahachie,
Greenville, and
Cedar Hill, TX 227,000 4.4 100% Various 48,000,000 4,245,000 4.9 84.4 18.73

Mountain Empire Portfolio Kingsport and
Bristol,
TN and Pennington
Gap
and Norton, VA 277,000 5.4 100% 09/12/08 25,500,000 3,855,000 4.4 95.5 13.94

Mountain Plains Portfolio San Antonio and
Webster, TX 170,000 3.3 100% 12/18/08 43,000,000 3,780,000 4.3 99.5 22.28

Marietta Health Park Marietta, GA 81,000 1.6 100% 12/22/08 15,300,000 1,071,000 1.2 88.4 13.21

Total/Weighted Average 5,156,000 100% $ 951,416,000 $ 86,957,000 100% 91.3% $ 16.87

(1) Annualized rental revenue is based on contractual base rent from leases in effect as of December 31, 2008.

(2) Average annual rent per occupied square foot as of December 31, 2008.

We own fee simple interests in all of our properties except: (1) Lenox Office Park, Building G, (2) Lima Medical
Office Portfolio, (3) Medical Portfolio 1, (4) Medical Portfolio 4, (5) Mountain Empire Portfolio, (6) Oklahoma City
Medical Portfolio, (7) Senior Care Portfolio 1 and (8) Tucson Medical Office Portfolio. Lenox Office Park, Building
G is comprised of both Lenox Office Park, Building G, in which we hold a leasehold interest, and two vacant parcels
of land, in which we own a fee simple interest. Lima Medical Office Portfolio consists of six medical office buildings,
four of which we hold ground lease interests in certain condominiums within each building, and two of which we own
a fee simple interest. Medical Portfolio 1 is comprised of five properties, one in which we hold a ground lease interest,
and the other four in which we own fee simple interests. Medical Portfolio 4 is comprised of five properties, one in
which we hold a ground lease interest, and the other four in which we own fee simple interests. Mountain Empire
Portfolio is comprised of 10 properties, seven in which we hold a ground lease interest, and the other three in which
we own fee simple interests. Oklahoma City Medical Portfolio is comprised of two properties, both in which we hold
ground lease interests. Senior Care Portfolio 1 consists of six properties, one of which we hold a partial ground lease
interest and a partial fee simple interest, and five of which we own a fee simple interest. Tucson
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Medical Office Portfolio is comprised of two properties, one in which we hold a leasehold interest, and the other in
which we own a fee simple interest.

The following information generally applies to our properties:

� we believe all of our properties are adequately covered by insurance and are suitable for their intended
purposes;

� our properties are located in markets where we are subject to competition in attracting new tenants and
retaining current tenants; and

� depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the buildings, 39 years, and
over the shorter of the lease term or useful lives of the tenant improvements.

Lease Expirations

The following table presents the sensitivity of our annual base rent due to lease expirations for the next 10 years at our
properties, by number, square feet, percentage of leased area, annual base rent, and percentage of annual rent as of
December 31, 2008.

% of
Leased % of Total

Area Annual
Annual

Rent
Number

of Total Sq. Ft. Represented Rent Under
Represented

by

Leases of Expiring
by

Expiring Expiring
Expiring
Leases

Year Ending December 31, Expiring Leases Leases Leases (1)

2009 127 285,000 6.3% $ 5,724,000 6.1%
2010 115 468,000 10.4 9,204,000 9.8
2011 114 498,000 11.1 9,835,000 10.4
2012 117 426,000 9.5 8,380,000 8.9
2013 103 612,000 13.6 12,928,000 13.7
2014 40 516,000 11.5 7,976,000 8.4
2015 31 188,000 4.2 4,630,000 4.9
2016 38 347,000 7.7 7,531,000 8.0
2017 40 323,000 7.2 6,829,000 7.2
2018 46 364,000 8.1 7,384,000 7.8
2019 16 97,000 2.1 2,920,000 3.1
Thereafter 35 375,000 8.3 11,094,000 11.7

Total 822 4,499,000 100% $ 94,435,000 100%

(1) The annual rent percentage is based on the total annual contractual base rent as of December 31, 2008.
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Geographic Diversification/Concentration Table

The following table lists the states in which our properties are located and provides certain information regarding our
portfolio�s geographic diversification/concentration as of December 31, 2008.

Number
of GLA 2008 Annual % of 2008

State Properties(1)
(Square

Feet)
% of
GLA Base Rent(2)

Annual Base
Rent

Arizona 4 343,000 6.7% $ 6,010,000 6.9%
California 3 242,000 4.7 4,041,000 4.6
Colorado 1 79,000 1.5 1,607,000 1.8
Florida 4 542,000 10.5 7,626,000 8.8
Georgia 6 431,000 8.4 8,115,000 9.3
Indiana 5 937,000 18.2 13,441,000 15.5
Kansas 1 63,000 1.2 1,410,000 1.6
Minnesota 2 156,000 3.0 1,811,000 2.1
Missouri 2 249,000 4.8 5,917,000 6.8
New Hampshire 1 70,000 1.4 1,140,000 1.3
Ohio 5 518,000 10.0 6,684,000 7.7
Oklahoma 1 186,000 3.6 3,374,000 3.9
Pennsylvania 1 109,000 2.1 2,699,000 3.1
Tennessee 2 308,000 6.0 5,443,000 6.3
Texas 7 745,000 14.4 14,862,000 17.1
Utah 1 112,000 2.2 2,188,000 2.5
Virginia 1 66,000 1.3 589,000 0.7

Total 5,156,000 100% $ 86,957,000 100%

(1) Medical Portfolio 1 includes properties located in Florida and Kansas, Medical Portfolio 2 includes properties
located in Missouri and Texas, Medical Portfolio 4 includes properties located in Arizona, Ohio and Texas,
Mountain Empire includes properties located in Tennessee and Virginia and Senior Care Portfolio 1 includes
properties located in Texas and California. As a result, each portfolio is included in the property totals for each of
the states in which the properties are located.

(2) Annualized rental revenue is based on contractual base rent from leases in effect as of December 31, 2008.

Indebtedness

See Note 7, Mortgage Loan Payables, Net and Unsecured Note Payables to Affiliate, to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, Note 8, Derivative Financial Instruments, to the Consolidated Financial Statements, and Note 9, Line of
Credit, to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a further discussion of our indebtedness.

Item 3.  Legal Proceedings.
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None.

Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2008.
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PART II

Item 5.  Market for Registrant�s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

Market Information

There is no established public trading market for shares of our common stock.

In order for members of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, or FINRA, and their associated persons to
participate in the offering and sale of shares of our common stock, we are required to disclose in each annual report
distributed to stockholders a per share estimated value of the shares, the method by which it was developed, and the
date of the data used to develop the estimated value. In addition, we will prepare annual statements of estimated share
values to assist fiduciaries of retirement plans subject to the annual reporting requirements of ERISA in the
preparation of their reports relating to an investment in shares of our common stock. For these purposes, our advisor�s
estimated value of the shares is $10.00 per share as of December 31, 2008. The basis for this valuation is the fact that
the current public offering price for shares of our common stock is $10.00 per share (ignoring purchase price
discounts for certain categories of purchasers). However, there is no public trading market for the shares of our
common stock at this time, and there can be no assurance that stockholders could receive $10.00 per share if such a
market did exist and they sold their shares of our common stock or that they will be able to receive such amount for
their shares of our common stock in the future. Until 18 months after the later of the completion of this or any
subsequent offering of shares of our common stock, we intend to continue to use the offering price of shares of our
common stock in our most recent offering as the estimated per share value reported in our Annual Reports on
Form 10-K distributed to stockholders. Beginning 18 months after the last offering of shares of our common stock, the
value of the properties and our other assets will be determined in a manner deemed appropriate by our board of
directors, and we will disclose the resulting estimated per share value in our Annual Reports on Form 10-K distributed
to stockholders.

Stockholders

As of March 13, 2009, we had 23,999 stockholders of record.

Distributions

The amount of the distributions we pay to our stockholders is determined by our board of directors and is dependent
on a number of factors, including funds available for payment of distributions, our financial condition, capital
expenditure requirements and annual distribution requirements needed to maintain our status as a REIT under the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Our board of directors approved a 6.50% per annum, or $0.65 per common share, distribution to be paid to our
stockholders beginning on January 8, 2007, the date we reached our minimum offering of $2,000,000. The first
distribution was paid on February 15, 2007 for the period ended January 31, 2007. Thereafter, distributions were paid
on or about the 15th day of each month in respect of the distributions declared for the prior month. On February 14,
2007, our board of directors approved a 7.25% per annum, or $0.725 per common share, distribution to be paid to our
stockholders beginning with our February 2007 monthly distribution. Distributions are paid to our stockholders on a
monthly basis.
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If distributions are in excess of our taxable income, such distributions will result in a return of capital to our
stockholders. Our distribution of amounts in excess of our taxable income have resulted in a return of capital to our
stockholders.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, we paid distributions of $28,042,000 ($14,943,000 in cash and $13,099,000 in
shares of our common stock pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan, or the DRIP), as compared to cash flows
from operations of $20,677,000. From inception through December 31, 2008, we paid cumulative distributions of
$34,038,000 ($18,266,000 in cash and $15,772,000 in shares of our common stock
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pursuant to the DRIP), as compared to cumulative cash flows from operations of $27,682,000. The distributions paid
in excess of our cash flows from operations were paid using proceeds from our offering.

As of December 31, 2008, we had an amount payable of $1,043,000 to our advisor and its affiliates for operating
expenses, on-site personnel and engineering payroll, lease commissions and asset and property management fees,
which will be paid from cash flows from operations in the future as they become due and payable by us in the
ordinary course of business consistent with our past practice.

As of December 31, 2008, no amounts due to our advisor or its affiliates have been deferred or forgiven. Our advisor
and its affiliates have no obligations to defer or forgive amounts due to them. In the future, if our advisor or its
affiliates do not defer or forgive amounts due to them, this would negatively affect our cash flows from operations,
which could result in us paying distributions, or a portion thereof, with proceeds from our offering or borrowed funds.
As a result, the amount of proceeds available for investment and operations would be reduced, or we may incur
additional interest expense as a result of borrowed funds.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, our FFO was $8,745,000 and $2,124,000, respectively. FFO was
reduced by noncash losses caused by the reduced fair market value of interest rate swaps of $12,821,000 and
$1,377,000 for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2008
and 2007, we paid distributions of $28,042,000 and $5,996,000, respectively. Such amounts were covered by FFO of
$8,745,000 in 2008 and $2,124,000 in 2007, which is net of the noncash losses described below. The distributions
paid in excess of our FFO were paid using proceeds from our offering. Excluding such noncash losses, FFO would
have been $21,566,000 and $3,501,000, respectively. From inception through December 31, 2008, our FFO was
$10,627,000, which was reduced by noncash losses caused by the reduced fair market value of interest rate swaps of
$14,198,000, as described below. From inception through December 31, 2008, we paid cumulative distributions of
$34,038,000. Of this amount, $10,627,000, was covered by our FFO which is net of the noncash losses described
below. The distributions paid in excess of our FFO were paid using proceeds from our offering. Excluding such
noncash losses, FFO would have been $24,825,000.

In order to manage interest rate risk, we enter into interest rate swaps to fix interest rates, which are derivative
financial instruments. These interest rate swaps are required to be recorded at fair market value, even if we have no
intention of terminating these instruments prior to their respective maturity dates. Our FFO reflects cumulative
noncash losses on derivative financial instruments related to our interest rate swaps from inception through
December 31, 2008 in the amount of $14,198,000 resulting from fluctuations in variable interest rates. This change in
fair value is an adjustment to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities. This is shown in our
accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows as a noncash adjustment. See Note 8, Derivative Financial
Instruments, to the Consolidated Financial Statements, for a further discussion of our derivative financial instruments.
All interest rate swaps are marked-to-market with changes in value included in net income (loss) each period until the
instrument matures. We have no intentions of terminating these instruments prior to their respective maturity dates.
The value of our interest rate swaps will fluctuate until the instrument matures and will be zero upon maturity of the
instruments. Therefore, any gains or losses on derivative financial instruments will ultimately be reversed.

See our disclosure regarding FFO in Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations � Funds From Operations.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

See Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters �
Equity Compensation Plan Information, for a discussion of our equity compensation plan information.
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Use of Public Offering Proceeds

On September 20, 2006, we commenced our initial public offering, in which we are offering a minimum of
200,000 shares of our common stock aggregating at least $2,000,000, and a maximum of
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200,000,000 shares of our common stock for $10.00 per share and up to 21,052,632 shares of our common stock
pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan, or the DRIP, at $9.50 per share, aggregating up to $2,200,000,000. The
shares offered have been registered with the SEC on a Registration Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-133652)
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, which was declared effective by the SEC on September 20, 2006. Our
offering will terminate no later than September 20, 2009.

As of December 31, 2008, we had received and accepted subscriptions for 73,824,809 shares of our common stock, or
$737,398,000. As of December 31, 2008, a total of $15,772,000 in distributions were reinvested and 1,660,176 shares
of our common stock were issued under the DRIP.

As of December 31, 2008, we have incurred marketing support fees of $18,410,000, selling commissions of
$50,875,000 and due diligence expense reimbursements of $181,000. We have also incurred organizational and
offering expenses of $8,800,000. Such fees and reimbursements are charged to stockholders� equity (deficit) as such
amounts are reimbursed from the gross proceeds of our offering. The cost of raising funds in our offering as a
percentage of funds raised will not exceed 11.5%.

As of December 31, 2008, we have used $524,756,000 in offering proceeds to purchase our 42 geographically diverse
properties and other real estate related assets and repay debt incurred in connection with such acquisitions.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

Our share repurchase plan allows for share repurchases by us when certain criteria are met by our stockholders. Share
repurchases will be made at the sole discretion of our board of directors. Funds for the repurchase of shares of our
common stock will come exclusively from the proceeds we receive from the sale of shares under the DRIP.

During the three months ended December 31, 2008, we repurchased shares of our common stock as follows:

Maximum
Approximate
Dollar Value

Total Number of
of Shares that

May
Shares

Purchased
Yet be

Purchased
as Part of Under the

Total Number
of Average Price

Publicly
Announced Plans or

Period
Shares

Purchased
Paid per

Share
Plan or

Program(1) Programs

October 1, 2008 to October 31,
2008 46,322 $        9.58 46,322 $             (2)
November 1, 2008 to
November 30, 2008 � $ � � $ �
December 1, 2008 to
December 31, 2008 � $ � � $ �
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(1) Our board of directors adopted a share repurchase plan effective September 20, 2006. Our board of directors
adopted, and we publicly announced, an amended share repurchase plan effective August 25, 2008. Through
December 31, 2008, we had repurchased 109,748 shares of our common stock pursuant to our share repurchase
plan. Our share repurchase plan does not have an expiration date but may be terminated at our board of directors�
discretion.

(2) Subject to funds being available, we will limit the number of shares of our common stock repurchased during any
calendar year to 5.0% of the weighted average number of shares of our common stock outstanding during the
prior calendar year.

57

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 110



Table of Contents

Item 6.  Selected Financial Data.

The following should be read with Item 1A. Risk Factors and Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto. Our
historical results are not necessarily indicative of results for any future period.

The following tables present summarized consolidated financial information, including balance sheet data, statement
of operations data, and statement of cash flows data in a format consistent with our consolidated financial statements
under Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

December 31, April 28, 2006

Selected Financial Data 2008 2007 2006
(Date of

Inception)

BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Total assets $ 1,113,923,000 $ 431,612,000 $ 385,000 $        202,000
Mortgage loan payables, net $ 460,762,000 $ 185,801,000 $ � $ �
Stockholders� equity (deficit) $ 599,320,000 $ 175,590,000 $ (189,000) $ 2,000

Period from
April 28, 2006

(Date of
Inception)

Years Ended December 31, through

2008 2007
December 31,

2006

STATEMENT OF
OPERATIONS DATA:
Total revenues $ 80,418,000 $ 17,626,000 $             �
Loss from continuing operations $ (28,448,000) $ (7,666,000) $ (242,000)
Net loss $ (28,448,000) $ (7,666,000) $ (242,000)
Loss per share � basic and
diluted(1):
Loss from continuing operations $ (0.66) $ (0.77) $ (149.03)
Net loss $ (0.66) $ (0.77) $ (149.03)
STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS DATA:
Cash flows provided by operating
activities $ 20,677,000 $ 7,005,000 $ �
Cash flows used in investing
activities $ (526,475,000) $ (385,440,000) $ �
Cash flows provided by financing
activities $ 628,662,000 $ 383,700,000 $ 202,000
OTHER DATA:
Distributions declared $ 31,180,000 $ 7,250,000 $ �
Distributions declared per share $ 0.73 $ 0.70 $ �
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Funds from operations(2) $ 8,745,000 $ 2,124,000 $ (242,000)
Net operating income(3) $ 52,244,000 $ 11,589,000 $ �

(1) Net loss per share is based upon the weighted average number of shares of our common stock outstanding.
Distributions by us of our current and accumulated earnings and profits for federal income tax purposes are
taxable to stockholders as ordinary income. Distributions in excess of these earnings and profits generally are
treated as a non-taxable reduction of the stockholder�s basis in the shares of our common stock to the extent
thereof (a return of capital for tax purposes) and, thereafter, as taxable gain. These distributions in excess of
earnings and profits will have the effect of deferring taxation of the distributions until the sale of the stockholder�s
common stock.
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(2) For additional information on FFO, see Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations � Funds from Operations, which includes a reconciliation of our GAAP net
income(loss) to FFO for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006
(Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006.

(3) For additional information on net operating income, see Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations � Net Operating Income, which includes a reconciliation of our
GAAP net income(loss) to net operating income for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the
period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006.
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Item 7.  Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The use of the words �we,� �us� or �our� refers to Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. and its subsidiaries,
including Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Holdings, L.P., except where the context otherwise requires.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes
appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Such consolidated financial statements and information
have been prepared to reflect our financial position as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, together with our results of
operations and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006
(Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006.

Forward-Looking Statements

Historical results and trends should not be taken as indicative of future operations. Our statements contained in this
report that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act.
Actual results may differ materially from those included in the forward-looking statements. We intend those
forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe-harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and are including this statement for purposes of complying with
those safe-harbor provisions. Forward-looking statements, which are based on certain assumptions and describe future
plans, strategies and expectations, are generally identifiable by use of the terms such as �expect,� �project,� �may,� �will,�
�should,� �could,� �would,� �intend,� �plan,� �anticipate,� �estimate,� �believe,� �continue,� �predict,� �potential� or the negative of such
terms and other comparable terminology. Our ability to predict results or the actual effect of future plans or strategies
is inherently uncertain. Factors which could have a material adverse effect on our operations and future prospects on a
consolidated basis include, but are not limited to: changes in economic conditions generally and the real estate market
specifically; legislative and regulatory changes, including changes to laws governing the taxation of real estate
investment trusts, or REITs; the availability of capital; changes in interest rates; competition in the real estate industry;
the supply and demand for operating properties in our proposed market areas; changes in accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, or GAAP, policies and guidelines applicable to REITs; the
availability of properties to acquire; the availability of financing and our ongoing relationship with Grubb & Ellis
Company, or Grubb & Ellis, or our sponsor, and its affiliates. These risks and uncertainties should be considered in
evaluating forward-looking statements and undue reliance should not be placed on such statements. Additional
information concerning us and our business, including additional factors that could materially affect our financial
results, including but not limited to the risks described under Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, is included herein and in
our other filings with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC.

Overview and Background

Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc., a Maryland corporation, was incorporated on April 20, 2006. Upon or prior to
the completion of our transition to self-management, we intend to change our name to Healthcare Trust of America,
Inc. We were initially capitalized on April 28, 2006 and therefore we consider that our date of inception. We provide
stockholders the potential for income and growth through investment in a diversified portfolio of real estate properties,
focusing primarily on medical office buildings and healthcare related facilities. We may also invest in other real estate
related assets. We focus primarily on investments that produce recurring income. We have qualified and elected to be
taxed as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code, for federal income tax purposes
and we intend to continue to be taxed as a REIT.

We are conducting a best efforts initial public offering, or our offering, in which we are offering up to
200,000,000 shares of our common stock for $10.00 per share and up to 21,052,632 shares of our common stock
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$2,200,000,000. We will sell shares of our common stock in our offering until the earlier of September 20, 2009, or
the date on which the maximum amount has been sold. As of December 31, 2008, we had received and accepted
subscriptions in our offering for 73,824,809 shares of our common stock, or $737,398,000, excluding shares of our
common stock issued under the DRIP.

We conduct substantially all of our operations through Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Holdings, L.P., to be renamed
Healthcare Trust of America Holdings, L.P., or our operating partnership. We are currently externally advised by
Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Advisor, LLC, or our advisor, pursuant to an advisory agreement, as amended and
restated on November 14, 2008 and effective as of October 24, 2008, or the Advisory Agreement, between us, our
advisor and Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, LLC or Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, who is the managing member of
our advisor. Our advisor is affiliated with us in that we and our advisor have a common officer, who also owns an
indirect equity interest in our advisor. Our advisor engages affiliated entities, including Triple Net Properties Realty,
Inc., or Realty, and Grubb & Ellis Management Services, Inc. to provide various services to us, including property
management services.

The Advisory Agreement expires on September 20, 2009. Our main objectives in amending the Advisory Agreement
on November 14, 2008 were to reduce acquisition and asset management fees and to set the framework for our
transition to self-management. Under the Advisory Agreement, as amended November 14, 2008, our advisor agreed to
use reasonable efforts to cooperate with us as we pursue a self-management program. Upon or prior to completion of
our transition to self-management and/or termination of the Advisory Agreement, we will no longer be advised by our
advisor or consider our company to be sponsored by Grubb & Ellis.

At the commencement of our offering we had minimal assets and operations and we did not believe that it was
efficient at that time to engage our own internal management team. As of March 26, 2009, we have acquired 43
geographically diverse properties and other real estate related assets for a total purchase price of $1,000,520,000. As a
result of our growth and success, our board of directors believes that we now have the critical mass required to support
a self-management structure. Our board of directors believes that self-management will enable us to better position
our company for success in the future for several reasons discussed below:

Management Team.  We believe that our management team, led by Scott D. Peters, has the experience and expertise to
efficiently and effectively operate our company. In addition, we have hired a Chief Accounting Officer, Kellie S.
Pruitt. We have also hired three other employees and have engaged two independent consultants to assist us with
acquisitions, asset management and accounting. We intend to continue to hire additional employees and engage
independent consultants to expand our self-management infrastructure, assist in our transition to a self-managed
company and fulfill other responsibilities, including acquisitions, accounting, asset management, strategic investing
and corporate and securities compliance. Mr. Peters is leading our transition to a self-management structure. Our
internal management team, led by Mr. Peters, will manage our day-to-day operations and oversee and supervise our
employees and third party service providers, who will be retained on an as-needed basis. All key personnel will report
directly to Mr. Peters.

Governance.  An integral part of our self-management program is our experienced board of directors. Our board of
directors provides effective ongoing governance for our company and spends a substantial amount of time overseeing
our transition to self-management. Our governance and management framework is one of our key strengths.

Significantly Reduced Cost.  From inception through December 31, 2008, we incurred to our advisor and its affiliates
approximately $28,479,000 in acquisition fees; approximately $7,767,000 in asset management fees; approximately
$2,963,000 in property management fees; and approximately $1,513,000 in leasing fees. Although we will incur the
costs associated with having our own employees and independent consultants and we expect third party property
management expenses and third party acquisition expenses, including legal fees, due diligence fees and closing costs,
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directors, including a majority of our independent directors,
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previously determined that the fees to our advisor were fair, competitive and commercially reasonable to us and on
terms and conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffiliated third parties, we believe that by
having our own employees and independent consultants manage our operations and retain third party providers, we
will significantly reduce the cost structure of our company.

No Internalization Fees.  Unlike many other non-listed REITs that internalize or pay to acquire various management
functions and personnel, such as advisory and asset management services, from their sponsor or advisor prior to listing
on a national securities exchange for substantial fees, we will not be required to pay such fees under our
self-management program. We believe that by not paying such fees, as well as operating more cost-effectively under
our self-management program, we will save a substantial amount of money. To the extent that our management and
board of directors determine that utilizing third party service providers for certain services is more cost-effective than
conducting such services internally, we will pay for these services based on negotiated terms and conditions consistent
with the current marketplace for such services on an as-needed basis.

Funding of Self-Management.  We believe that the cost of the self-management program will be substantially less than
the cost of external management. Therefore, although we are incurring additional costs now related to our transition to
self-management, we expect the cost of the self-management program to be effectively funded by future cost savings.
Pursuant to the Advisory Agreement, as amended November 14, 2008, we have already reduced acquisition fees and
asset management fees payable to our advisor, which we believe will result in substantial cost savings. In addition, we
anticipate that we will achieve further cost savings in the future as a result of reduced and/or eliminated acquisition
fees, asset management fees, internalization fees and other outside fees.

Dedicated Management and Increased Accountability.  Under our self-management program, our officers and
employees will only work for our company and will not be associated with any outside advisor. Our management
team, led by Mr. Peters, has direct oversight of employees, independent consultants and third party service providers
on an ongoing basis. We believe that these direct reporting relationships along with our performance-based
compensation programs and ongoing oversight by our management team create an environment for and will achieve
increased accountability and efficiency.

Conflicts of Interest.  We believe that self-management works to remove inherent conflicts of interest that necessarily
exist between an externally advised REIT and its advisor. The elimination or reduction of these inherent conflicts of
interest is one of the major reasons that we elected to proceed with the self-management program.

Prior to or upon the completion of our transition to self-management, we intend to change our name to �Healthcare
Trust of America, Inc.�

On December 7, 2007, NNN Realty Advisors, Inc., or NNN Realty Advisors, which previously served as our sponsor,
merged with and into a wholly owned subsidiary of Grubb & Ellis. The transaction was structured as a reverse merger
whereby stockholders of NNN Realty Advisors received shares of common stock of Grubb & Ellis in exchange for
their NNN Realty Advisors shares of common stock and, immediately following the merger, former NNN Realty
Advisor stockholders held approximately 59.5% of the common stock of Grubb & Ellis. As a result of the merger, we
consider Grubb & Ellis to be our sponsor. Following the merger, NNN Healthcare/Office REIT, Inc., NNN
Healthcare/Office REIT Holdings, L.P., NNN Healthcare/Office REIT Advisor, LLC, NNN Healthcare/Office
Management, LLC, Triple Net Properties, LLC and NNN Capital Corp. changed their names to Grubb & Ellis
Healthcare REIT, Inc., Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Holdings, L.P., Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Advisor, LLC,
Grubb & Ellis Healthcare Management, LLC, Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, LLC and Grubb & Ellis Securities, Inc.,
respectively.
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leasable area, or GLA, and one other real estate related asset, for an aggregate purchase price of $966,416,000.
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Business Strategies

We seek to invest in a diversified portfolio of real estate, focusing primarily on investments that produce recurring
income. Our real estate investments focus on medical office buildings and healthcare related facilities. We have also
invested to a limited extent in quality commercial office buildings and other real estate related assets. However, we do
not presently intend to invest more than 15.0% of our total assets in other real estate related assets. Our other real
estate related assets will generally focus on common and preferred stock of public or private real estate companies and
certain other securities. We seek to maximize long-term stockholder value by generating sustainable growth in cash
flow and portfolio value. In order to achieve these objectives, we may invest using a number of investment structures
which may include direct acquisitions, joint ventures, leveraged investments, issuing securities for property and direct
and indirect investments in real estate. In order to maintain our exemption from regulation as an investment company
under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or the Investment Company Act, we may be required to
limit our investments in other real estate related assets.

In addition, when and as determined appropriate by our advisor and management, the portfolio may also include
properties in various stages of development other than those producing recurring income. These stages would include,
without limitation, unimproved land, both with and without entitlements and permits, property to be redeveloped and
repositioned, newly constructed properties and properties in lease-up or other stabilization, all of which will have
limited or no relevant operating histories and no recurring income. Our advisor and management will make this
determination based upon a variety of factors, including the available risk adjusted returns for such properties when
compared with other available properties, the appropriate diversification of the portfolio, and our objectives of
realizing both recurring income and capital appreciation upon the ultimate sale of properties. For each of our
investments, regardless of property type, our advisor and management seek to ensure that we invest in properties with
the following attributes:

� Quality.  We seek to acquire properties that are suitable for their intended use with a quality of construction
that is capable of sustaining the property�s investment potential for the long-term, assuming funding of
budgeted maintenance, repairs and capital improvements.

� Location.  We seek to acquire properties that are located in established or otherwise appropriate markets for
comparable properties, with access and visibility suitable to meet the needs of its occupants.

� Market; and Supply and Demand.  We focus on local or regional markets which have potential for stable and
growing property level cash flow over the long-term. These determinations will be based in part on an
evaluation of local economic, demographic and regulatory factors affecting the property. For instance, we will
favor markets that indicate a growing population and employment base or markets that exhibit potential
limitations on additions to supply, such as barriers to new construction. Barriers to new construction include
lack of available land and stringent zoning restrictions. In addition, we will generally seek to limit our
investments in areas that have limited potential for growth, except where we believe that we have a competitive
advantage.

� Predictable Capital Needs.  We seek to acquire properties where the future expected capital needs can be
reasonably projected in a manner that would allow us to meet our objectives of growth in cash flow and
preservation of capital and stability.

� Cash Flow.  We seek to acquire properties where the current and projected cash flow, including the potential
for appreciation in value, would allow us to meet our overall investment objectives. We will evaluate cash flow
as well as expected growth and the potential for appreciation.
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We will not invest more than 10.0% of the offering proceeds available for investment in unimproved or non-income
producing properties or in other investments relating to unimproved or non-income producing property. A property:
(1) not acquired for the purpose of producing rental or other operating income, or (2) with no development or
construction in process or planned in good faith to commence within one year will be considered unimproved or
non-income producing property for purposes of this limitation.
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We are not limited as to the geographic area where we may acquire properties. We are not specifically limited in the
number or size of properties we may acquire or on the percentage of our assets that we may invest in a single property
or investment. The number and mix of properties we acquire will depend upon real estate and market conditions and
other circumstances existing at the time we are acquiring our properties and making our investments and the amount
of proceeds we raise in our offering and potential future offerings.

Critical Accounting Policies

We believe that our critical accounting policies are those that require significant judgments and estimates such as
those related to revenue recognition, allowance for uncollectible accounts, capitalization of expenditures, depreciation
of assets, impairment of real estate, properties held for sale, purchase price allocation, and qualification as a REIT.
These estimates are made and evaluated on an on-going basis using information that is currently available as well as
various other assumptions believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. These estimates are made and evaluated on an on-going basis using
information that is currently available as well as various other assumptions believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates, perhaps in material adverse ways, and those estimates
could be different under different assumptions or conditions.

Revenue Recognition, Tenant Receivables and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 13, Accounting for Leases, or
SFAS No. 13, as amended and interpreted, minimum annual rental revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the term of the related lease (including rent holidays). Differences between rental income recognized and amounts
contractually due under the lease agreements are credited or charged, as applicable, to rent receivable. Tenant
reimbursement revenue, which is comprised of additional amounts recoverable from tenants for common area
maintenance expenses and certain other recoverable expenses, is recognized as revenue in the period in which the
related expenses are incurred. Tenant reimbursements are recognized and presented in accordance with Emerging
Issues Task Force, or EITF, Issue No. 99-19, Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent, or Issue
No. 99-19. Issue No. 99-19 requires that these reimbursements be recorded on a gross basis, as we are generally the
primary obligor with respect to purchasing goods and services from third-party suppliers, have discretion in selecting
the supplier and have credit risk. We recognize lease termination fees if there is a signed termination letter agreement,
all of the conditions of the agreement have been met, and the tenant is no longer occupying the property.

Tenant receivables and unbilled deferred rent receivables are carried net of the allowances for uncollectible current
tenant receivables and unbilled deferred rent. An allowance is maintained for estimated losses resulting from the
inability of certain tenants to meet the contractual obligations under their lease agreements. We also maintain an
allowance for deferred rent receivables arising from the straight-lining of rents. Such allowance is charged to bad debt
expense which is included in general and administrative on our accompanying consolidated statement of operations.
Our determination of the adequacy of these allowances is based primarily upon evaluations of historical loss
experience, the tenant�s financial condition, security deposits, letters of credit, lease guarantees and current economic
conditions and other relevant factors.

Capitalization of Expenditures and Depreciation of Assets
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The cost of operating properties includes the cost of land and completed buildings and related improvements.
Expenditures that increase the service life of properties are capitalized and the cost of maintenance and repairs is
charged to expense as incurred. The cost of building and improvements is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of 39 years and the shorter of the lease term
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or useful life, ranging from one month to 241 months, respectively. Furniture, fixtures and equipment is depreciated
over five years. When depreciable property is retired, replaced or disposed of, the related costs and accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss reflected in operations.

Impairment

Our properties are carried at the lower of historical cost less accumulated depreciation or fair value less costs to sell.
We assess the impairment of a real estate asset when events or changes in circumstances indicate its carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Indicators we consider important and that we believe could trigger an impairment review
include the following:

� significant negative industry or economic trends;

� a significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating results; and

� a significant change in the manner in which the asset is used.

In the event that the carrying amount of a property exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows (excluding
interest) that would be expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the property, we would recognize an
impairment loss to the extent the carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair value of the property. The estimation of
expected future net cash flows is inherently uncertain and relies on subjective assumptions dependent upon future and
current market conditions and events that affect the ultimate value of the property. It will require us to make
assumptions related to future rental rates, tenant allowances, operating expenditures, property taxes, capital
improvements, occupancy levels, and the estimated proceeds generated from the future sale of the property.

Properties Held for Sale

We account for our properties held for sale in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long Lived Assets, or SFAS No. 144, which addresses financial accounting and reporting for the
impairment or disposal of long-lived assets and requires that, in a period in which a component of an entity either has
been disposed of or is classified as held for sale, the income statements for current and prior periods shall report the
results of operations of the component as discontinued operations.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, at such time as a property is held for sale, such property is carried at the lower of:
(1) its carrying amount or (2) fair value less costs to sell. In addition, a property being held for sale ceases to be
depreciated. We classify operating properties as property held for sale in the period in which all of the following
criteria are met:

� management, having the authority to approve the action, commits to a plan to sell the asset;

� the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such assets;

� an active program to locate a buyer and other actions required to complete the plan to sell the asset has been
initiated;

� the sale of the asset is probable and the transfer of the asset is expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year;
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� the asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value; and

� given the actions required to complete the plan to sell the asset, it is unlikely that significant changes to the
plan would be made or that the plan would be withdrawn.

Purchase Price Allocation

In accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, we, with assistance from independent valuation
specialists, allocate the purchase price of acquired properties to tangible and identified intangible
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assets and liabilities based on their respective fair values. The allocation to tangible assets (building and land) is based
upon our determination of the value of the property as if it were to be replaced and vacant using discounted cash flow
models similar to those used by independent appraisers. Factors considered by us include an estimate of carrying costs
during the expected lease-up periods considering current market conditions and costs to execute similar leases.
Additionally, the purchase price of the applicable property is allocated to the above or below market value of in place
leases, the value of in place leases, tenant relationships and above or below market debt assumed.

The value allocable to the above or below market component of the acquired in place leases is determined based upon
the present value (using a discount rate which reflects the risks associated with the acquired leases) of the difference
between: (1) the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to the lease over its remaining term and (2) management�s
estimate of the amounts that would be paid using fair market rates over the remaining term of the lease. The amounts
allocated to above market leases are included in identified intangible assets, net in our accompanying consolidated
balance sheets and amortized to rental income over the remaining non-cancelable lease term of the acquired leases
with each property. The amounts allocated to below market lease values are included in identified intangible
liabilities, net in our accompanying consolidated balance sheets and amortized to rental income over the remaining
non-cancelable lease term plus any below market renewal options of the acquired leases with each property.

The total amount of other intangible assets acquired is further allocated to in place lease costs and the value of tenant
relationships based on management�s evaluation of the specific characteristics of each tenant�s lease and our overall
relationship with that respective tenant. Characteristics considered by us in allocating these values include the nature
and extent of the credit quality and expectations of lease renewals, among other factors. The amounts allocated to in
place lease costs are included in identified intangible assets, net in our accompanying consolidated balance sheets and
will be amortized over the average remaining non-cancelable lease term of the acquired leases with each property. The
amounts allocated to the value of tenant relationships are included in identified intangible assets, net in our
accompanying consolidated balance sheets and are amortized over the average remaining non-cancelable lease term of
the acquired leases plus a market lease term.

The value allocable to above or below market debt is determined based upon the present value of the difference
between the cash flow stream of the assumed mortgage and the cash flow stream of a market rate mortgage. The
amounts allocated to above or below market debt are included in mortgage loan payables, net on our accompanying
consolidated balance sheets and amortized to interest expense over the remaining term of the assumed mortgage.

These allocations are subject to change based on information received within one year of the purchase related to one
or more events identified at the time of purchase which confirm the value of an asset or liability received in an
acquisition of property.

Qualification as a REIT

We qualified and elected to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Code for federal income tax
purposes beginning with our tax year ended December 31, 2007 and we intend to continue to be taxed as a REIT. To
continue to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, we must meet certain organizational and operational
requirements, including a requirement to pay distributions to our stockholders of at least 90.0% of our annual taxable
income. As a REIT, we generally are not subject to federal income tax on net income that we distribute to our
stockholders.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we will then be subject to federal income taxes on our taxable
income and will not be permitted to qualify for treatment as a REIT for federal income tax purposes for four years
following the year during which qualification is lost unless the Internal Revenue Service grants us relief under certain
statutory provisions. Such an event could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and net cash
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the Consolidated Financial Statements, for a discussion
of recently issued accounting pronouncements.

Acquisitions in 2009, 2008 and 2007

See Note 3, Real Estate Investments and Note 23, Subsequent Events, to the Consolidated Financial Statements, for a
discussion of our acquisitions.

Factors Which May Influence Results of Operations

We are not aware of any material trends or uncertainties, other than national economic conditions affecting real estate
generally and those risks listed in Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, that may reasonably be expected to have a material
impact, favorable or unfavorable, on revenues or income from the acquisition, management and operation of
properties.

Rental Income

The amount of rental income generated by our properties depends principally on our ability to maintain the occupancy
rates of currently leased space and to lease currently available space and space available from unscheduled lease
terminations at the existing rental rates. Negative trends in one or more of these factors could adversely affect our
rental income in future periods.

Offering Proceeds

If we fail to continue to raise proceeds from the sale of shares of our common stock, we will be limited in our ability
to invest in a diversified real estate portfolio which could result in increased exposure to local and regional economic
downturns and the poor performance of one or more of our properties and, therefore, expose our stockholders to
increased risk. In addition, some of our general and administrative expenses are fixed regardless of the size of our real
estate portfolio. Therefore, depending on the amount of offering proceeds we raise, we would expend a larger portion
of our income on operating expenses. This would reduce our profitability and, in turn, the amount of net income
available for distribution to our stockholders.

Scheduled Lease Expirations

As of December 31, 2008, our consolidated properties were 91.3% occupied. During the remainder of 2009, 6.3% of
the occupied GLA will expire. Our leasing strategy for 2009 focuses on negotiating renewals for leases scheduled to
expire during the remainder of the year. If we are unable to negotiate such renewals, we will try to identify new
tenants or collaborate with existing tenants who are seeking additional space to occupy. Of the leases expiring in
2009, we anticipate, but cannot assure, that a majority of the tenants will renew for another term.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, or the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, and related laws, regulations and standards
relating to corporate governance and disclosure requirements applicable to public companies, have increased the costs
of compliance with corporate governance, reporting and disclosure practices which are now required of us. These
costs may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and could impact our ability to continue to pay
distributions at current rates to our stockholders. Furthermore, we expect that these costs will increase in the future
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due to our continuing implementation of compliance programs mandated by these requirements. Any increased costs
may affect our ability to distribute funds to our stockholders. As part of our on-going compliance with the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, we are providing management�s assessment of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2008.

In addition, these laws, rules and regulations create new legal bases for potential administrative enforcement, civil and
criminal proceedings against us in the event of non-compliance, thereby increasing the
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risks of liability and potential sanctions against us. We expect that our efforts to comply with these laws and
regulations will continue to involve significant and potentially increasing costs, and that our failure to comply with
these laws could result in fees, fines, penalties or administrative remedies against us.

Results of Operations

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and the Period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception)
through December 31, 2006

Our operating results are primarily comprised of income derived from our portfolio of properties.

We had limited results of operations for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31,
2006 and therefore our results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 are not comparable.
Except where otherwise noted, the change in our results of operations is primarily due to owning 42 geographically
diverse properties and other real estate related assets, 20 geographically diverse properties and zero properties as of
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Rental Income

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, rental income was $80,415,000, $17,626,000 and $0, respectively. For the year ended
December 31, 2008, rental income was primarily comprised of base rent of $60,996,000 and expense recoveries of
$15,367,000. For the year ended December 31, 2007, rental income was primarily comprised of base rent of
$13,785,000 and expense recoveries of $3,075,000. The increase in rental income is due to the increase in the number
of properties discussed above.

The aggregate occupancy for our properties was 91.3% as of December 31, 2008 as compared to 88.6% as of
December 31, 2007.

Rental Expenses

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, rental expenses were $28,174,000, $6,037,000 and $0, respectively. Rental expenses consisted of
the following for the periods then ended:

Period from
April 28, 2006

(Date of
Inception)

Years Ended December 31, through

2008 2007
December 31,

2006

Real estate taxes $ 9,632,000 $ 1,689,000 $             �
Utilities 5,774,000 1,534,000 �
Building maintenance 5,395,000 1,321,000 �
Property Management fees 2,372,000 591,000 �
Administration 1,988,000 160,000 �
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Grounds maintenance 1,320,000 348,000 �
Non-recoverable operating expenses 877,000 113,000 �
Insurance 679,000 210,000 �
Other 137,000 71,000 �

Total rental expenses $ 28,174,000 $ 6,037,000 $ �

The increase in rental expenses is primarily due to owning 41 geographically diverse properties and one real estate
related asset, 20 geographically diverse properties and zero properties as of December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.
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General and Administrative

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, general and administrative was $9,560,000, $3,297,000 and $242,000, respectively. General and
administrative consisted of the following for the periods then ended:

Period from
April 28, 2006

(Date of
Inception)

Years Ended December 31, through

2008 2007
December 31,

2006

Asset management fees $ 6,177,000(a) $ 1,590,000(a) $             �
Professional and legal fees 1,398,000(b) 620,000(b) 68,000
Bad debt expense 442,000 11,000 �
Directors� and officers� insurance premiums 279,000(c) 242,000(c) 68,000
Directors� fees 264,000(d) 249,000(d) 55,000
Postage 138,000(e) 24,000(e) �
Restricted stock compensation 130,000(f) 96,000(f) 51,000
Investor services 130,000(g) 33,000(g) �
Acquisition related audit fees 122,000(h) 372,000(h) �
Bank charges 114,000(i) 4,000(i) �
Other 366,000 56,000 �

Total general and administrative $ 9,560,000 $ 3,297,000 $ 242,000

The increase in general and administrative of $6,263,000 for the year ended December 31, 2008, as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2007, and the increase of $3,055,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007, as compared to
the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006, was due to the following:

(a) Asset management fees

The increase in asset management fees was due to the increase in the number of properties and other real estate related
assets discussed above.

(b) Professional and legal fees

The increase in professional and legal fees of $778,000 for the year ended December 31, 2008, as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2007 was primarily due to increased professional and legal fees of approximately $403,000
in connection with outside consulting in pursuit of, among other things, our self-management program, increased audit
fees of $254,000 related to our Form 10-Q and Form 10-K SEC filings due to our increase in size and consulting fees
of approximately $90,000 paid to Mr. Peters for the period from August 1, 2008 through October 31, 2008, in
accordance with the consulting agreement dated August 28, 2008. The increase in professional and legal fees of
$552,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007, as compared to the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception)
through December 31, 2006 was primarily due to the increase of $306,000 in audit fees and the increase of $83,000 in
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professional fees in connection with our Form 10-Q and Form 10-K SEC filings due to our increase in size.

(c) Directors� and officers� insurance premiums

The increase in directors� and officers� insurance premiums of $37,000 for the year ended December 31, 2008, as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2007 was due to increased insurance premiums in the fourth quarter of
2008 due to an increase in coverage. The increase in directors� and officers� insurance premiums of $174,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2007, as compared to the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006 was due to a full year of insurance coverage expensed in 2007 as compared to less than four
months of insurance coverage expensed in 2006.

(d) Directors� fees
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The increase in directors� fees of $15,000 for the year ended December 31, 2008, as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2007 was due to a full year of directors� fees expensed in 2008 for five directors as compared to four
directors for four months and five directors for eight months in 2007. The increase in directors� fees of $194,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2007, as compared to the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006 was due to a full year of directors� fees expensed in 2007 as compared to less than four months of
directors� fees expensed in 2006.

(e) Postage

The increase in postage of $114,000 for the year ended December 31, 2008, as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2007 and the increase in postage of $24,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007, as compared to the
period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006 was primarily due to increased proxy,
distributions and investor statement mailings.

(f) Restricted stock compensation

The increase in restricted stock compensation of $34,000 for the year ended December 31, 2008, as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2007 was due to a full year of amortization of the directors� shares expensed in 2008 for five
directors, and the expense associated with Mr. Peters� award of 40,000 shares of restricted common stock on
November 14, 2008 under our 2006 Incentive Plan, as compared to amortization of the directors� shares expensed for
four directors for four months and five directors for eight months in 2007. The increase in restricted stock
compensation of $45,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007, as compared to the period from April 28, 2006 (Date
of Inception) through December 31, 2006 was due to a full year of amortization of the directors� shares expensed in
2007 as compared to less than four months of directors� shares expensed in 2006.

(g) Investor services

The increase in investor services of $97,000 for the year ended December 31, 2008, as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2007 and the increase in investor services of $33,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007, as
compared to the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006 was primarily due to an
increased number of stockholders.

(h) Acquisition related audit fees

The decrease in acquisition related audit fees of $250,000 for the year ended December 31, 2008, as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2007 was due to the fact that for the year ended December 31, 2008, there were fewer
acquisitions that were subject to the provisions of Article 3-14 of Regulation S-X, which resulted in fewer acquisition
related audits. The increase in acquisition related audit fees of $372,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007, as
compared to the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006 was due to the fact that
there were no acquisitions in 2006.

(i) Bank charges

The increase in bank charges of $110,000 for the year ended December 31, 2008, as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2007 and the $4,000 increase for the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared to the period from
April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006 was primarily due to having an increase in banking
activity resulting from an increase in the number of assets. We owned 42, 20 and zero geographically diverse
properties and other real estate related assets as of December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Depreciation and Amortization

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, depreciation and amortization was $37,398,000, $9,790,000 and $0, respectively. Depreciation
and amortization consisted of the following for the periods then ended:

Period from
April 28, 2006

(Date of
Inception)

Years Ended December 31, through

2008 2007
December 31,

2006

Depreciation of properties $ 20,484,000 $ 4,616,000 $             �
Amortization of identified intangible assets 16,818,000 5,166,000 �
Amortization of lease commissions 93,000 7,000 �
Other 3,000 1,000 �

Total depreciation and amortization $ 37,398,000 $ 9,790,000 $ �

Interest Expense

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, interest expense was $34,164,000, $6,400,000 and $0, respectively. Interest expense consisted of
the following for the periods then ended:

Period from
April 28, 2006

(Date of
Inception)

Years Ended December 31, through

2008 2007
December 31,

2006

Interest expense on our mortgage loan payables $ 18,492,000 $ 4,145,000 $             �
Interest expense on our secured revolving line of credit
with LaSalle and KeyBank 1,340,000 600,000 �
Loss on derivative financial instruments 12,821,000 1,377,000 �
Amortization of deferred financing fees associated with
our mortgage loan payables 914,000 90,000 �
Amortization of deferred financing fees associated with
our line of credit 377,000 80,000 �
Amortization of debt discount 110,000 7,000 �
Unused line of credit fees 108,000 17,000 �
Interest expense on our unsecured note payable to affiliate 2,000 84,000 �

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 136



Total interest expense $ 34,164,000 $ 6,400,000 $ �

The increase in interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2008 as compared to the year ended December 31,
2007 was primarily due to an increase in our mortgage loan payables to $460,762,000 as of December 31, 2008 from
$185,801,000 as of December 31, 2007. We did not have any debt for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of
Inception) through December 31, 2006.

In addition, interest expense increased as a result of the non-cash mark to market adjustments we made on our interest
rate swaps. We use interest rate swaps in order to minimize the impact to us of fluctuations in interest rates. To
achieve our objectives, we borrow at fixed rates and variable rates. We also enter into derivative financial instruments
such as interest rate swaps in order to mitigate our interest rate risk on a related financial instrument. We do not enter
into derivative or interest rate transactions for speculative purposes. Derivatives not designated as hedges are not
speculative and are used to manage our exposure to interest rate movements.

71

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 137



Table of Contents

Interest and Dividend Income

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, interest and dividend income was $469,000, $224,000 and $0, respectively. For the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, interest and dividend income was related primarily to interest earned on our money
market accounts. The increase in interest and dividend income was due to having increasingly higher cash balances in
2008 and 2007 as compared to the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We are dependent upon the net proceeds from our offering to conduct our activities. Our ability to raise funds through
our offering is dependent on general economic conditions, general market conditions for REITs and our operating
performance. The capital required to purchase real estate and other real estate related assets is obtained from our
offering and from any indebtedness that we may incur.

Our principal demands for funds continue to be for acquisitions of real estate and other real estate related assets, to
pay operating expenses and interest on our outstanding indebtedness and to make distributions to our stockholders. In
addition, we require resources to make certain payments to our advisor or its affiliates for reimbursement of certain
organizational and offering expenses and to our dealer manager or its affiliates for selling commissions,
non-accountable marketing support fees and due diligence expense reimbursements.

Generally, cash needs for items other than acquisitions of real estate and other real estate related assets continue to be
met from operations, borrowing, and the net proceeds of our offering. We believe that these cash resources will be
sufficient to satisfy our cash requirements for the foreseeable future, and we do not anticipate a need to raise funds
from other than these sources within the next 12 months.

We evaluate potential additional investments and engage in negotiations with real estate sellers, developers, brokers,
investment managers, lenders and others on our behalf. Until we invest the majority of the proceeds of our offering in
real estate and other real estate related assets, we may invest in short-term, highly liquid or other authorized
investments. Such short-term investments will not earn significant returns, and we cannot predict how long it will take
to fully invest the proceeds in real estate and other real estate related assets. The number of properties we may acquire
and other investments we will make will depend upon the number of shares of our common stock sold in our offering
and the resulting amount of the net proceeds available for investment. However, there may be a delay between the sale
of shares of our common stock and our investments in real estate and other real estate related assets, which could
result in a delay in the benefits to our stockholders, if any, of returns generated from our investments� operations.

When we acquire a property, we prepare a capital plan that contemplates the estimated capital needs of that
investment. In addition to operating expenses, capital needs may also include costs of refurbishment, tenant
improvements or other major capital expenditures. The capital plan also sets forth the anticipated sources of the
necessary capital, which may include a line of credit or other loan established with respect to the investment,
operating cash generated by the investment, additional equity investments from us or joint venture partners or, when
necessary, capital reserves. Any capital reserve would be established from the gross proceeds of our offering, proceeds
from sales of other investments, operating cash generated by other investments or other cash on hand. In some cases, a
lender may require us to establish capital reserves for a particular investment. The capital plan for each investment
will be adjusted through ongoing, regular reviews of our portfolio or as necessary to respond to unanticipated
additional capital needs.

Other Liquidity Needs
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In the event that there is a shortfall in net cash available due to various factors, including, without limitation, the
timing of distributions or the timing of the collections of receivables, we may seek to obtain capital to pay
distributions by means of secured or unsecured debt financing through one or more third parties, or our advisor or its
affiliates. There are currently no limits or restrictions on the use of proceeds from our advisor or its affiliate which
would prohibit us from making the proceeds available for distribution. We may
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also pay distributions from cash from capital transactions, including, without limitation, the sale of one or more of our
properties.

As of December 31, 2008, we estimate that our expenditures for capital improvements will require up to $4,836,000
within the next 12 months. As of December 31, 2008, we had $5,564,000 of restricted cash in loan impounds and
reserve accounts for such capital expenditures. We cannot provide assurance, however, that we will not exceed these
estimated expenditure and distribution levels or be able to obtain additional sources of financing on commercially
favorable terms or at all.

If we experience lower occupancy levels, reduced rental rates, reduced revenues as a result of asset sales, increased
capital expenditures and leasing costs compared to historical levels due to competitive market conditions for new and
renewal leases, the effect would be a reduction of net cash provided by operating activities. If such a reduction of net
cash provided by operating activities is realized, we may have a cash flow deficit in subsequent periods. Our estimate
of net cash available is based on various assumptions which are difficult to predict, including the levels of leasing
activity and related leasing costs. Any changes in these assumptions could impact our financial results and our ability
to fund working capital and unanticipated cash needs.

Cash Flows

Cash flows provided by operating activities for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from
April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006, were $20,677,000, $7,005,000 and $0, respectively.
For the year ended December 31, 2008, cash flows provided by operating activities related primarily to operations
from our 42 properties and real estate related assets. For the year ended December 31, 2007, cash flows provided by
operating activities related primarily to operations from our 20 properties. We anticipate cash flows from operating
activities will increase as we purchase more properties.

Cash flows used in investing activities for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from
April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006, were $526,475,000, $385,440,000 and $0,
respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2008, cash flows used in investing activities related primarily to the
acquisition of our 21 properties in the amount of $503,638,000. For the year ended December 31, 2007, cash flows
used in investing activities related primarily to the acquisition of our 20 properties in the amount of $380,398,000.
Cash flows used in investing activities is heavily dependent upon the deployment of our offering proceeds in
properties and real estate related assets.

Cash flows provided by financing activities for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from
April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006, were $628,662,000, $383,700,000 and $202,000,
respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2008, cash flows provided by financing activities related primarily to
funds raised from investors in the amount of $528,816,000 and borrowings on mortgage loan payables of
$227,695,000, partially offset by net payments under our secured revolving line of credit with LaSalle and KeyBank
of $51,801,000, the payment of offering costs of $54,339,000, distributions of $14,943,000 and principal repayments
of $1,832,000 on mortgage loan payables. Additional cash outflows related to deferred financing costs of $3,688,000
in connection with the debt financing for our acquisitions. For the year ended December 31, 2007, cash flows
provided by financing activities related primarily to funds raised from investors in the amount of $210,937,000,
borrowings on mortgage loan payables of $148,906,000 and net borrowings under our secured revolving line of credit
with LaSalle and KeyBank of $51,801,000, partially offset by principal repayments of $151,000 on mortgage loan
payables, offering costs of $22,009,000 and distributions of $3,323,000. Additional cash outflows related to debt
financing costs of $2,496,000 in connection with the debt financing for our acquisitions. For the period from April 28,
2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006, cash flows provided by financing activities related to $2,000
from the sale of 200 shares of our common stock to our advisor and $200,000 invested in our operating partnership
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Distributions

The income tax treatment for distributions reportable for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was as
follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006

Ordinary income $ 5,879,000 21.0% $ 915,000 15.3% $  �   �%
Capital gain � � � � � �
Return of capital 22,163,000 79.0 5,081,000 84.7 � �

$ 28,042,000 100% $ 5,996,000 100% $ � �%

See Item 5. Market for Registrant�s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities � Distributions, for a further discussion of our distributions.

Capital Resources

Financing

We anticipate that aggregate borrowings, both secured and unsecured, will not exceed 60.0% of all of our properties�
and other real estate related assets� combined fair market values, as determined at the end of each calendar year
beginning with our first full year of operations. For these purposes, the fair market value of each asset will be equal to
the purchase price paid for the asset or, if the asset was appraised subsequent to the date of purchase, then the fair
market value will be equal to the value reported in the most recent independent appraisal of the asset. Our policies do
not limit the amount we may borrow with respect to any individual investment. As of December 31, 2008, our
aggregate borrowings were 47.9% of all of our properties� and other real estate related assets� combined fair market
values.

Our charter precludes us from borrowing in excess of 300.0% of the value of our net assets, unless approved by a
majority of our independent directors and the justification for such excess borrowing is disclosed to our stockholders
in our next quarterly report. For the purposes of this determination, net assets are our total assets, other than
intangibles, calculated at cost before deducting depreciation, amortization, bad debt and other similar non-cash
reserves, less total liabilities and computed at least quarterly on a consistently-applied basis. Generally, the preceding
calculation is expected to approximate 75.0% of the sum of the aggregate cost of our real estate and real estate related
assets before depreciation, amortization, bad debt and other similar non-cash reserves. As of March 27, 2009 and
December 31, 2008, our leverage did not exceed 300.0% of the value of our net assets.

Mortgage Loan Payables, Net

See Note 7, Mortgage Loan Payables, Net and Unsecured Note Payables to Affiliate � Mortgage Loan Payables, Net, to
the Consolidated Financial Statements, for a further discussion of our mortgage loan payables, net.

Unsecured Note Payables to Affiliate
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See Note 7, Mortgage Loan Payables, Net and Unsecured Note Payables to Affiliate � Unsecured Note Payables to
Affiliate, to the Consolidated Financial Statements, for a further discussion of our unsecured note payables to affiliate.

Line of Credit

See Note 9, Line of Credit, to the Consolidated Financial Statements, for a further discussion of our line of credit.
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REIT Requirements

In order to continue to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, we are required to make distributions to our
stockholders of at least 90.0% of REIT taxable income. In the event that there is a shortfall in net cash available due to
factors including, without limitation, the timing of such distributions or the timing of the collections of receivables, we
may seek to obtain capital to pay distributions by means of secured debt financing through one or more third parties.
We may also pay distributions from cash from capital transactions including, without limitation, the sale of one or
more of our properties.

Commitments and Contingencies

See Note 11, Commitments and Contingencies, to the Consolidated Financial Statements, for a further discussion of
our commitments and contingencies.

Debt Service Requirements

One of our principal liquidity needs is the payment of principal and interest on outstanding indebtedness. As of
December 31, 2008, we had fixed and variable mortgage loan payables outstanding in the principal amount of
$462,542,000 ($460,762,000, net of discount) secured by our properties. We are required by the terms of the
applicable loan documents to meet certain financial covenants, such as minimum net worth and liquidity amounts, and
reporting requirements. As of December 31, 2008, we were in compliance with all such requirements and we expect to
remain in compliance with all such requirements for the next 12 months.

As of December 31, 2008, we did not have any amounts outstanding under our secured revolving line of credit with
LaSalle and KeyBank.

As of December 31, 2008, the weighted average interest rate on our outstanding debt was 4.07% per annum.

Contractual Obligations

The following table provides information with respect to the maturities and scheduled principal repayments of our
secured mortgage loan as of December 31, 2008. The table does not reflect any available extension options.

Payments Due by Period
Less than

1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years
More than

5 Years
(2009) (2010-2011) (2012-2013) (After 2013) Total

Principal payments �
fixed rate debt $   9,475,000 $ 3,380,000 $ 17,559,000 $   110,644,000 $ 141,058,000
Interest payments �
fixed rate debt 8,192,000 15,184,000 14,375,000 17,139,000 54,890,000
Principal payments �
variable rate debt 2,425,000 319,059,000 � � 321,484,000
Interest payments �
variable rate debt
(based on rates in
effect as of

10,999,000 15,107,000 � � 26,106,000
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Total $ 31,091,000 $ 352,730,000 $ 31,934,000 $ 127,783,000 $ 543,538,000

The table above does not reflect all available extension options. Of the amounts maturing in 2010 and 2011,
$245,427,000 have two one year extensions available and $54,717,000 have a one year extension available.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, we had no off-balance sheet transactions nor do we currently have any such
arrangements or obligations.
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Inflation

We are exposed to inflation risk as income from future long-term leases is the primary source of our cash flows from
operations. There are provisions in the majority of our tenant leases that protect us from the impact of inflation. These
provisions include rent steps, reimbursement billings for operating expense pass-through charges, real estate tax and
insurance reimbursements on a per square foot allowance. However, due to the long-term nature of the leases, among
other factors, the leases may not re-set frequently enough to cover inflation.

Funds from Operations

One of our objectives is to provide cash distributions to our stockholders from cash generated by our operations. Due
to certain unique operating characteristics of real estate companies, the National Association of Real Estate
Investment Trusts, or NAREIT, an industry trade group, has promulgated a measure known as Funds From
Operations, or FFO, which it believes more accurately reflects the operating performance of a REIT such as us. FFO
is not equivalent to our net income or loss as determined under GAAP.

We define FFO, a non-GAAP measure, consistent with the standards established by the White Paper on FFO approved
by the Board of Governors of NAREIT, as revised in February 2004, or the White Paper. The White Paper defines
FFO as net income or loss computed in accordance with GAAP, excluding gains or losses from sales of property but
including asset impairment writedowns, plus depreciation and amortization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated
partnerships and joint ventures. Adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures are calculated to
reflect FFO.

The historical accounting convention used for real estate assets requires straight-line depreciation of buildings and
improvements, which implies that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time. Since real estate
values historically rise and fall with market conditions, presentations of operating results for a REIT, using historical
accounting for depreciation, could be less informative. The use of FFO is recommended by the REIT industry as a
supplemental performance measure.

Presentation of this information is intended to assist the reader in comparing the operating performance of different
REITs, although it should be noted that not all REITs calculate FFO the same way, so comparisons with other REITs
may not be meaningful. Furthermore, FFO is not necessarily indicative of cash flow available to fund cash needs and
should not be considered as an alternative to net income as an indication of our performance. Our FFO reporting
complies with NAREIT�s policy described above.

The following is the calculation of FFO for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from
April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006:

Period from
April 28, 2006

(Date of Inception)
Years Ended December 31, through

2008 2007 December 31, 2006

Net loss $ (28,448,000) $ (7,666,000) $        (242,000)
Add:
Depreciation and amortization � consolidated properties 37,398,000 9,790,000 �
Less:
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Depreciation and amortization related to minority
interests (205,000) � �

FFO $ 8,745,000 $ 2,124,000 $ (242,000)

FFO per share � basic and diluted $ 0.20 $ 0.21 $ (149.20)

Weighted average common shares outstanding � basic
and diluted 42,844,603 9,952,771 1,622

FFO reflects losses on derivative financial instruments related to our interest rate swaps in the amount of $12,821,000,
$1,377,000 and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and the for the period from
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April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006. See Note 8, Derivative Financial Instruments, to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, for a further discussion of our interest rate swaps.

Net Operating Income

Net operating income is a non-GAAP financial measure that is defined as net income (loss), computed in accordance
with GAAP, generated from properties before interest expense, general and administrative expenses, depreciation,
amortization, interest and dividend income and minority interests. We believe that net operating income provides an
accurate measure of the operating performance of our operating assets because net operating income excludes certain
items that are not associated with management of the properties. Additionally, we believe that net operating income is
a widely accepted measure of comparative operating performance in the real estate community. However, our use of
the term net operating income may not be comparable to that of other real estate companies as they may have different
methodologies for computing this amount.

To facilitate understanding of this financial measure, a reconciliation of net loss to net operating income has been
provided for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception)
through December 31, 2006:

Period from
April 28, 2006

(Date of Inception)
Years Ended December 31, through

2008 2007 December 31, 2006

Net loss $ (28,448,000) $ (7,666,000) $        (242,000)
Add:
General and administrative 9,560,000 3,297,000 242,000
Depreciation and amortization 37,398,000 9,790,000 �
Interest expense 34,164,000 6,400,000 �
Less:
Interest and dividend income (469,000) (224,000) �
Minority interests 39,000 (8,000) �

Net operating income $ 52,244,000 $ 11,589,000 $ �

Subsequent Events

See Note 23, Subsequent Events, to the Consolidated Financial Statements, for a further discussion of our subsequent
events.

Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Market risk includes risks that arise from changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices,
equity prices and other market changes that affect market sensitive instruments. In pursuing our business plan, the
primary market risk to which we are exposed is interest rate risk.
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We are exposed to the effects of interest rate changes primarily as a result of borrowings used to maintain liquidity
and fund expansion and refinancing of our real estate investment portfolio and operations. Our interest rate risk
management objectives are to limit the impact of interest rate changes on earnings, prepayment penalties and cash
flows and to lower overall borrowing costs while taking into account variable interest rate risk. To achieve our
objectives, we borrow at fixed rates and variable rates.

We may also enter into derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps and caps in order to mitigate our
interest rate risk on a related financial instrument. To the extent we do, we are exposed to credit risk and market risk.
Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contract. When the fair value
of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes us, which creates credit risk for us. When the fair value of a
derivative contract is negative, we owe the counterparty and,
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therefore, it does not possess credit risk. It is our policy to enter into these transactions with the same party providing
the underlying financing. In the alternative, we will seek to minimize the credit risk associated with derivative
instruments by entering into transactions with what we believe are high-quality counterparties. We believe the
likelihood of realized losses from counterparty non-performance is remote. Market risk is the adverse effect on the
value of a financial instrument that results from a change in interest rates. We manage the market risk associated with
interest rate contracts by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that
may be undertaken. We do not enter into derivative or interest rate transactions for speculative purposes.

We have, and may in the future enter into, derivative instruments for which we have not and may not elect hedge
accounting treatment. Because we have not elected to apply hedge accounting treatment to these derivatives, the gains
or losses resulting from their mark-to-market at the end of each reporting period are recognized as an increase or
decrease in interest expense on our consolidated statements of operations.

Our interest rate risk is monitored using a variety of techniques.

The table below presents, as of December 31, 2008, the principal amounts and weighted average interest rates by year
of expected maturity to evaluate the expected cash flows and sensitivity to interest rate changes.

Expected Maturity Date
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total Fair Value

Fixed rate
debt � principal
payments $ 9,475,000 $ 1,466,000 $ 1,914,000 $ 2,047,000 $ 15,512,000 $ 110,644,000 $ 141,058,000 $ 137,754,000
Weighted
average
interest rate on
maturing debt 5.78% 5.68% 5.72% 5.72% 5.88% 5.76% 5.76% �
Variable rate
debt � principal
payments $ 2,425,000 $ 121,944,000 $ 197,115,000 $ � $ � $ � $ 321,484,000 $ 318,852,000
Weighted
average
interest rate on
maturing debt
(based on
rates in effect
as of
December 31,
2008) 3.14% 2.87% 3.61% �% �% �% 3.33% �

Mortgage loan payables were $462,542,000 ($460,762,000, net of discount) as of December 31, 2008. As of
December 31, 2008, we had fixed and variable rate mortgage loans with effective interest rates ranging from 1.90% to
12.75% per annum and a weighted average effective interest rate of 4.07% per annum. We had $141,058,000
($139,278,000, net of discount) of fixed rate debt, or 30.5% of mortgage loan payables, at a weighted average interest
rate of 5.76% per annum and $321,484,000 of variable rate debt, or 69.5% of mortgage loan payables, at a weighted
average interest rate of 3.33% per annum.
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As of December 31, 2008, we had fixed rate interest rate swaps on all of our variable mortgage loans, thereby
effectively fixing our interest rate on those mortgage loan payables.

As of December 31, 2008, there were no amounts outstanding under our secured revolving line of credit with LaSalle
and KeyBank.

In addition to changes in interest rates, the value of our future properties is subject to fluctuations based on changes in
local and regional economic conditions and changes in the creditworthiness of tenants, which may affect our ability to
refinance our debt if necessary.

Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

See the index at Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A(T).  Controls and Procedures.

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.  We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports pursuant to the Securities

78

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 151



Table of Contents

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the SEC rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to us,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Accounting Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, we recognize that
any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of
achieving the desired control objectives, as ours are designed to do, and we necessarily were required to apply our
judgment in evaluating whether the benefits of the controls and procedures that we adopt outweigh their costs.

As of December 31, 2008, an evaluation was conducted under the supervision and with the participation of our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Accounting Officer, of the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act). Based on
this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Accounting Officer concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective.

(b) Management�s Report on internal control over financial reporting.  Our management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Accounting Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, or COSO.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can only provide reasonable assurance with respect to
financial statement preparation and presentation.

Based on our evaluation under the Internal Control-Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2008.

(c) Changes in internal control over financial reporting.  There were no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2008 that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include an attestation report of our independent registered public
accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management�s report was not subject to attestation
by our independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the SEC that permit us to provide
only management�s report in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9B.  Other Information.

None.
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PART III

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The following table and biographical descriptions set forth information with respect to the individuals who are our
officers and directors.

Name Age* Position Term of Office

Scott D. Peters 51 Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chairman of the Board

Since 2006

Kellie S. Pruitt 43 Chief Accounting Officer Since 2009
Andrea R. Biller 59 Executive Vice President and Secretary Since 2006
Danny Prosky 43 Executive Vice President � Acquisitions Since 2006
W. Bradley Blair, II 65 Independent Director Since 2006
Maurice J. DeWald 69 Independent Director Since 2006
Warren D. Fix 70 Independent Director Since 2006
Larry L. Mathis 65 Independent Director Since 2007
Gary T. Wescombe 66 Independent Director Since 2006

* As of March 27, 2009

There are no family relationships between any directors, executive officers or between any director and executive
officer.

Scott D. Peters has served as our Chairman of the Board since July 2006, Chief Executive Officer since April 2006
and President since June 2007. He served as the Chief Executive Officer of our advisor from July 2006 until July
2008. He served as the Executive Vice President of Grubb & Ellis Apartment REIT, Inc. from January 2006 to
November 2008 and served as a director from April 2007 to June 2008. He also served as the Chief Executive Officer,
President and a Director of Grubb & Ellis from December 2007 to July 2008, and as the Chief Executive Officer,
President and Director of NNN Realty Advisors, a wholly owned subsidiary of Grubb & Ellis, from its formation in
September 2006 and as its Chairman of the Board since its merger with Grubb & Ellis in December 2007 to July
2008. Mr. Peters also served as the Chief Executive Officer of Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors from November 2006 to
July 2008, having served from September 2004 to October 2006, as the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer. From December 2005 to January 2008, Mr. Peters also served as the Chief Executive Officer and President of
G REIT, Inc., having previously served as its Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since September
2004. Mr. Peters also served as the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of T REIT, Inc. from
September 2004 to December 2006. From February 1997 to February 2007, Mr. Peters served as Senior Vice
President, Chief Financial Officer and a Director of Golf Trust of America, Inc., a publicly traded REIT. Mr. Peters
received a B.B.A. degree in accounting and finance from Kent State University.

Kellie S. Pruitt has served as our Chief Accounting Officer since January 2009. She also served as our Controller for a
portion of January 2009. From September 2007 to December 2008, she served as the Vice President, Financial
Reporting and Compliance, for Fender Musical Instruments Corporation. Prior to joining Fender Musical Instruments
Corporation in 2007, Ms. Pruitt served as Senior Manager at Deloitte & Touche LLP, from 1995 to 2007, serving both
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public and privately held companies primarily concentrated in the real estate and consumer business industries. She
graduated from the University of Texas, where she received a B.A. degree in Accounting and is a member of the
AICPA. Ms. Pruitt is a Certified Public Accountant licensed in Arizona and Texas.

Andrea R. Biller has served as our Executive Vice President and Secretary since April 2006 and as the Executive Vice
President of our advisor since July 2006. Ms. Biller also served as the Executive Vice President and Secretary REIT II
and as the Executive Vice President of Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT II Advisor, LLC, or REIT II Advisor, since
January 2009. She has also served as the General Counsel, Executive Vice President and Secretary of Grubb & Ellis,
our sponsor, since December 2007, and NNN Realty Advisors, since its formation in September 2006 and as a
Director of NNN Realty Advisors since December 2007. She
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has served as General Counsel for Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors since March 2003 and as Executive Vice President
since January 2007. Ms. Biller has also served as the Secretary of Grubb & Ellis Securities since March 2004.
Ms. Biller has also served as the Secretary and Executive Vice President of G REIT, Inc. from June 2004 and
December 2005, respectively, until January 2008, the Secretary of T REIT, Inc. from May 2004 to July 2007, the
Secretary of Grubb & Ellis Apartment REIT, Inc. from January 2006 through February 2009 and a Director of
Grubb & Ellis Apartment REIT, Inc. since June 2008. Ms. Biller practiced as a private attorney specializing in
securities and corporate law from 1990 to 1995 and 2000 to 2002. She practiced at the SEC from 1995 to 2000,
including two years as special counsel for the Division of Corporation Finance. Ms. Biller received a B.A degree in
Psychology from Washington University, an M.A. degree in Psychology from Glassboro State University and a J.D.
degree from George Mason University School of Law, where she graduated first with distinction. Ms. Biller is a
member of the California, Virginia and the District of Columbia State Bar Associations.

Danny Prosky has served as our Executive Vice President � Acquisitions since April 2008, having served as our Vice
President � Acquisitions since September 2006. Mr. Prosky has also served as the President and Chief Operating
Officer of REIT II and as the President and Chief Operating Officer of REIT II Advisor since January 2009. He has
served as Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors� Executive Vice President, Healthcare Real Estate since May 2008, having
served as its Managing Director � Healthcare Properties since March 2006. He is responsible for all medical property
acquisitions, management and dispositions. Mr. Prosky previously worked with Health Care Property Investors, Inc., a
healthcare-focused REIT where he served as the Assistant Vice President � Acquisitions & Dispositions from 2005 to
March 2006, and as Assistant Vice President � Asset Management from 1999 to 2005. From 1992 to 1999, he served as
the Manager, Financial Operations, Multi-tenant Facilities for American Health Properties, Inc. Mr. Prosky received a
B.S. degree in Finance from the University of Colorado and an M.S. degree in Management from Boston University.

W. Bradley Blair, II has served as an Independent Director since September 2006. Mr. Blair served as the Chief
Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the board of directors of Golf Trust of America, Inc. from the time of its
formation and initial public offering in 1997 as a REIT until his resignation and retirement in November 2007. During
such term, Mr. Blair managed the acquisition, operation, leasing and disposition of the assets of the portfolio. From
1993 until February 1997, Mr. Blair served as Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer and General Counsel
for The Legends Group. As an officer of The Legends Group, Mr. Blair was responsible for all aspects of operations,
including acquisitions, development and marketing. From 1978 to 1993, Mr. Blair was the Managing Partner at Blair
Conaway Bograd & Martin, P.A., a law firm specializing in real estate, finance, taxation and acquisitions. Currently,
Mr. Blair operates the Blair Group consulting practice, which focuses on real estate acquisitions and finance. Mr. Blair
received a B.S. degree in Business from Indiana University and a J.D. degree from the University of North Carolina
School of Law.

Maurice J. DeWald has served as an Independent Director since September 2006. He has served as the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of Verity Financial Group, Inc., a financial advisory firm, since 1992, where the primary
focus has been in both the healthcare and technology sectors. Mr. DeWald also serves as a Director of Mizuho
Corporate Bank of California, Advanced Materials Group, Inc., Aperture Health, Inc. and as Chairman of Integrated
Healthcare Holdings, Inc. Mr. DeWald also previously served as a Director of Tenet Healthcare Corporation as well as
ARV Assisted Living, Inc. From 1962 to 1991, Mr. DeWald was with the international accounting and auditing firm
of KPMG, LLP, where he served at various times as an Audit Partner, a member of their board of directors as well as
the Managing Partner of Orange County and Los Angeles California offices as well as its Chicago office. Mr. DeWald
has served as Chairman and Director of both the United Way of Greater Los Angeles and the United Way of Orange
County California. Mr. DeWald received a B.B.A. degree in Accounting and Finance from the University of Notre
Dame and is a member of its Mendoza School of Business Advisory Council. Mr. DeWald is a Certified Public
Accountant.
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Warren D. Fix has served as an Independent Director since September 2006. He is the Chairman of FDW, LLC, a real
estate investment and management firm. Mr. Fix also serves as a Director of Clark Investment Group, Clark Equity
Capital, The Keller Financial Group, First Foundation Bank and Accel Networks. Until November of 2008, when he
completed a process of dissolution, he served for five years as the Chief Executive Officer of WCH, Inc., formerly
Candlewood Hotel Company, Inc., having served as its Executive
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Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary since 1995. From July 1994 to October 1995, Mr. Fix was a
Consultant to Doubletree Hotels, primarily developing debt and equity sources of capital for hotel acquisitions and
refinancing. Mr. Fix has been a Partner in The Contrarian Group, a business management company since December
1992. From 1989 to December 1992, Mr. Fix served as President of The Pacific Company, a real estate investment
and a development company. From 1964 to 1989, Mr. Fix held numerous positions, including Chief Financial Officer,
within The Irvine Company, a major California-based real estate firm. He received a B.A. degree from Claremont
McKenna College in California and is a graduate of the UCLA Executive Management Program, the Stanford
Financial Management Program and the UCLA Anderson Corporate Director Program.

Larry L. Mathis has served as an Independent Director since April 2007. Since 1998 he has served as an Executive
Consultant with D. Peterson & Associates in Houston, Texas, providing counsel to select clients on leadership,
management, governance, and strategy and is the author of The Mathis Maxims, Lessons in Leadership. For over
35 years, Mr. Mathis has held numerous leadership positions in organizations charged with planning and directing the
future of healthcare delivery in the United States. Mr. Mathis is the founding President and Chief Executive Officer of
The Methodist Hospital System in Houston, Texas, having served that institution in various executive positions for
27 years, the last 14 years before his retirement in 1997 as CEO. During his extensive career in the healthcare
industry, he has served as a member of the board of directors of a number of national, state and local industry and
professional organizations, including Chairman of the board of directors of the Texas Hospital Association, the
American Hospital Association, and the American College of Healthcare Executives, and has served the federal
government as chairman of the National Advisory Council on Health Care Technology Assessment and as a member
of the Medicare Prospective Payment Assessment Commission. From 1997 to 2003, Mr. Mathis was a member of the
board of directors and Chairman of the compensation committee of Centerpulse, Inc., and from 2004 to present a
member of the board and Chairman of the nominating and governance committee of Alexion Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
both U.S. publicly traded companies. Mr. Mathis received a B.A. degree in Social Sciences from Pittsburg State
University in Kansas and an M.A. degree in Health Administration from Washington University in St. Louis.

Gary T. Wescombe has served as an Independent Director since October 2006. He manages and develops real estate
operating properties through American Oak Properties, LLC, where he is a Principal. He is also Director, Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Arnold and Mabel Beckman Foundation, a nonprofit foundation established for
the purpose of supporting scientific research. From October 1999 to December 2001, he was a Partner in Warmington
Wescombe Realty Partners in Costa Mesa, California, where he focused on real estate investments and financing
strategies. Prior to retiring in 1999, Mr. Wescombe was a Partner with Ernst & Young, LLP (previously Kenneth
Leventhal & Company) from 1970 to 1999. In addition, Mr. Wescombe also served as a Director of G REIT, Inc.
from December 2001 to January 2008 and has served as Chairman of the Trustees of G REIT Liquidating Trust since
January 2008. Mr. Wescombe received a B.S. degree in Accounting and Finance from California State University,
San Jose in 1965 and is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and California Society of
Certified Public Accountants.

Our Advisor

Management

The following table and biographical descriptions set forth information with respect to our advisor�s executive officers.

Name Age * Position

Jeffrey T. Hanson 38 Chief Executive Officer
Andrea R. Biller 59 Executive Vice President
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Jeffrey T. Hanson has served as the Chief Executive Officer of our advisor since January 2009. Mr. Hanson has also
served as the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of REIT II and as the
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Chief Executive Officer of REIT II Advisor since January 2009. He has also served as the Executive Vice President,
Investment Programs, of Grubb & Ellis since December 2007. In addition, he has served as the President and Chief
investment Officer of Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors since December 2007 and January 2007, respectively, and has
served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of Realty since July 2006 and as its Chairman of the board of
directors since April 2007. Mr. Hanson�s responsibilities include managing Grubb & Ellis� real estate portfolio and
directing acquisitions and dispositions nationally for Grubb & Ellis� public and private real estate programs. He has
also served as the Chief Investment Officer of NNN Realty Advisors, a wholly owned subsidiary of Grubb & Ellis,
since September 2006 and as a Director of NNN Realty Advisors since November 2008. From 1996 to July 2006,
Mr. Hanson served as Senior Vice President with Grubb & Ellis Company�s Institutional Investment Group in the
firm�s Newport Beach office. While with that entity, he managed investment sale assignments throughout Southern
California and other Western U.S. markets for major private and institutional clients. Mr. Hanson is a member of the
Sterling College Board of Trustees and formerly served as a member of the Grubb & Ellis President�s Counsel and
Institutional Investment Group Board of Advisors. Mr. Hanson received a B.S. degree in Business from the University
of Southern California with an emphasis in Real Estate Finance.

For biographical information regarding Ms. Biller, see � Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance,
above.

Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors owns a 75.0% managing member interest in our advisor. Grubb & Ellis Healthcare
Management, LLC owns a 25.0% non-managing member interest in our advisor. The members of Grubb & Ellis
Healthcare Management, LLC include Andrea R. Biller, our Executive Vice President and Secretary, our advisor�s
Executive Vice President, our advisors� Executive Vice President, Grubb & Ellis� Executive Vice President, Secretary
and General Counsel, NNN Realty Advisors� Executive Vice President, Secretary, General Counsel, and Director,
Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors� Executive Vice President and General Counsel, and Grubb & Ellis Securities�
Secretary; Jeffrey T. Hanson, our advisor�s Chief Executive Officer, Grubb & Ellis� Executive Vice President,
Investment Programs, Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors� President and Chief Investment Officer, NNN Realty Advisors�
Chief Investment Officer and Director and Realty�s Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the board of directors; and
Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors for the benefit of other employees who perform services for us. Ms. Biller own 18.0%
membership interests in Grubb & Ellis Healthcare Management, LLC. Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors owns a 64.0%
membership interest in Grubb & Ellis Healthcare Management, LLC.

We rely on our advisor to manage our day-to-day activities and to implement our investment strategy. We, our advisor
and Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors are parties to an advisory agreement, as amended and restated on November 14,
2008 and effective as of October 24, 2008, or the Advisory Agreement, pursuant to which our advisor performs its
duties and responsibilities as our fiduciary.

The Advisory Agreement expires on September 20, 2009. Our main objectives in amending the Advisory Agreement
on November 14, 2008 were to reduce acquisition and asset management fees and to set the framework for our
transition to self-management. Under the Advisory Agreement, as amended November 14, 2008, our advisor agreed to
use reasonable efforts to cooperate with us as we pursue a self-management program.

Grubb & Ellis, NNN Realty Advisors and Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors

Our current sponsor Grubb & Ellis, headquartered in Santa Ana, California, is one of the nation�s leading commercial
real estate services and investment companies. Drawing on the resources of nearly 5,500 real estate professionals,
including a brokerage sales force of approximately 1,800 brokers nationwide, Grubb & Ellis and its affiliates combine
local market knowledge with a national service network to provide innovative, customized solutions for real estate
owners, corporate occupants and investors.
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On December 7, 2007, NNN Realty Advisors, which previously served as our sponsor, merged with and into a wholly
owned subsidiary of our current sponsor, Grubb & Ellis. The transaction was structured as a reverse merger whereby
stockholders of NNN Realty Advisors received shares of Grubb & Ellis in exchange
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for their NNN Realty Advisors shares and, immediately following the merger, former NNN Realty Advisor
stockholders held approximately 59.5% of Grubb & Ellis.

The merger combined one of the world�s leading full-service commercial real estate organization with a leading
sponsor of commercial real estate programs to create a diversified real estate services business providing a complete
range of transaction, management and consulting services, and possessing a strong platform for continued growth.
Grubb & Ellis continues to use the �Grubb & Ellis� name and continues to be listed on the New York Stock Exchange
under the ticker symbol �GBE.�

As a result of the merger, we consider Grubb & Ellis to be our sponsor. Upon Grubb & Ellis becoming our sponsor,
we changed our name from NNN Healthcare/Office REIT, Inc. to Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc.

Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, the parent and manager of our advisor and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of our
sponsor, offers a diverse line of investment products as well as a full-range of services including asset and property
management, brokerage, leasing, analysis and consultation. Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors is also an active seller of
real estate, bringing many of its investment programs full cycle.

Upon completion of our transition to self-management, we will no longer be advised by our advisor or consider our
sponsor to be Grubb & Ellis.

Committees of Our Board of Directors

Our board of directors may establish committees it deems appropriate to address specific areas in more depth than
may be possible at a full board meeting, provided that the majority of the members of each committee are independent
directors. Our board of directors has established an audit committee, a compensation committee, a nominating and
corporate governance committee and an investment committee.

Audit Committee.  Our audit committee�s primary function is to assist the board with oversight of the integrity of our
financial statements, compliance with legal and regulatory financial disclosure requirements, independent auditor�s
qualifications and independence and the performance of our internal audit function and independent auditor. The audit
committee is responsible for the selection, evaluation and, when necessary, replacement of our independent registered
public accounting firm. Under our audit committee charter, the audit committee will always be comprised solely of
independent directors. The audit committee is currently comprised of W. Bradley Blair, II, Warren D. Fix, and Gary
T. Wescombe, all of whom are independent directors. Mr. DeWald currently serves as the chairman and has been
designated as the audit committee financial expert.

The audit committee has adopted a written charter under which it operates. The charter is available on our sponsor�s
website at www.gbe-reits.com/healthcare.

Compensation Committee.  The primary responsibilities of our compensation committee are to advise the board on
compensation policies, establish performance objectives for our executive officers, prepare the report on executive
compensation for inclusion in our annual proxy statement, review and recommend to our board of directors the
appropriate level of director compensation and annually review our compensation strategy and assess its effectiveness.
The compensation committee is currently comprised of W. Bradley Blair, II, Warren D. Fix and Gary T. Wescombe,
all of whom are independent directors. Mr. Wescombe currently serves as the chairman.

The compensation committee has adopted a written charter under which it operates. The charter is available on our
sponsor�s website at www.gbe-reits.com/healthcare.
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Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.  The nominating and corporate governance committee�s primary
purposes are to identify qualified individuals to become board members, to recommend to the board the selection of
director nominees for election at the annual meeting of stockholders, to make recommendations regarding the
composition of our board of directors and its committees, to assess director independence and board effectiveness, to
develop and implement corporate governance guidelines and to oversee our compliance and ethics program. The
nominating and corporate governance committee is currently
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comprised of W. Bradley Blair, II, Warren D. Fix and Larry L. Mathis, all of whom are independent directors. Mr. Fix
currently serves as the chairman.

The nominating and corporate governance committee has adopted a written charter under which it operates. The
charter is available on our sponsor�s website at www.gbe-reits.com/healthcare.

Investment Committee.  Our investment committee�s primary function is to assist the board of directors in fulfilling its
responsibilities with respect to investments in specific real estate assets proposed by our advisor, reviewing and
overseeing the performance of our assets, reviewing and overseeing the capital raising activities and performance of
our dealer manager and reviewing our investment policies and procedures on an ongoing basis. The investment
committee is currently comprised of W. Bradley Blair, II, Warren D. Fix, Scott D. Peters and Gary T. Wescombe.
Messrs. Blair, Fix and Wescombe are independent directors. Mr. Blair currently serves as the chairman.

The investment committee has adopted a written charter under which it operates. The charter is available on our
sponsor�s website at www.gbe-reits.com/healthcare.

2006 Incentive Plan and Independent Directors Compensation Plan

We have adopted an incentive stock plan, which we use to attract and retain qualified independent directors,
employees and consultants providing services to us who are considered essential to our long-term success by offering
these individuals an opportunity to participate in our growth through awards in the form of, or based on, our common
stock.

The incentive stock plan provides for the granting of awards to participants in the following forms to those
independent directors, employees, and consultants selected by the plan administrator for participation in the incentive
stock plan:

� options to purchase shares of our common stock, which may be nonstatutory stock options or incentive stock
options under the U.S. tax code;

� stock appreciation rights, which give the holder the right to receive the difference between the fair market
value per share on the date of exercise over the grant price;

� performance awards, which are payable in cash or stock upon the attainment of specified performance goals;

� restricted stock, which is subject to restrictions on transferability and other restrictions set by the committee;

� restricted stock units, which give the holder the right to receive shares of our common stock, or the equivalent
value in cash or other property, in the future;

� deferred stock units, which give the holder the right to receive shares of our common stock, or the equivalent
value in cash or other property, at a future time;

� dividend equivalents, which entitle the participant to payments equal to any dividends paid on the shares of our
common stock underlying an award; and/or

� other stock based awards in the discretion of the plan administrator, including unrestricted stock grants.
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Any such awards will provide for exercise prices, where applicable, that are not less than the fair market value of our
common stock on the date of the grant. Any shares issued under the incentive stock plan will be subject to the
ownership limits contained in our charter.

Our board of directors or a committee of its independent directors will administer the incentive stock plan, with sole
authority to select participants, determine the types of awards to be granted and all of the terms and conditions of the
awards, including whether the grant, vesting or settlement of awards may be subject to the attainment of one or more
performance goals. No awards will be granted under the plan if the grant,
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vesting and/or exercise of the awards would jeopardize our status as a REIT under the Code or otherwise violate the
ownership and transfer restrictions imposed under our charter.

The maximum number of shares of our common stock that may be issued upon the exercise or grant of an award
under the incentive stock plan is 2,000,000. In the event of a nonreciprocal corporate transaction that causes the
per-share value of our common stock to change, such as a stock dividend, stock split, spin-off, rights offering, or large
nonrecurring cash dividend, the share authorization limits of the incentive stock plan will be adjusted proportionately.

Unless otherwise provided in an award certificate, upon the death or disability of a participant, or upon a change in
control, all of such participant�s outstanding awards under the incentive stock plan will become fully vested. The plan
will automatically expire on the tenth anniversary of the date on which it is adopted, unless extended or earlier
terminated by the board of directors. The board of directors may terminate the plan at any time, but such termination
will have no adverse impact on any award that is outstanding at the time of such termination. The board of directors
may amend the plan at any time, but any amendment would be subject to stockholder approval if, in the reasonable
judgment of the board, stockholder approval would be required by any law, regulation or rule applicable to the plan.
No termination or amendment of the plan may, without the written consent of the participant, reduce or diminish the
value of an outstanding award determined as if the award had been exercised, vested, cashed in or otherwise settled on
the date of such amendment or termination. The board may amend or terminate outstanding awards, but those
amendments may require consent of the participant and, unless approved by the stockholders or otherwise permitted
by the antidilution provisions of the plan, the exercise price of an outstanding option may not be reduced, directly or
indirectly, and the original term of an option may not be extended.

Under Section 162(m) of the Code, a public company generally may not deduct compensation in excess of $1 million
paid to its Chief Executive Officer and the four next most highly compensated executive officers. Until the annual
meeting of our stockholders in 2010, or until the incentive stock plan is materially amended, if earlier, awards granted
under the incentive stock plan will be exempt from the deduction limits of Section 162(m). In order for awards
granted after the expiration of such grace period to be exempt, the incentive stock plan must be amended to comply
with the exemption conditions and be resubmitted for approval by our stockholders.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, or the Code of Ethics, which contains general guidelines for
conducting our business and is designed to help directors, employees and independent consultants resolve ethical
issues in an increasingly complex business environment. The Code of Ethics applies to our principal executive officer,
principal financial officer, principal accounting officer, controller and persons performing similar functions and all
members of our board of directors. The Code of Ethics covers topics including, but not limited to, conflicts of interest,
confidentiality of information, and compliance with laws and regulations. Stockholders may request a copy of the
Code of Ethics, which will be provided without charge, by writing to Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. at
1551 N. Tustin Avenue, Suite 300, Santa Ana, California 92705, Attention: Secretary.

Indemnification Agreements

We have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our independent directors, non-independent director
and officers. Pursuant to the terms of these indemnification agreements, we will indemnify and advance expenses and
costs incurred by our directors and officers in connection with any claims, suits or proceedings brought against such
directors and officers as a result of his or her service. However, our indemnification obligation is subject to the
limitations set forth in the indemnification agreements and in our charter.
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires each director, officer, and individual beneficially owning more than 10.0%
of a registered security of the company to file with the SEC, within specified time frames, initial statements of
beneficial ownership (Form 3) and statements of changes in beneficial ownership (Forms 4 and 5) of common stock of
the company. These specified time frames require the reporting of changes in ownership within two business days of
the transaction giving rise to the reporting obligation. Reporting persons are required to furnish us with copies of all
Section 16(a) forms filed with the SEC. Based solely on a review of the copies of such forms furnished to us during
and with respect to the year ended December 31, 2008 or written representations that no additional forms were
required, to the best of our knowledge, all required Section 16(a) filings were timely and correctly made by reporting
persons during 2008, except that Messrs. Blair, DeWald, Fix, Mathis and Wescombe did not timely file one Form 4.

Item 11.  Executive Compensation.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the paragraphs that follow, we provide an overview of the material compensation decisions that we have made with
respect to Mr. Peters, our Chief Executive Officer and President, and the material factors that we considered in
making those decisions. Following this Compensation Discussion and Analysis, under Summary Compensation Table,
you will find a series of tables containing specific data about the compensation earned by Mr. Peters in 2008.

Compensation Program Objectives

During 2008, Mr. Peters was the only executive officer employed by us - each of our other executive officers was
employed by our advisor or its affiliates, and was compensated by these entities for their services to us. Mr. Peters
served as our Chief Executive Officer and President on a non-employee basis until November 2008, when we entered
into an employment agreement with him as part of our transition to self-management. Our compensation committee
was formed in August 2008. As a result, for the majority of 2008, we did not have, nor did our board of directors
consider, a compensation policy or program for our executive officers. As we complete our transition to
self-management and expand our employee base, our compensation committee expects to continue to develop and
refine our compensation program and objectives.

In designing Mr. Peters� initial compensation package, our objective was to provide compensation that directly relates
to and rewards his contribution to our operating and financial performance, and its transition toward self-management.
We also are mindful of the importance of retaining qualified leadership.

How We Determined Mr. Peters� Initial Compensation Package

In setting the terms of Mr. Peters� compensation package, our compensation committee considered Mr. Peters� past,
present and anticipated future contributions to us, as well as the pay practices within the REIT industry.

� Mr. Peters has played an integral role with our Company since 2006, and his experience and length of service
with our Company was the primary factor considered by our compensation committee in setting his initial pay.
Our compensation committee also considered Mr. Peters� leadership role in our transition to a self-management
structure, as described elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

� The compensation committee reviewed the NAREIT 2008 Compensation Survey for the chief executive officer
position (the �NAREIT Survey�), as well as a report provided by Christenson Advisors, LLC, the compensation
consultant engaged by the compensation committee. The compensation consultant�s report provided
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capitalization of approximately $1 billion to $2 billion. The compensation consultant�s report was not based on
a formal benchmarking analysis but rather upon surveys and its knowledge of the industry. The committee did
not target Mr. Peters� compensation to be at the median or any other
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specific level of compensation within the surveyed group(s). Rather, the committee used both the NAREIT
Survey and the consultant�s report to evaluate whether Mr. Peters� compensation would be reasonable as
compared to the compensation provided by the Company�s competitors.

As we transition to self-management, our compensation committee feels that it is important to preserve discretion to
change Mr. Peters� compensation arrangement, including, among other things, to implement performance guidelines
and objectives. As a result, in connection with its approval of Mr. Peters� initial compensation package, our
compensation committee reserved the right to review and revise the terms of such arrangement. Our compensation
committee may change the terms of his employment arrangement and compensation; provided, however, that the
committee agreed not to decrease Mr. Peters� base salary by more than twenty percent.

Elements of Mr. Peters� Compensation

Currently, the key elements of compensation for Mr. Peters are base salary, annual bonus and long-term equity
incentive awards, as described in more detail below. In addition to these key elements, Mr. Peters is entitled to
severance in the event we terminate his employment without cause before November 1, 2010.

Base Salary.  Base salary provides the fixed portion of compensation for Mr. Peters and is intended to reward core
competence in his role relative to skill, experience and contributions to our Company. Mr. Peters� initial base salary is
$350,000. As noted above, in determining Mr. Peters� 2008 base salary, our compensation committee considered his
history with our Company, his increased responsibilities and oversight, with a particular focus on his role in our
transition to self-management, as well as salary practices in the REIT industry.

Annual Bonus.  Pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement, Mr. Peters is eligible to earn an annual bonus, up
to a maximum of 100% of his base salary. In determining Mr. Peters� annual bonus for the year ended December 31,
2008, our compensation committee made a subjective assessment of Mr. Peters� individual performance and increased
responsibilities, particularly in connection with our transition towards self-management. His bonus for 2008 was
prorated based on the number of days that he was employed by us during such year. Mr. Peters� 2008 bonus is shown
in the �Bonus� column of the Summary Compensation Table below.

Long-Term Equity Incentives.  In connection with the commencement of his employment with us, Mr. Peters received
40,000 shares of restricted common stock, which vest as to one-third of the shares on each of the first, second and
third anniversaries of the date of grant. Our compensation committee chose restricted common stock as the equity
component of Mr. Peters� arrangement because it both aligns his interests with those of our stockholders and provides a
strong retentive component to his compensation arrangement. In addition, we currently use restricted common stock
as the equity component of our director compensation program. Based on its knowledge of the industry and its review
of peer practices, our compensation committee believes that the size of the restricted stock award is in line with
current market practices.

Other Benefits.  As discussed above, on November 14, 2008, we entered into an employment agreement with
Mr. Peters. Pursuant to his employment agreement, if we terminate Mr. Peters� employment for other than cause or
disability prior to November 1, 2010, he will be entitled to receive a severance payment equal to 50% of his base
salary, and a pro-rata bonus for the year of termination.

REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Our compensation committee of our board of directors oversees our compensation program on behalf of our board. In
fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, the committee reviewed and discussed with management the above
Compensation Discussion and Analysis included in this report.
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directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2008, and our proxy statement on Schedule 14A to be filed in
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connection with our 2009 annual meeting of stockholders, each of which has been or will be filed with the SEC.

This report shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by reference
this Annual Report on Form 10-K into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act
and shall not otherwise be deemed filed under such acts. This report is provided by the following independent
directors, who constitute the committee:

Gary T. Wescombe, Chair
W. Bradley Blair, II
Warren D. Fix

Summary Compensation Table

The summary compensation table below reflects the total compensation earned by Mr. Peters, our Chief Executive
Officer and President for the year ended December 31, 2008. We did not employ any other officer for the year ended
December 31, 2008.

All Other

Name and Principal Position Year
Salary
($)(1) Bonus ($)

Stock
Awards

($)(2)
Compensation

($)(3) Total ($)

Scott D. Peters
Chief Executive Officer and
President 2008 148,333 58,333 17,037 2,252 225,955

(1) Reflects (a) $90,000 received pursuant to Mr. Peters� consulting arrangement with us from August 1, 2008,
through October 31, 2008, and (b) $58,333 received as base salary pursuant to his employment agreement from
November 1, 2008, through December 31, 2008.

(2) The amounts in this column represent the proportionate amount of the total fair value of stock awards recognized
by us in 2008 for financial accounting purposes, disregarding for this purpose the estimate of forfeitures related
to service-based vesting conditions. The amount included in the table includes the amount recorded as expense in
our statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2008. The fair values of these awards and the
amounts expensed in 2008 were determined in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or
SFAS, No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, or SFAS No. 123(R).

(3) Reflects our payment of Mr. Peters� monthly premium for two months under COBRA for participation in
Grubb & Ellis�s group medical, dental, vision and/or prescription drug plans.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table presents information concerning plan-based awards granted to Mr. Peters for the year ended
December 31, 2008.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards For Fiscal Year 2008
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All Other Stock Grant Date Fair
Awards: Number

of
Value of Stock

and
Shares of Stock or Option Awards

Name   Grant Date Units (#)(1) ($)(2)

Scott D. Peters 11/14/08 40,000 400,000

(1) Reflects shares of restricted common stock granted to Mr. Peters under our 2006 Incentive Plan.

(2) Reflects the grant date fair value of Mr. Peters� restricted stock award, determined pursuant to SFAS No. 123(R).
The fair value of each share of restricted common stock was estimated at the date of grant at $10.00 per share, the
per share price of shares of our common stock in our offering.
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Outstanding Equity Awards

The following table presents information concerning outstanding equity awards held by Mr. Peters as of December 31,
2008.

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2008 Fiscal Year-End

Stock Awards
Number of Shares or

Units of Market Value of Shares or

Stock That Have
Units of Stock That Have

Not
Name   Not Vested (#) Vested ($)(2)

Scott D. Peters 40,000(1) 400,000

(1) Reflects shares of restricted common stock granted to Mr. Peters on November 14, 2008, which will vest and
become non-forfeitable in equal annual installments of 33.3% each, on the first, second and third anniversaries of
the grant date.

(2) Calculated using the per share price of shares of our common stock as of the close of business on December 31,
2008 ($10.00).

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

Benefits Upon Termination of Employment.  Our employment agreement with Mr. Peters provides that in the event
that, during the two-year employment period, we terminate his employment other than for cause or disability (as such
terms are defined in the employment agreement), Mr. Peters will be entitled to receive a lump sum severance payment
equal to 50.0% of his annual base salary and a payment equal to a pro-rata portion of his annual bonus for the year in
which his date of termination occurs. In addition, pursuant to the terms of his restricted stock award on November 14,
2008, his shares of restricted common stock will become fully vested upon his termination of employment by reason
of death or disability. If Mr. Peters voluntarily terminates his employment, retires or if we terminate him for cause, he
is not entitled to any payments or benefits under any plan or arrangement of our Company.

The following table summarizes the approximate value of the termination payments and benefits that Mr. Peters
would receive if his employment had terminated at the close of business on December 31, 2008.

Termination of Employment By our Company other than for Cause or Disability $ 233,333(1)
Termination of Employment By Reason of Death or Disability $ 400,000(2)

(1) Reflects (a) a payment equal to a pro-rata portion of his annual bonus for 2008 ($58,333), and (b) a lump sum
cash severance payment equal to 50% of his current annual base salary ($175,000).

(2)
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Reflects the value of Mr. Peters� unvested restricted stock award which, pursuant to our 2006 Incentive Plan, vests
upon his termination of employment by reason of death or disability. The restricted stock award is valued based
upon the price of our common stock on December 31, 2008 ($10.00).

Benefits Upon Change in Control.  Pursuant to the terms of our 2006 Incentive Plan, if a change in control of our
Company had occurred on December 31, 2008, Mr. Peters� shares of restricted common stock would have become
fully vested, regardless of whether his employment was terminated. The value of Mr. Peters� unvested restricted stock
award is $400,000, based upon the price of our common stock on December 31, 2008 ($10.00).

2008 Director Compensation

Pursuant to the terms of our director compensation program, which are contained in our 2006 Independent Directors
Compensation Plan, a sub-plan of our 2006 Incentive Plan, our independent directors received the following forms of
compensation during 2008:

� Annual Retainer.  Our independent directors receive an annual retainer of $36,000.
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� Meeting Fees.  Our independent directors receive $1,000 for each board meeting attended in person or by
telephone and $500 for each committee meeting attended in person or by telephone. An additional $500 is paid
to the audit committee chair for each audit committee meeting attended in person or by telephone. If a board
meeting is held on the same day as a committee meeting, an additional fee will not be paid for attending the
committee meeting.

� Equity Compensation.  Upon initial election to our board of directors, each independent director receives
5,000 shares of restricted common stock, and an additional 2,500 shares of restricted common stock upon his
or her subsequent election each year. The shares of restricted common stock vest as to 20% of the shares on the
date of grant and on each anniversary thereafter over four years from the date of grant.

� Expense Reimbursement.  We reimburse our directors for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in
connection with attendance at meetings, including committee meetings, of our board of directors.

Independent directors do not receive other benefits from us. Our non-independent director, Mr. Peters, does not
receive any compensation in connection with his service as a director of our Company.

The following table sets forth the compensation earned by our independent directors for the year ended December 31,
2008:

Fees Earned
or Paid in

Cash
Stock

Awards
Name         ($)(1) ($)(2) Total ($)

W. Bradley Blair, II 54,000 22,681 76,681
Maurice J. DeWald 55,000 22,681 77,681
Warren D. Fix 53,000 22,681 75,681
Larry L. Mathis 49,000 22,681 71,681
Gary T. Wescombe 52,500 22,681 75,181

(1) Consists of the amounts described below:

Basic Annual Meeting
Retainer Fees

Name    ($) ($)

Blair 36,000 18,000
DeWald 36,000 19,000
Fix 36,000 17,000
Mathis 36,000 13,000
Wescombe 36,000 16,500

(2) The amounts in this column represent the proportionate amount of the total fair value of stock awards we
recognized in 2008 for financial accounting purposes, disregarding for this purpose the estimate of forfeitures
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related to service-based vesting conditions. The amounts included in the table for each award include the amount
recorded as expense in our statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2008. The fair values of
these awards and the amounts expensed in 2008 were determined in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R).
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The following table shows the shares of restricted common stock awarded to each independent director for the year
ended December 31, 2008, and the aggregate grant date fair value for each award (computed in accordance with
SFAS No. 123(R)).

Full Grant
Number of Date Fair
Restricted Value of

Director Grant Date Shares (#) Award ($)

Blair 06/17/08 2,500 25,000
DeWald 06/17/08 2,500 25,000
Fix 06/17/08 2,500 25,000
Mathis 06/17/08 2,500 25,000
Wescombe 06/17/08 2,500 25,000

The following table shows the aggregate number of nonvested shares of restricted common stock held by each
independent director as of December 31, 2008:

Nonvested
Director Restricted Stock (#)

Blair 5,500
DeWald 5,500
Fix 5,500
Mathis 6,500
Wescombe 5,500

Key Changes to the Director Compensation Program for 2009.  On December 30, 2008, we amended the 2006
Independent Directors Compensation Plan as follows, which amendments became effective as of January 1, 2009:

� Annual Retainer.  The annual retainer for independent directors was increased to $50,000.

� Annual Retainer, Committee Chairman.  The chairman of each board committee (including the audit
committee, the compensation committee, the nominating and corporate governance committee and the
investment committee) will receive an additional annual retainer of $7,500.

� Meeting Fees.  The meeting fee for each board meeting attended in person of by telephone was increased from
$1,000 to $1,500 and the meeting fee for each committee meeting attended in person or by telephone was
increased from $500 to $1,000.

� Equity Compensation.  Each independent director will receive a grant of 5,000 shares of restricted common
stock upon each re-election to the board, rather than 2,500 shares.

We amended the 2006 Independent Directors Compensation Plan primarily as a result of two factors. First, in
connection with our transition to self-management, our board of directors is required to spend a substantially greater
amount of time overseeing our company and the transition. As a result, we believed that a greater level of
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compensation was appropriate. Second, our board reviewed a survey from an independent consultant of the
compensation paid to the independent directors of both traded and non-traded REITs and determined that our prior
compensation structure was below average. As amended, we believe our compensation to be paid to our independent
directors is consistent with the average compensation paid to independent directors of traded and non-traded REITs.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

During 2008, W. Bradley Blair, II, Maurice J. DeWald, Warren D. Fix, Larry L. Mathis and Gary T. Wescombe, all of
whom are independent directors, served on our compensation committee. None of them was an officer or employee of
our Company in 2008 or any time prior thereto. During 2008, none of the members of the compensation committee
had any relationship with our Company requiring disclosure under Item 404 of
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Regulation S-K. None of our executive officers served as a member of the board of directors or compensation
committee, or similar committee, of any other company whose executive officer(s) served as a member of our board
of directors or our compensation committee.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

The following table shows, as of March 13, 2009, the number of shares of our common stock beneficially owned by:
(1) any person who is known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5.0% of the outstanding shares of our
common stock, (2) our directors, (3) our named executive officers and (4) all of our directors and executive officers as
a group. The percentage of common stock beneficially owned is based on 91,264,688 shares of our common stock
outstanding as of March 13, 2009. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and
generally includes securities over which a person has voting or investment power and securities that a person has the
right to acquire within 60 days.

Number of Shares

Name of Beneficial Owners(1)
Beneficially

Owned Percentage

Scott D. Peters(2) 40,000  *
Shannon K S Johnson(3) � *
W. Bradley Blair, II(2) 10,000 *
Maurice J. DeWald(2) 10,000 *
Warren D. Fix(2) 11,371 *
Larry L. Mathis(2) 15,525 *
Gary T. Wescombe(2) 10,000 *

All directors and executive officers as a group (9 persons) 96,896 *

* Represents less than 1.0% of our outstanding common stock.

(1) The address of each beneficial owner listed is c/o Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc., The Promenade, 16427
North Scottsdale Road, Suite 440, Scottsdale, Arizona 85254, except for Shannon K S Johnson, whose address is
1551 N. Tustin Avenue, Suite 300, Santa Ana, California 92705.

(2) Includes vested and non-vested shares of restricted common stock.

(3) Served as our Chief Financial Officer until March 2009.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Under the terms of our 2006 Incentive Plan, as amended January 1, 2009, the aggregate number of shares of our
common stock subject to options, shares of restricted common stock, stock purchase rights, stock appreciation rights
or other awards, including those issuable under its sub-plan, the 2006 Independent Directors Compensation Plan, will
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be no more than 2,000,000 shares.

Number of
Securities Number of

to be Issued
Upon

Weighted
Average Securities

Exercise of Exercise Price of Remaining
Outstanding

Options,
Outstanding

Options,
Available for

Future

Plan Category                  
Warrants and

Rights
Warrants and

Rights Issuance

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders(1) � � 1,910,000
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders � � �

Total � 1,910,000
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(1) On September 20, 2006, October 4, 2006, April 12, 2007, June 12, 2007 and June 17, 2008, we granted
15,000 shares, 5,000 shares, 5,000 shares, 12,500 shares and 12,500 shares, respectively, of restricted common
stock, as defined in our 2006 Incentive Plan, to our independent directors under the 2006 Independent Directors
Compensation Plan. On November 14, 2008, we also granted 40,000 shares of restricted common stock to Scott
D. Peters, our Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the board of directors, under our 2006
Incentive Plan. Such shares are not shown in the chart above as they are deemed outstanding shares of our
common stock; however such grants reduce the number of securities remaining available for future issuance.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Relationships Among Our Affiliates

Some of our executive officers are also executive officers and employees and/or holders of a direct or indirect interest
in our advisor, our sponsor, Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, or other affiliated entities.

Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, which is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of our sponsor Grubb & Ellis, owns a
75.0% managing member interest in our advisor. Grubb & Ellis Healthcare Management, LLC owns a 25.0%
non-managing member interest in our advisor. The members of Grubb & Ellis Healthcare Management, LLC include
Andrea R. Biller, our Executive Vice President and Secretary, our advisor�s Executive Vice President, Grubb & Ellis�
Executive Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel, NNN Realty Advisors� Executive Vice President, Secretary,
General Counsel and Director, Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors� Executive Vice President and General Counsel and
Grubb & Ellis Securities� Secretary; and Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors for the benefit of other employees who
perform services for us. As of March 27, 2009, Ms. Biller owns an 18.0% membership interest in Grubb & Ellis
Healthcare Management, LLC and Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors owns a 64.0%, membership interest in Grubb &
Ellis Healthcare Management, LLC. See Item 1. Business � Our Structure for an organizational chart.

Fees and Expenses Paid to Affiliates

See Note 12, Related Party Transactions, to the Consolidated Financial Statements, for a further discussion of our
related party transactions.

Certain Conflict Resolution Restrictions and Procedures

In order to reduce or eliminate certain potential conflicts of interest, our charter and the Advisory Agreement contain
restrictions and conflict resolution procedures relating to: (1) transactions we enter into with our advisor, our directors
or their respective affiliates, (2) certain future offerings and (3) allocation of properties among affiliated entities. Each
of the restrictions and procedures that apply to transactions with our advisor and its affiliates will also apply to any
transaction with any entity or real estate program advised, managed or controlled by Grubb & Ellis and its affiliates.
These restrictions and procedures include, among others, the following:

� Except as otherwise described in our Registration Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-133652, effective
September 20, 2006) filed with the SEC, or our offering prospectus, we will not accept goods or services from
our advisor or its affiliates unless a majority of our directors, including a majority of our independent directors,
not otherwise interested in the transactions, approve such transactions as fair, competitive and commercially
reasonable to us and on terms and conditions not less favorable to us than those available from unaffiliated
third parties.

� 
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We will not purchase or lease any asset (including any property) in which our advisor, any of our directors or
any of their respective affiliates has an interest without a determination by a majority of our directors,
including a majority of our independent directors, not otherwise interested in such transaction, that such
transaction is fair and reasonable to us and at a price to us no greater than the cost of the property to our
advisor, such director or directors or any such affiliate, unless there is substantial justification for any amount
that exceeds such cost and such excess amount is determined to
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be reasonable. In no event will we acquire any such asset at an amount in excess of its appraised value. We will
not sell or lease assets to our advisor, any of our directors or any of their respective affiliates unless a majority
of our directors, including a majority of our independent directors, not otherwise interested in the transaction,
determine the transaction is fair and reasonable to us, which determination will be supported by an appraisal
obtained from a qualified, independent appraiser selected by a majority of our independent directors.

� We will not make any loans to our advisor, any of our directors or any of their respective affiliates. In addition,
any loans made to us by our advisor, our directors or any of their respective affiliates must be approved by a
majority of our directors, including a majority of our independent directors, not otherwise interested in the
transaction, as fair, competitive and commercially reasonable, and no less favorable to us than comparable
loans between unaffiliated parties.

� Our advisor and its affiliates shall be entitled to reimbursement, at cost, for actual expenses incurred by them
on our behalf or on behalf of joint ventures in which we are a joint venture partner, subject to the limitation on
reimbursement of operating expenses to the extent that they exceed the greater of 2.0% of our average invested
assets or 25.0% of our net income, as described above.

� The Advisory Agreement provides that if Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors identifies an opportunity to make an
investment in one or more office buildings or other facilities for which greater than 50.0% of the gross
leaseable area is leased to, or reasonably expected to be leased to, one or more medical or healthcare related
tenants, either directly or indirectly through an affiliate or in a joint venture or other co-ownership
arrangement, for itself or for any other Grubb & Ellis program, then Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors will
provide us with the first opportunity to purchase such investment. Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors will provide
all necessary information related to such investment to our advisor, in order to enable our board of directors to
determine whether to proceed with such investment. Our advisor will present the information to our board of
directors within three business days of receipt from Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors. If our board of directors
does not affirmatively authorize our advisor to proceed with the investment on our behalf within seven days of
receipt of such information from our advisor, then Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors may proceed with the
investment opportunity for its own account or offer the investment opportunity to any other person or entity.
This right of first opportunity will remain in effect after the end of our offering so long as monies raised by our
advisor are available for funding new acquisitions of properties for which our advisor will continue to receive
an acquisition fee pursuant to the Advisory Agreement.

� The Advisory Agreement provides that our advisor and Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors agree to coordinate the
timing, marketing and other activities for any new healthcare REIT sponsored by Grubb & Ellis Realty
Investors or its affiliates so as not to negatively impact our company. In addition, the equity raising for any new
healthcare REIT sponsored by Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors or its affiliates shall not begin until after the end
of our offering, provided that consistent with industry practice and standards and without there being any
negative impact on our equity raise, such new healthcare REIT may initiate a limited equity raise from a
limited broker dealer group, commencing August 1, 2009 or later, to satisfy the escrow requirements applicable
to such new healthcare REIT.

Director Independence

We have a six-member board of directors. One of our directors, Scott D. Peters, is affiliated with us and we do not
consider him to be an independent director. Our remaining directors qualify as �independent directors� as defined in our
charter in compliance with the requirements of the North American Securities Administrators Association�s Statement
of Policy Regarding Real Estate Investment Trusts. Our charter provides that a majority of the directors must be
�independent directors.� As defined in our charter, the term �independent director� means a director who is not on the date

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 183
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associated with our sponsor or our advisor by virtue of: (1) ownership of an interest in our sponsor, our advisor or any
of their affiliates, other than the Corporation; (2) employment by our sponsor, our advisor or any of their affiliates;
(3) service as an officer or
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director of our sponsor, our advisor or any of their affiliates; (4) performance of services, other than as a director for
us; (5) service as a director or trustee of more than three REITs organized by our sponsor or advised by our advisor; or
(6) maintenance of a material business or professional relationship with our sponsor, our advisor or any of their
affiliates.

Each of our independent directors would also qualify as independent under the rules of the New York Stock Exchange
and our Audit Committee members would qualify as independent under the New York Stock Exchange�s rules
applicable to Audit Committee members. However, our stock is not listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

Deloitte & Touche, LLP has served as our independent auditors since April 24, 2006 and audited our consolidated
financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

The following table lists the fees for services billed by our independent auditors for 2008 and 2007:

Services 2008 2007

Audit Fees(1) $ 448,000 $ 428,000
Audit related fees(2) � 8,000
Tax fees(3) 19,000 2,000
All other fees � �

Total $ 467,000 $ 438,000

(1) Audit fees billed in 2008 and 2007 consisted of the audit of our annual consolidated financial statements, a
review of our quarterly consolidated financial statements, and statutory and regulatory audits, consents and other
services related to filings with the SEC, including filings related to our offering. These amounts include fees paid
by our advisor and its affiliates for costs in connection with our offering and to the extent cumulative other
organizational and offering expenses exceed 1.5% of the gross proceeds of our offering, these amounts are not
included within our consolidated financial statements, as they are subject to the accounting policy described in
Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, Commitments and Contingencies � Other Organizational and
Offering Expenses.

(2) Audit related fees consist of financial accounting and reporting consultations.

(3) Tax services consist of tax compliance and tax planning and advice.

The audit committee preapproves all auditing services and permitted non-audit services (including the fees and terms
thereof) to be performed for us by our independent auditor, subject to the de minimis exceptions for non-audit services
described in Section 10A(i)(1)(b) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations of the SEC.
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PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a)(1) Financial Statements:

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 98
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 99
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the Period
from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006 100
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders� Equity (Deficit) for the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
and for the Period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006 101
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the
Period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006 102
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 103

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedule:

The following financial statement schedule for the year ended December 31, 2008 are submitted herewith:

Page

Real Estate Operating Properties and Accumulated Depreciation (Schedule III) 140

(a)(3) Exhibits:

The exhibits listed on the Exhibit Index (following the signatures section of this report) are included, or incorporated
by reference, in this annual report.

(b) Exhibits:

See item 15(a)(3) above.

(c) Financial Statement Schedule:

Page

Real Estate Operating Properties and Accumulated Depreciation (Schedule III) 140
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the �Company�) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders� equity (deficit) and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from
April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006. Our audits also included the consolidated financial
statement schedule listed in the index at Item 15. These consolidated financial statements and the consolidated
financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements and the consolidated financial statement schedule based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28,
2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such consolidated financial statement schedule, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects, the
information set forth therein.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche, LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 27, 2009
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Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007

December 31,
2008 2007

ASSETS
Real estate investments:
Operating properties, net $ 810,920,000 $ 352,994,000
Real estate note receivables, net 15,360,000 �
Cash and cash equivalents 128,331,000 5,467,000
Accounts and other receivables, net 5,428,000 1,233,000
Restricted cash 7,747,000 4,605,000
Identified intangible assets, net 134,623,000 62,921,000
Other assets, net 11,514,000 4,392,000

Total assets $ 1,113,923,000 $ 431,612,000

LIABILITIES, MINORITY INTEREST AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Liabilities:
Mortgage loan payables, net $ 460,762,000 $ 185,801,000
Line of credit � 51,801,000
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 21,919,000 7,983,000
Accounts payable due to affiliates, net 3,063,000 2,356,000
Derivative financial instruments 14,198,000 1,377,000
Security deposits, prepaid rent and other liabilities 4,582,000 1,974,000
Identified intangible liabilities, net 8,128,000 1,639,000

Total liabilities 512,652,000 252,931,000

Commitments and contingencies (Note 11) 

Minority interest of limited partner in operating partnership 1,000 �
Minority interest of limited partner � redemption value of $3,133,000
(Note 11) 1,950,000 3,091,000
Stockholders� equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; none issued
and outstanding � �
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 1,000,000,000 shares authorized;
75,465,437 and 21,449,451 shares issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively 755,000 214,000
Additional paid-in capital 673,351,000 190,534,000
Accumulated deficit (74,786,000) (15,158,000)
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Total stockholders� equity 599,320,000 175,590,000

Total liabilities, minority interest and stockholders� equity $ 1,113,923,000 $ 431,612,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and
for the Period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006

Period from
April 28, 2006

(Date of
Inception)

Years Ended December 31, through

2008 2007
December 31,

2006

Revenues:
Rental income $ 80,415,000 $ 17,626,000 $             �
Interest income from real estate note receivables 3,000 � �

Total revenues 80,418,000 17,626,000 �
Expenses:
Rental expenses 28,174,000 6,037,000 �
General and administrative 9,560,000 3,297,000 242,000
Depreciation and amortization 37,398,000 9,790,000 �

Total expenses 75,132,000 19,124,000 242,000

Income (loss) before other income (expense) 5,286,000 (1,498,000) (242,000)
Other income (expense):
Interest expense (including amortization of deferred
financing costs and debt discount):
Interest expense related to unsecured note payables to
affiliate (2,000) (84,000) �
Interest expense related to mortgage loan payables and
line of credit (21,341,000) (4,939,000) �
Loss on derivative financial instruments (12,821,000) (1,377,000) �
Interest and dividend income 469,000 224,000 �

Loss before minority interests $ (28,409,000) $ (7,674,000) $ (242,000)

Minority interests (39,000) 8,000 �

Net loss $ (28,448,000) $ (7,666,000) $ (242,000)

Net loss per share � basic and diluted $ (0.66) $ (0.77) $ (149.03)

42,844,603 9,952,771 1,622
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Weighted average number of shares outstanding �
basic and diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY (DEFICIT)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and
for the Period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006

Common Stock Total
Number of Additional Preferred Accumulated Stockholders�

Shares Amount
Paid-In
Capital Stock Deficit

Equity
(Deficit)

BALANCE �
April 28, 2006
(Date of Inception) � $ � $ � $      � $ � $ �
Issuance of
common stock 200 � 2,000 � � 2,000
Issuance of vested
and nonvested
restricted common
stock 20,000 � 40,000 � � 40,000
Amortization of
nonvested common
stock
compensation � � 11,000 � � 11,000
Net loss � � � � (242,000) (242,000)

BALANCE �
December 31, 2006 20,200 � 53,000 � (242,000) (189,000)
Issuance of
common stock 21,130,370 211,000 210,835,000 � � 211,046,000
Issuance of vested
and nonvested
restricted common
stock 17,500 � 35,000 � � 35,000
Offering costs � � (23,120,000) � � (23,120,000)
Amortization of
nonvested common
stock
compensation � � 61,000 � � 61,000
Issuance of
common stock
under the DRIP 281,381 3,000 2,670,000 � � 2,673,000
Distributions � � � � (7,250,000) (7,250,000)
Net loss � � � � (7,666,000) (7,666,000)

21,449,451 214,000 190,534,000 � (15,158,000) 175,590,000
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BALANCE �
December 31, 2007
Issuance of
common stock 52,694,439 528,000 525,824,000 � � 526,352,000
Issuance of vested
and nonvested
restricted common
stock 52,500 � 25,000 � � 25,000
Offering costs � � (55,146,000) � � (55,146,000)
Amortization of
nonvested common
stock
compensation � � 105,000 � � 105,000
Issuance of
common stock
under the DRIP 1,378,795 14,000 13,085,000 � � 13,099,000
Repurchase of
common stock (109,748) (1,000) (1,076,000) � � (1,077,000)
Distributions � � � � (31,180,000) (31,180,000)
Net loss � � � � (28,448,000) (28,448,000)

BALANCE �
December 31, 2008 75,465,437 $ 755,000 $ 673,351,000 $ � $ (74,786,000) $ 599,320,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the Period from
April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006

Period from
April 28, 2006

(Date of
Inception)

Years Ended December 31, through

2008 2007
December 31,

2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $ (28,448,000) $ (7,666,000) $       (242,000)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization (including deferred
financing costs, above/below market leases, debt
discount, leasehold interests, deferred rent receivable
and lease inducements) 35,617,000 9,466,000 �
Stock based compensation, net of forfeitures 130,000 96,000 51,000
Loss on property insurance settlements 90,000 � �
Bad debt expense 442,000 � �
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments 12,822,000 1,377,000 �
Minority interests 39,000 (8,000) �
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses � � (180,000)
Accounts and other receivables, net (4,261,000) (1,114,000) �
Other assets (1,076,000) (655,000) (3,000)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,578,000 4,721,000 62,000
Accounts payable due to affiliates, net (176,000) 927,000 312,000
Security deposits, prepaid rent and other liabilities (80,000) (139,000) �

Net cash provided by operating activities 20,677,000 7,005,000 �

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of real estate operating properties (503,638,000) (380,398,000) �
Acquisition of real estate note receivables (15,000,000) � �
Acquisition costs related to real estate note receivables (338,000) � �
Capital expenditures (4,478,000) (437,000) �
Restricted cash (3,142,000) (4,605,000) �
Proceeds from insurance settlement 121,000 � �

Net cash used in investing activities (526,475,000) (385,440,000) �
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings on mortgage loan payables 227,695,000 148,906,000 �
Borrowings on unsecured note payables to affiliate 6,000,000 19,900,000 �
(Payments) borrowings under the line of credit, net (51,801,000) 51,801,000 �
Payments on mortgage loan payables (1,832,000) (151,000) �
Payments on unsecured note payables to affiliate (6,000,000) (19,900,000) �
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 528,816,000 210,937,000 2,000
Deferred financing costs (3,688,000) (2,496,000) �
Security deposits 127,000 35,000 �
Repurchase of common stock (1,077,000) � �
Minority interest contributions to our operating
partnership � � 200,000
Payment of offering costs (54,339,000) (22,009,000) �
Distributions (14,943,000) (3,323,000) �
Distributions to minority interest limited partner (296,000) � �

Net cash provided by financing activities 628,662,000 383,700,000 202,000

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 122,864,000 5,265,000 202,000
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS � Beginning of
period 5,467,000 202,000 �

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS � End of period $ 128,331,000 $ 5,467,000 $ 202,000

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH
FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for:
Interest $ 19,323,000 $ 4,328,000 $ �
Income taxes $ 45,000 $ 2,000 $ �
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH
ACTIVITIES:
Investing Activities:
Accrued capital expenditures $ 2,112,000 $ 609,000 $ �
The following represents the increase in certain
assets and liabilities in connection with our
acquisitions of operating properties and note
receivables:
Accounts and other receivables, net $ � $ 10,000 $ �
Other assets, net $ 415,000 $ 715,000 $ �
Mortgage loan payables, net $ 48,989,000 $ 37,039,000 $ �
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 2,542,000 $ 1,459,000 $ �
Accounts payable due to affiliates, net $ 77,000 $ 5,000 $ �
Security deposits, prepaid rent and other liabilities $ 2,416,000 $ 1,952,000 $ �
Minority interests $ � $ 2,899,000 $ �
Financing Activities: �
Issuance of common stock under the DRIP $ 13,099,000 $ 2,673,000 $ �
Distributions declared but not paid $ 4,393,000 $ 1,254,000 $ �
Accrued offering costs $ 1,918,000 $ 1,111,000 $ �
Accrued deferred financing costs $ 29,000 $ � $ �
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Receivable from transfer agent for issuance of common
stock $ � $ 109,000 $ �

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the Period from April 28, 2006

(Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006

The use of the words �we,� �us� or �our� refers to Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. and its subsidiaries,
including Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Holdings, L.P., except where the context otherwise requires.

1.  Organization and Description of Business

Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc., a Maryland corporation, was incorporated on April 20, 2006. We were initially
capitalized on April 28, 2006 and therefore we consider that our date of inception. We provide stockholders the
potential for income and growth through investment in a diversified portfolio of real estate properties, focusing
primarily on medical office buildings and healthcare related facilities. We may also invest in other real estate related
assets. We focus primarily on investments that produce recurring income. We have qualified and elected to be taxed as
a real estate investment trust, or REIT, under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code, for federal
income tax purposes and we intend to continue to be taxed as a REIT.

We are conducting a best efforts initial public offering, or our offering, in which we are offering up to
200,000,000 shares of our common stock for $10.00 per share and up to 21,052,632 shares of our common stock
pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan, or the DRIP, for $9.50 per share, aggregating up to $2,200,000,000.
We will sell shares in our offering until the earlier of September 20, 2009, or the date on which the maximum amount
has been sold. As of December 31, 2008, we had received and accepted subscriptions in our offering for
73,824,809 shares of our common stock, or $737,398,000, excluding shares of our common stock issued under the
DRIP.

We conduct substantially all of our operations through Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Holdings, L.P., or our
operating partnership. We are currently externally advised by Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Advisor, LLC, or our
advisor, pursuant to an advisory agreement, as amended and restated on November 14, 2008 and effective as of
October 24, 2008, or the Advisory Agreement, between us, our advisor and Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, LLC, or
Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, who is the managing member of our advisor. Our advisor is affiliated with us in that
we and our advisor have a common officer, who also owns an indirect equity interest in our advisor. Our advisor
engages affiliated entities, including Triple Net Properties Realty, Inc., or Realty, and Grubb & Ellis Management
Services, Inc. to provide various services to us, including property management services.

The Advisory Agreement expires on September 20, 2009. Our main objectives in amending the Advisory Agreement
on November 14, 2008 were to reduce acquisition and asset management fees and to set the framework for our
transition to self-management. Under the Advisory Agreement, as amended November 14, 2008, our advisor agreed to
use reasonable efforts to cooperate with us as we pursue a self-management program. Upon or prior to completion of
our transition to self-management and/or the termination of the Advisory Agreement, we will no longer be advised by
our advisor or consider our company to be sponsored by Grubb & Ellis Company, or Grubb & Ellis.

Self-management is a corporate model based on internal management rather than external management. In general,
non-traded REITs are externally managed. With external management, a REIT is dependent upon an external advisor.
An externally-managed REIT typically pays acquisition fees, asset management fees, property management fees and
other fees to its advisor for services provided as we do under our Advisory Agreement. In contrast, under our
self-management program, we will be managed internally by our management team led by Scott D. Peters, our Chief
Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the board of directors, under the direction of our board of directors.
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With a self-managed REIT, fees paid to third parties are expected to be substantially reduced. By pursuing
self-management, we have effectively eliminated the potential need for us to pay any fee to our advisor in the future to
�internalize� certain of the functions that
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

they currently provide to us. The Advisory Agreement, as amended November 14, 2008, recognizes our
self-management as the alternative to internalization.

The Advisory Agreement, as amended November 14, 2008, also resulted in the substantial reduction of the acquisition
fees and the asset management fees payable to our advisor, potentially offsetting the various costs of
self-management. Upon completion of our transition to self-management, we will no longer be advised by our advisor
or consider our company to be sponsored by Grubb & Ellis Company, or Grubb & Ellis.

On December 7, 2007, NNN Realty Advisors, Inc., or NNN Realty Advisors, which previously served as our sponsor,
merged with and into a wholly owned subsidiary of Grubb & Ellis. The transaction was structured as a reverse merger
whereby stockholders of NNN Realty Advisors received shares of common stock of Grubb & Ellis in exchange for
their NNN Realty Advisors shares of common stock and, immediately following the merger, former NNN Realty
Advisor stockholders held approximately 59.5% of the common stock of Grubb & Ellis. As a result of the merger, we
consider Grubb & Ellis to be our sponsor. Following the merger, NNN Healthcare/Office REIT, Inc., NNN
Healthcare/Office REIT Holdings, L.P., NNN Healthcare/Office REIT Advisor, LLC, NNN Healthcare/Office
Management, LLC, Triple Net Properties, LLC and NNN Capital Corp. changed their names to Grubb & Ellis
Healthcare REIT, Inc., Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Holdings, L.P., Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Advisor, LLC,
Grubb & Ellis Healthcare Management, LLC, Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, LLC and Grubb & Ellis Securities, Inc.,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2008, we owned 41 geographically diverse properties comprising 5,156,000 square feet of gross
leasable area, or GLA, and one real estate related asset, for an aggregate purchase price of $966,416,000.

2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The summary of significant accounting policies presented below is designed to assist in understanding our
consolidated financial statements. Such financial statements and the accompanying notes are the representations of our
management, who are responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, or GAAP, in all material respects, and have been
consistently applied in preparing our accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

Our accompanying consolidated financial statements include our accounts and those of our operating partnership, the
wholly owned subsidiaries of our operating partnership and any variable interest entities, as defined, in Financial
Accounting Standards Board Interpretation, or FIN, No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an
Interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, as revised, or FIN No. 46(R), that we have concluded should
be consolidated. We operate and intend to continue to operate in an umbrella partnership REIT structure in which our
operating partnership, or wholly owned subsidiaries of our operating partnership, own substantially all of the
properties we acquire. We are the sole general partner of our operating partnership and as of December 31, 2008 and
2007, we owned a 99.99% general partnership interest in our operating partnership. Our advisor is a limited partner of
our operating partnership and as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, owned a 0.01% limited partnership interest in our
operating partnership. Our advisor is also entitled to certain subordinated distribution rights under the partnership
agreement for our operating partnership. Because we are the sole general partner of our operating partnership and have
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unilateral control over its management and major operating decisions (even if additional limited partners are admitted
to our operating partnership), the accounts of our operating partnership are consolidated in our consolidated financial
statements. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. These estimates are made and evaluated on an on-going basis using
information that is currently available as well as various other assumptions believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates, perhaps in material adverse ways, and those estimates
could be different under different assumptions or conditions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash is comprised of impound reserve accounts for property taxes, insurance, capital improvements and
tenant improvements.

Revenue Recognition, Tenant Receivables and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases, or
SFAS No. 13, as amended and interpreted, minimum annual rental revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the term of the related lease (including rent holidays). Differences between rental income recognized and amount
contractually due under the lease agreements will be credited or charged, as applicable, to rent receivable. Tenant
reimbursement revenue, which is comprised of additional amounts recoverable from tenants for common area
maintenance expenses and certain other recoverable expenses, is recognized as revenue in the period in which the
related expenses are incurred. Tenant reimbursements are recognized and presented in accordance with Emerging
Issues Task Force, or EITF, Issue No. 99-19, Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent, or Issue
No. 99-19. Issue No. 99-19 requires that these reimbursements be recorded on a gross basis, as we are generally the
primary obligor with respect to purchasing goods and services from third-party suppliers, have discretion in selecting
the supplier and have credit risk. We recognize lease termination fees if there is a signed termination letter agreement,
all of the conditions of the agreement have been met, and the tenant is no longer occupying the property.

Tenant receivables and unbilled deferred rent receivables are carried net of the allowances for uncollectible current
tenant receivables and unbilled deferred rent. An allowance is maintained for estimated losses resulting from the
inability of certain tenants to meet the contractual obligations under their lease agreements. We maintain an allowance
for deferred rent receivables arising from the straight-lining of rents. Such allowance is charged to bad debt expense
which is included in general and administrative on our accompanying consolidated statement of operations. Our
determination of the adequacy of these allowances is based primarily upon evaluations of historical loss experience,
the tenant�s financial condition, security deposits, letters of credit, lease guarantees and current economic conditions
and other relevant factors. As December 31, 2008 and 2007, we had $416,000 and $7,000, respectively, in allowances
for uncollectible accounts as determined to be necessary to reduce receivables to our estimate of the amount
recoverable. During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, $442,000 and $11,000, respectively, of receivables
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December 31, 2006, there was no bad debt expense recorded.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

Properties Held for Sale

We account for our properties held for sale in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long Lived Assets, or SFAS No. 144, which addresses financial accounting and reporting for the
impairment or disposal of long-lived assets and requires that, in a period in which a component of an entity either has
been disposed of or is classified as held for sale, the statements of operations for current and prior periods shall report
the results of operations of the component as discontinued operations.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, at such time as a property is held for sale, such property is carried at the lower of:
(1) its carrying amount or (2) fair value less costs to sell. In addition, a property being held for sale ceases to be
depreciated. We classify operating properties as property held for sale in the period in which all of the following
criteria are met:

� management, having the authority to approve the action, commits to a plan to sell the asset;

� the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such assets;

� an active program to locate a buyer and other actions required to complete the plan to sell the asset has been
initiated;

� the sale of the asset is probable and the transfer of the asset is expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year;

� the asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value; and

� given the actions required to complete the plan to sell the asset, it is unlikely that significant changes to the
plan would be made or that the plan would be withdrawn.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, we did not have any properties held for sale.

Purchase Price Allocation

In accordance with SFAS, No. 141, Business Combinations, we, with the assistance of independent valuation
specialists, allocate the purchase price of acquired properties to tangible and identified intangible assets and liabilities
based on their respective fair values. The allocation to tangible assets (building and land) is based upon our
determination of the value of the property as if it were to be replaced and vacant using discounted cash flow models
similar to those used by independent appraisers. Factors considered by us include an estimate of carrying costs during
the expected lease-up periods considering current market conditions and costs to execute similar leases. Additionally,
the purchase price of the applicable property is allocated to the above or below market value of in place leases, the
value of in place leases, tenant relationships and above or below market debt assumed.

The value allocable to the above or below market component of the acquired in place leases is determined based upon
the present value (using a discount rate which reflects the risks associated with the acquired leases) of the difference
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between: (1) the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to the lease over its remaining term, and (2) our estimate of
the amounts that would be paid using fair market rates over the remaining term of the lease. The amounts allocated to
above market leases are included in identified intangible assets, net in our accompanying consolidated balance sheets
and amortized to rental income over the remaining non-cancelable lease term of the acquired leases with each
property. The amounts allocated to below market lease values are included in identified intangible liabilities, net in
our accompanying consolidated balance sheets and amortized to rental income over the remaining non-cancelable
lease term plus any below market renewal options of the acquired leases with each property.
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The total amount of other intangible assets acquired is further allocated to in place lease costs and the value of tenant
relationships based on our evaluation of the specific characteristics of each tenant�s lease and our overall relationship
with that respective tenant. Characteristics considered by us in allocating these values include the nature and extent of
the credit quality and expectations of lease renewals, among other factors. The amounts allocated to in place lease
costs are included in identified intangible assets, net in our accompanying consolidated balance sheets and will be
amortized over the average remaining non-cancelable lease term of the acquired leases with each property. The
amounts allocated to the value of tenant relationships are included in identified intangible assets, net in our
accompanying consolidated balance sheets and are amortized over the average remaining non-cancelable lease term of
the acquired leases plus a market lease term.

The value allocable to above or below market debt is determined based upon the present value of the difference
between the cash flow stream of the assumed mortgage and the cash flow stream of a market rate mortgage. The
amounts allocated to above or below market debt are included in mortgage loan payables, net on our accompanying
consolidated balance sheets and are amortized to interest expense over the remaining term of the assumed mortgage.

These allocations are subject to change based on information received within one year of the purchase related to one
or more events identified at the time of purchase which confirm the value of an asset or liability received in an
acquisition of property.

Operating Properties, Net

Operating properties are carried at the lower of historical cost less accumulated depreciation or fair value less costs to
sell. The cost of operating properties includes the cost of land and completed buildings and related improvements.
Expenditures that increase the service life of properties are capitalized and the cost of maintenance and repairs is
charged to expense as incurred. The cost of buildings is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the buildings up to 39 years and for tenant improvements, the shorter of the lease term or useful life, ranging
from one month to 241 months, respectively. Furniture, fixtures and equipment is depreciated over five years. When
depreciable property is retired, replaced or disposed of, the related costs and accumulated depreciation are removed
from the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in operations.

An operating property is evaluated for potential impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
its carrying amount may not be recoverable. Impairment losses are recorded on an operating property when indicators
of impairment are present and the carrying amount of the asset is greater than the sum of the future undiscounted cash
flows expected to be generated by that asset. We would recognize an impairment loss to the extent the carrying
amount exceeded the fair value of the property. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period
from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006, there were no impairment losses recorded.

Derivative Financial Instruments

We are exposed to the effect of interest rate changes in the normal course of business. We seek to mitigate these risks
by following established risk management policies and procedures which include the occasional use of derivatives.
Our primary strategy in entering into derivative contracts is to add stability to interest expense and to manage our
exposure to interest rate movements. We utilize derivative instruments, including interest rate swaps and caps, to
effectively convert a portion of our variable-rate debt to fixed-rate debt. We do not enter into derivative instruments
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Derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets and are measured at fair
value in accordance with SFAS No. 133, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, or
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SFAS No. 133. Since our derivative instruments are not designated as hedge instruments, they do not qualify for
hedge accounting under SFAS No. 133, and accordingly, changes in fair value are included as a component of interest
expense in our consolidated statements of operations in the period of change.

Fair Value Measurements

On January 1, 2008, we adopted SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, or SFAS No. 157. SFAS No. 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
SFAS No. 157 applies to reported balances that are required or permitted to be measured at fair value under existing
accounting pronouncements; accordingly, the standard does not require any new fair value measurements of reported
balances.

SFAS No. 157 emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement.
Therefore, a fair value measurement should be determined based on the assumptions that market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability. As a basis for considering market participant assumptions in fair value
measurements, SFAS No. 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between market participant
assumptions based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that
are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity�s own assumptions about market
participant assumptions (unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy).

Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that we have the
ability to access. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs may include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities
in active markets, as well as inputs that are observable for the asset or liability (other than quoted prices), such as
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals. Level 3
inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically based on an entity�s own assumptions, as
there is little, if any, related market activity. In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is
based on inputs from different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
in its entirety. Our assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety
requires judgment, and considers factors specific to the asset or liability.

Other Assets, Net

Other assets consist primarily of deferred rent receivables, leasing commissions, prepaid expenses, deposits and
deferred financing costs. Costs incurred for property leasing have been capitalized as deferred assets. Deferred leasing
costs include leasing commissions that are amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the related lease.
Deferred financing costs include amounts paid to lenders and others to obtain financing. Such costs are amortized
using the straight-line method over the term of the related loan, which approximates the effective interest rate method.
Amortization of deferred financing costs is included in interest expense in our accompanying consolidated statements
of operations.

Stock Compensation
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We follow SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, to account for our stock compensation pursuant to our 2006
Incentive Plan and the 2006 Independent Directors Compensation Plan, a sub-plan of our 2006 Incentive Plan. See
Note 14, Stockholders� Equity (Deficit) � 2006 Incentive Plan and Independent Directors Compensation Plan, for a
further discussion of grants under our 2006 Incentive Plan.
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Minority Interests

Minority interests relate to the interests in our consolidated entities that are not wholly owned by us.

Income Taxes

We have qualified and elected to be taxed as a REIT beginning with our taxable year ended December 31, 2007 under
Sections 856 through 860 of the Code, for federal income tax purposes and we intend to continue to be taxed as a
REIT. To continue to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, we must meet certain organizational and
operational requirements, including a requirement to pay distributions to our stockholders of at least 90.0% of our
annual taxable income (computed without regard to the dividends paid deduction and excluding net capital gain). As a
REIT, we generally are not subject to federal income tax on net income that we distribute to our stockholders.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we will then be subject to federal income taxes on our taxable
income and will not be permitted to qualify for treatment as a REIT for federal income tax purposes for four years
following the year during which qualification is lost unless the Internal Revenue Service grants us relief under certain
statutory provisions. Such an event could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and net cash
available for distribution to stockholders.

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or the FASB, issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, or FIN No. 48. We adopted FIN No. 48 effective January 1, 2007, and as a result we did
not have any liability for uncertain tax positions that we believe should be recognized in our consolidated financial
statements. We follow FIN No. 48 to recognize, measure, present and disclose in our consolidated financial statements
uncertain tax positions that we have taken or expect to take on a tax return.

Segment Disclosure

The Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards,
SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, which establishes standards for
reporting financial and descriptive information about an enterprise�s reportable segments. We have determined that we
have one reportable segment, with activities related to investing in medical office buildings, healthcare related
facilities, quality commercial office properties and other real estate related assets. Our investments in real estate and
real estate related assets are geographically diversified and management evaluates operating performance on an
individual portfolio level. However, as each of our assets has similar economic characteristics, tenants, and products
and services, our assets have been aggregated into one reportable segment for the years ended December 31, 2008 and
2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, which will be applied to other accounting pronouncements that
require or permit fair value measurements, defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
generally accepted accounting principles and provides for expanded disclosure about fair value measurements.
SFAS No. 157 was issued to increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements and to expand
disclosures about fair value measurements. In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position, or FSP,
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SFAS No. 157-1, Application of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting
Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes of Lease Classification or Measurement under
Statement 13, or FSP FAS No. 157-1. FSP SFAS No. 157-1 excludes from the scope of SFAS No. 157 certain leasing
transactions accounted for under SFAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases. In February 2008, the FASB also issued FSP
SFAS No. 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement
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No. 157, or FSP SFAS No. 157-2. FSP SFAS No. 157-2 defers the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for all
non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, to fiscal years beginning after November 1, 2008. In October 2008, the
FASB issued FSP SFAS No. 157-3, Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset
Is Not Active, or FSP SFAS No. 157-3. FSP SFAS No. 157-3 amends SFAS No. 157 by providing an example to
illustrate key considerations and the emphasis on measurement principles when applying SFAS No. 157 to financial
assets when the market for those financial assets is not active. We adopted SFAS No. 157 and FSP SFAS 157-1 on a
prospective basis on January 1, 2008. The adoption of SFAS No. 157 and FSP SFAS No. 157-1 did not have a
material impact on our consolidated financial statements except with regards to enhanced disclosures (see Note 8,
Derivative Financial Instruments). We adopted FSP SFAS No. 157-3 upon issuance, which did not have a material
impact on our consolidated financial statements. We adopted FSP SFAS No. 157-2 on a prospective basis on
January 1, 2009. The implementation of FSP SFAS No. FAS 157-2 did not have and is not anticipated to have a
material effect on the methods or processes we use to value these non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities or
information disclosed.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, or SFAS No. 159. SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and
certain other items at fair value. The objective of the guidance is to improve financial reporting by providing entities
with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities
differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. We adopted SFAS No. 159 on a
prospective basis on January 1, 2008. The adoption of SFAS No. 159 did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements since we did not elect to apply the fair value option for any of our eligible financial
instruments or other items on the January 1, 2008 effective date.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations, or SFAS No. 141(R), and
SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements � An Amendment of ARB No. 51, or
SFAS No. 160. SFAS No. 141(R) and SFAS No. 160 will significantly change the accounting for, and reporting of,
business combination transactions and noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated financial statements.
SFAS No. 141(R) requires an acquiring entity to recognize acquired assets and liabilities assumed in a transaction at
fair value as of the acquisition date, changes the disclosure requirements for business combination transactions and
changes the accounting treatment for certain items, including contingent consideration agreements which will be
required to be recorded at acquisition date fair value and acquisition costs which will be required to be expensed as
incurred. SFAS No. 160 requires that noncontrolling interests be presented as a component of consolidated
stockholders� equity, eliminates minority interest accounting such that the amount of net income attributable to the
noncontrolling interests will be presented as part of consolidated net income in our accompanying consolidated
statements of operations and not as a separate component of income and expense, and requires that upon any changes
in ownership that result in the loss of control of the subsidiary, the noncontrolling interest be re-measured at fair value
with the resultant gain or loss recorded in net income. SFAS No. 141(R) and SFAS No. 160 require simultaneous
adoption and are to be applied prospectively for the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15,
2008. Early adoption of either standard was prohibited. We have adopted SFAS No. 141(R) and SFAS No. 160 on a
prospective basis on January 1, 2009. The adoption of SFAS No. 160 is not expected to have a material impact on our
consolidated statements of operations or cash flows. However, we are currently evaluating whether the adoption of
SFAS No. 160 could have a material impact on the consolidated balance sheets and statements of stockholders� equity.
The adoption of SFAS No. 141(R) will have a material impact on our results of operations when we acquire real estate
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In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, or
SFAS No. 161. SFAS No. 161 is intended to improve financial reporting about derivative
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instruments and hedging activities by requiring enhanced disclosures to enable investors to better understand their
effects on an entity�s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. SFAS No. 161 achieves these
improvements by requiring disclosure of the fair values of derivative instruments and their gains and losses in a
tabular format. It also provides more information about an entity�s liquidity by requiring disclosure of derivative
features that are credit risk-related. Finally, SFAS No. 161 requires cross-referencing within footnotes to enable
financial statement users to locate important information about derivative instruments. SFAS No. 161 is effective for
quarterly interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008, and fiscal years that include those quarterly interim
periods with early application encouraged. We adopted SFAS No. 161 on a prospective basis on January 1, 2009. The
adoption of SFAS No. 161 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP SFAS No. 142-3, Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets, or FSP
SFAS No. 142-3. FSP SFAS No. 142-3 is intended to improve the consistency between the useful life of recognized
intangible assets under SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, or SFAS No. 142, and the period of
expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the assets under SFAS No. 141(R). FSP SFAS No. 142-3
amends the factors an entity should consider in developing renewal or extension assumptions in determining the
useful life of recognized intangible assets. FSP SFAS No. 142-3 requires an entity to consider its own historical
experience in renewing or extending similar arrangements, or to consider market participant assumptions consistent
with the highest and best use of the assets if relevant historical experience does not exist. In addition to the required
disclosures under SFAS No. 142, FSP SFAS No. 142-3 requires disclosure of the entity�s accounting policy regarding
costs incurred to renew or extend the term of recognized intangible assets, the weighted average period to the next
renewal or extension, and the total amount of capitalized costs incurred to renew or extend the term of recognized
intangible assets. FSP SFAS No. 142-3 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2008. While the standard for determining the useful life of recognized intangible assets
is to be applied prospectively only to intangible assets acquired after the effective date, the disclosure requirements
shall be applied prospectively to all recognized intangible assets as of, and subsequent to, the effective date. Early
adoption is prohibited. We have adopted FSP SFAS No. 142-3 on a prospective basis on January 1, 2009. The
adoption of FSP SFAS No. 142-3 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, Issue No. 03-6-1, Determining Whether
Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities, or FSP EITF No. 03-6-1.
FSP EITF No. 03-6-1 addresses whether instruments granted by an entity in share-based payment transactions should
be considered as participating securities prior to vesting and, therefore, should be included in the earnings allocation in
computing earnings per share under the two-class method described in paragraphs 60 and 61 of FASB Statement
No. 128, Earnings per Share. FSP EITF No. 03-6-1 clarifies that instruments granted in share-based payment
transactions can be participating securities prior to vesting (that is, awards for which the requisite service had not yet
been rendered). Unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend
equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are participating securities and shall be included in the computation of earnings
per share pursuant to the two-class method. FSP EITF No. 03-6-1 requires us to retrospectively adjust our earnings per
share data (including any amounts related to interim periods, summaries of earnings and selected financial data) to
conform to the provisions of FSP EITF No. 03-6-1. FSP EITF No. 03-6-1 is effective for financial statements issued
for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2008. FSP EITF No. 03-6-1 is effective for quarterly
interim periods beginning after December 15, 2008, and fiscal years that include those quarterly interim periods. Early
adoption was prohibited. We have adopted FSP EITF No. 03-6-1 on a prospective basis on January 1, 2009. The
adoption of FSP EITF No. 03-6-1 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements because we
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3.  Real Estate Investments

Our investments in our consolidated properties consisted of the following as of December 31, 2008 and 2007:

December 31,
2008 2007

Land $ 107,389,000 $ 52,428,000
Building and improvements 728,171,000 305,150,000
Furniture and equipment 10,000 5,000

835,570,000 357,583,000

Less: accumulated depreciation (24,650,000) (4,589,000)

$ 810,920,000 $ 352,994,000

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date
of Inception) through December 31, 2006 was $20,487,000, $4,616,000 and $0, respectively.

Property Acquisitions in 2008

During the year ended December 31, 2008, we completed the acquisition of 21 properties. The aggregate purchase
price of these properties was $542,976,000, of which $254,135,000 was initially financed through our secured
revolving line of credit with LaSalle Bank National Association, or LaSalle, and KeyBank National Association, or
KeyBank, or our secured revolving line of credit with LaSalle and KeyBank (see Note 9), and $6,000,000 was initially
financed through an unsecured note payable to NNN Realty Advisors (see Note 7). A portion of the aggregate
purchase price for these acquisitions was also initially financed or subsequently secured by $278,477,000 in mortgage
loan payables. We paid $16,001,000 in acquisition fees to our advisor and its affiliates in connection with these
acquisitions.

Borrowings Incurred in
Connection with the Acquisition Acquisition

Mortgage Line Unsecured Fee to our

Date Ownership Purchase Loan of
Note

Payable
Advisor

and

Property Property Location Acquired Percentage Price Payables(1) Credit(2)
to

Affiliate(3) its Affiliate

Medical Portfolio
1

Overland, KS and
Largo, Brandon

02/01/08 100 % $ 36,950,000 $ 22,000,000 $ 16,000,000 $ � $ 1,109,000
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and Lakeland, FL
Fort Road Medical
Building

St. Paul, MN 03/06/08 100 % 8,650,000 5,800,000 3,000,000 � 260,000

Liberty Falls
Medical Plaza

Liberty Township,
OH

03/19/08 100 % 8,150,000 � 7,600,000 � 245,000

Epler Parke
Building B

Indianapolis, IN 03/24/08 100 % 5,850,000 3,861,000 6,100,000 � 176,000

Cypress Station
Medical Office
Building

Houston, TX 03/25/08 100 % 11,200,000 7,300,000 4,500,000 � 336,000

Vista Professional
Center

Lakeland, FL 03/27/08 100 % 5,250,000 � 5,300,000 � 158,000

Senior Care
Portfolio 1

Arlington,
Galveston,
Port Arthur and
Texas City, TX and
Lomita and
El Monte, CA

Various 100 % 39,600,000 24,800,000 14,800,000 6,000,000 1,188,000

Amarillo Hospital Amarillo, TX 05/15/08 100 % 20,000,000 � 20,000,000 � 600,000
5995 Plaza Drive Cypress, CA 05/29/08 100 % 25,700,000 16,830,000 26,050,000 � 771,000
Nutfield
Professional
Center

Derry, NH 06/03/08 100 % 14,200,000 8,808,000 14,800,000 � 426,000
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Borrowings Incurred in
Connection with the Acquisition Acquisition

Mortgage Line Unsecured Fee to our

Date Ownership Purchase Loan of
Note

Payable Advisor and

Property Property Location Acquired Percentage Price Payables(1) Credit(2)
to

Affiliate(3) its Affiliate

SouthCrest
Medical
Plaza

Stockbridge, GA 06/24/08 100 % 21,176,000 12,870,000 � � 635,000

Medical
Portfolio 3

Indianapolis, IN 06/26/08 100 % 90,100,000 58,000,000 32,735,000 � 2,703,000

Academy
Medical
Center

Tucson, AZ 06/26/08 100 % 8,100,000 5,016,000 8,200,000 � 243,000

Decatur
Medical
Plaza

Decatur, GA 06/27/08 100 % 12,000,000 7,900,000 12,600,000 � 360,000

Medical
Portfolio 2

O�Fallon and
St. Louis, MO and
Keller and
Wichita Falls, TX

Various 100 % 44,800,000 30,304,000 � � 1,344,000

Renaissance
Medical
Centre

Bountiful, UT 06/30/08 100 % 30,200,000 20,495,000 � � 906,000

Oklahoma
City Medical
Portfolio

Oklahoma City, OK 09/16/08 100 % 29,250,000 � 29,700,000 � 878,000

Medical
Portfolio 4

Phoenix, AZ,
Parma and Jefferson
West, OH, and
Waxahachie,
Greenville, and
Cedar Hill, TX

Various 100 % 48,000,000 29,989,000 40,750,000 � 1,440,000

Mountain
Empire
Portfolio

Kingsport and
Bristol, TN and
Pennington Gap
and Norton, VA

09/12/08 100 % 25,500,000 17,304,000 12,000,000 � 765,000

Mountain
Plains
Portfolio

San Antonio
and Webster, TX

12/18/08 100 % 43,000,000 � � � 1,075,000

Marietta, GA 12/22/08 100 % 15,300,000 7,200,000 � � 383,000
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Marietta
Health Park

Total $ 542,976,000 $ 278,477,000 $ 254,135,000 $ 6,000,000 $ 16,001,000

(1) Represents the amount of the mortgage loan payable assumed by us or newly placed on the property in
connection with the acquisition or secured by the property subsequent to acquisition.

(2) Borrowings under our secured revolving line of credit with LaSalle and KeyBank.

(3) Represents our unsecured note payable to affiliate evidenced by an unsecured promissory note. Our unsecured
note payable to affiliate bears interest at a fixed rate and requires monthly interest-only payments for the term of
the unsecured note payable to affiliate.

Property Acquisitions in 2007

During the year ended December 31, 2007, we completed the acquisition of 20 properties. The aggregate purchase
price of these properties was $408,440,000, of which $115,471,000 was initially financed through our secured
revolving line of credit with LaSalle Bank National Association, or LaSalle, and KeyBank National Association, or
KeyBank, or our secured revolving line of credit with LaSalle and KeyBank (see Note 9), and $19,900,000 was
initially financed through unsecured note payables to NNN Realty Advisors (see Note 7). A portion of the aggregate
purchase price for these acquisitions was also initially financed or subsequently secured by $186,050,000 in mortgage
loan payables. We paid $12,255,000 in acquisition fees to our advisor and its affiliates in connection with these
acquisitions.
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Borrowings Incurred in
Connection with the Acquisition Acquisition

Mortgage Line Unsecured Fee to our

Date Ownership Purchase Loan of
Note

Payables Advisor and

Property Property Location Acquired Percentage Price Payables(1) Credit(2)
to

Affiliate(3) its Affiliate

Southpointe
Office Parke
and Epler
Parke I(4)

Indianapolis, IN 01/22/07 100 % $ 14,800,000 $ 9,146,000 $ � $ 5,115,000 $ 444,000

Crawfordsville
Medical
Office Park and
Athens
Surgery
Center(4)

Crawfordsville, IN 01/22/07 100 % 6,900,000 4,264,000 � 2,385,000 207,000

The Gallery
Professional
Building(4)

St. Paul, MN 03/09/07 100 % 8,800,000 6,000,000 � 1,000,000 264,000

Lenox Office
Park, Building
G(4)

Memphis, TN 03/23/07 100 % 18,500,000 12,000,000 � � 555,000

Commons V
Medical Office
Building

Naples, FL 04/24/07 100 % 14,100,000 10,000,000 � � 423,000

Yorktown
Medical Center
and Shakerag
Medical Center

Fayetteville and
Peachtree City, GA

05/02/07 100 % 21,500,000 13,530,000 � � 645,000

Thunderbird
Medical Plaza

Glendale, AZ 05/15/07 100 % 25,000,000 14,000,000 � � 750,000

Triumph
Hospital
Northwest and
Triumph
Hospital
Southwest

Houston and
Sugar Land, TX

06/08/07 100 % 36,500,000 � � 4,000,000 1,095,000

Gwinnett
Professional
Center

Lawrenceville, GA 07/27/07 100 % 9,300,000 5,734,000 � � 279,000

Columbus, OH 08/15/07 100 % 21,900,000 14,500,000 � � 657,000
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1 and 4 Market
Exchange
Kokomo
Medical Office
Park

Kokomo, IN 08/30/07 100 % 13,350,000 8,300,000 � 1,300,000 401,000

St. Mary
Physicians
Center

Long Beach, CA 09/05/07 100 % 13,800,000 8,280,000 � 6,100,000 414,000

2750 Monroe
Boulevard

Valley Forge, PA 09/10/07 100 % 26,700,000 � 27,870,000 � 801,000

East Florida
Senior

Jacksonville, Winter

Care Portfolio Park and Sunrise, FL 09/28/07 100 % 52,000,000 30,500,000 11,000,000 � 1,560,000
Northmeadow
Medical Center

Roswell, GA 11/15/07 100 % 11,850,000 8,000,000 12,400,000 � 356,000

Tucson
Medical Office
Portfolio

Tucson, AZ 11/20/07 100 % 21,050,000 � 22,000,000 � 632,000

Lima Medical
Office
Portfolio

Lima, OH 12/07/07 100 % 25,250,000 � 26,000,000 � 758,000

Highlands
Ranch Medical
Plaza

Highlands Ranch,
CO

12/19/07 100 % 14,500,000 8,853,000 2,901,000 � 435,000

Chesterfield
Rehabilitation
Center

Chesterfield, MO 12/20/07 80.0 % 36,440,000 22,000,000 12,800,000 � 1,093,000

Park Place
Office Park

Dayton, OH 12/20/07 100 % 16,200,000 10,943,000 500,000 � 486,000

Total $ 408,440,000 $ 186,050,000 $ 115,471,000 $ 19,900,000 $ 12,255,000

(1) Represents the amount of the mortgage loan payable assumed by us or newly placed on the property in
connection with the acquisition or secured by the property subsequent to acquisition.

(2) Borrowings under our secured revolving line of credit with LaSalle and KeyBank.

(3) Represents our unsecured note payables to affiliate evidenced by unsecured promissory notes. Our unsecured
note payables to affiliate bears interest at a fixed rate and require monthly interest-only payments for the term of
the unsecured note payables to affiliate.
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(4) This property was acquired from an affiliate and as such an independent appraiser was engaged to value the
property and the transaction was approved and determined by a majority of our board of directors, including a
majority of our independent directors, as fair and reasonable to us, and at a price no greater than the cost of the
investment to our affiliate or the property�s appraised value.

4.  Real Estate Note Receivables, Net

On December 31, 2008, we acquired a real estate related asset in four note receivables secured by two buildings
located in Phoenix, Arizona and Berwyn, Illinois, or the Presidential Note Receivable, for a total purchase price of
$15,000,000, plus closing costs. We acquired the real estate related asset from an unaffiliated third party. We financed
the purchase price of the real estate related asset with funds raised through our offering. An acquisition fee of
$225,000, or approximately 1.5% of the purchase price, was paid to our advisor and its affiliate.

Real estate note receivables, net consisted of the following as of December 31, 2008 and 2007:

Property Name December 31,

Location of Property Property Type
Interest

Rate
Maturity

Date 2008 2007

MacNeal Hospital Medical Office
Building
Berwyn, Illinois

Medical Office
Building

5.95% 11/01/11 $ 7,500,000 $      �

MacNeal Hospital Medical Office
Building
Berwyn, Illinois

Medical Office
Building

5.95% 11/01/11 7,500,000 �

St. Luke�s Medical Office Building
Phoenix, Arizona

Medical Office
Building

5.85% 11/01/11 3,750,000 �

St. Luke�s Medical Office Building
Phoenix, Arizona

Medical Office
Building

5.85% 11/01/11 1,250,000 �

Total real estate note receivable 20,000,000 �
Add: Note receivable closing costs 360,000 �
Less: discount (5,000,000) �

Real estate note receivables, net $ 15,360,000 $ �
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5.  Identified Intangible Assets, Net

Identified intangible assets, net consisted of the following as of December 31, 2008 and 2007:

December 31,
2008 2007

In place leases, net of accumulated amortization of $13,350,000 and $3,326,000
as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, (with a weighted average
remaining life of 91 months and 79 months as of December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively). $ 55,144,000 $ 25,540,000
Above market leases, net of accumulated amortization of $1,513,000 and
$265,000 as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, (with a weighted
average remaining life of 99 months and 119 months as of December 31, 2008
and 2007, respectively). 10,482,000 3,083,000
Tenant relationships, net of accumulated amortization of $6,479,000 and
$1,527,000 as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, (with a weighted
average remaining life of 140 months and 140 months as of December 31, 2008
and 2007, respectively). 64,881,000 31,184,000
Leasehold interests, net of accumulated amortization of $45,000 and $3,000 as
of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, (with a weighted average
remaining life of 982 months and 1,071 months as of December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively). 3,998,000 3,114,000
Master lease, net of accumulated amortization of $231,000 and $0 as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, (with a weighted average remaining
life of 8 months and 0 months as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively). 118,000 �

$ 134,623,000 $ 62,921,000

Amortization expense recorded on the identified intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006 was $18,229,000, $5,435,000
and $0, respectively, which included $1,369,000, $265,000 and $0, respectively, of amortization recorded against
rental income for above market leases and $42,000, $3,000 and $0, respectively, of amortization recorded against
rental expenses for leasehold interests.

Estimated amortization expense on the identified intangible assets as of December 31, 2008 for each of the next five
years ending December 31 and thereafter is as follows:

Year Amount

2009 $ 20,897,000
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2010 $ 17,882,000
2011 $ 15,140,000
2012 $ 13,802,000
2013 $ 11,897,000
Thereafter $ 55,005,000
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6.  Other Assets, Net

Other assets, net consisted of the following as of December 31, 2008 and 2007:

December 31,
2008 2007

Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amortization of $1,461,000 and
$170,000 as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively $ 4,751,000 $ 2,334,000
Lease commissions, net of accumulated amortization of $99,000 and $7,000 as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively 1,009,000 275,000
Lease inducements, net of accumulated amortization of $107,000 and $19,000 as
of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively 753,000 773,000
Deferred rent receivable 3,928,000 534,000
Prepaid expenses and deposits 1,073,000 476,000

$ 11,514,000 $ 4,392,000

Amortization expense recorded on deferred financing costs, lease commissions, lease inducements and note receivable
closing costs for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of
Inception) through December 31, 2006 was $1,472,000, $196,000 and $0, respectively, of which $1,291,000,
$170,000 and $0, respectively, of amortization was recorded as interest expense for deferred financing costs and
$88,000, $19,000 and $0, respectively, of amortization was recorded against rental income for lease inducements and
note receivable closing costs.

Estimated amortization expense on the deferred financing costs, lease commissions and lease inducements as of
December 31, 2008 for each of the next five years ending December 31 and thereafter is as follows:

Year Amount

2009 $ 2,152,000
2010 $ 1,803,000
2011 $ 860,000
2012 $ 411,000
2013 $ 366,000
Thereafter $ 921,000

7.  Mortgage Loan Payables, Net and Unsecured Note Payables to Affiliate

Mortgage Loan Payables, Net
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Mortgage loan payables were $462,542,000 ($460,762,000, net of discount) and $185,899,000 ($185,801,000, net of
discount) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. As of December 31, 2008, we had fixed and variable rate
mortgage loans with effective interest rates ranging from 1.90% to 12.75% per annum and a weighted average
effective interest rate of 4.07% per annum. As of December 31, 2008, we had $141,058,000 ($139,278,000, net of
discount) of fixed rate debt, or 30.5% of mortgage loan payables, at a weighted average interest rate of 5.76% per
annum and $321,484,000 of variable rate debt, or 69.5% of mortgage loan payables, at a weighted average interest
rate of 3.33% per annum. As of December 31, 2007, we had fixed and variable rate mortgage loans with effective
interest rates ranging from 5.52% to 6.78% per annum and a weighted average effective interest rate of 6.07% per
annum. As of December 31, 2007, we had $90,919,000 ($90,821,000 net of discount) of fixed rate debt, or 48.9% of
mortgage loan payables, at a weighted average interest rate of 5.79% per annum and $94,980,000 of variable rate debt,
or 51.1% of mortgage loan payables, at a weighted average interest rate of 6.35% per annum.
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We are required by the terms of the applicable loan documents to meet certain financial covenants, such as debt
service coverage ratios, rent coverage ratios and reporting requirements. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, we were
in compliance with all such covenants and requirements.

Mortgage loan payables, net consisted of the following as of December 31, 2008 and 2007:

December 31,

Property/ Loan
Interest

Rate
Maturity

Date 2008 2007

Fixed Rate Debt:
Southpointe Office Parke and Epler
Parke I 6.11% 09/01/16 $ 9,146,000 $ 9,146,000
Crawfordsville Medical Office Park and
Athens Surgery Center 6.12% 10/01/16 4,264,000 4,264,000
The Gallery Professional Building 5.76% 03/01/17 6,000,000 6,000,000
Lenox Office Park, Building G 5.88% 02/01/17 12,000,000 12,000,000
Commons V Medical Office Building 5.54% 06/11/17 9,939,000 10,000,000
Yorktown Medical Center and Shakerag
Medical Center 5.52% 05/11/17 13,530,000 13,530,000
Thunderbird Medical Plaza 5.67% 06/11/17 14,000,000 14,000,000
Gwinnett Professional Center 5.88% 01/01/14 5,604,000 5,699,000
St. Mary Physicians Center 5.80% 09/04/09 8,280,000 8,280,000
Northmeadow Medical Center 5.99% 12/01/14 7,866,000 8,000,000
Medical Porfolio 2 5.91% 07/01/13 14,408,000 �
Renaissance Medical Centre 5.38% 09/01/15 19,078,000 �
Renaissance Medical Centre 12.75% 09/01/15 1,245,000 �
Medical Porfolio 4 5.50% 06/01/19 6,771,000 �
Medical Porfolio 4 6.18% 06/01/19 1,727,000 �
Marietta Health Park 5.11% 11/01/15 7,200,000 �

141,058,000 90,919,000
Variable Rate Debt:
Senior Care Portfolio 1 4.75%(a) 03/31/10 24,800,000(b) �
1 and 4 Market Exchange 1.93%(a) 09/30/10 14,500,000(b) 14,500,000(c)
East Florida Senior Care Portfolio 1.90%(a) 10/01/10 29,917,000(b) 30,384,000(c)
Kokomo Medical Office Park 1.98%(a) 11/30/10 8,300,000(b) 8,300,000(c)
Chesterfield Rehabilitation Center 3.54%(a) 12/30/10 22,000,000(b) 22,000,000(c)
Park Place Office Park 2.13%(a) 12/31/10 10,943,000(b) 10,943,000(c)
Highlands Ranch Medical Plaza 2.13%(a) 12/31/10 8,853,000(b) 8,853,000(c)
Medical Portfolio 1 2.26%(a) 02/28/11 21,340,000(b) �
Fort Road Medical Building 3.09%(a) 03/06/11 5,800,000(b) �
Medical Portfolio 3 3.69%(a) 06/26/11 58,000,000(b) �
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SouthCrest Medical Plaza 2.78%(a) 06/30/11 12,870,000(b) �
Wachovia Pool Loan(d) 4.65%(a) 06/30/11 50,322,000(b) �
Cypress Station Medical Office Building 2.26%(a) 09/01/11 7,235,000(b) �
Medical Portfolio 4 3.25%(a) 09/24/11 21,400,000(b) �
Decatur Medical Plaza 3.25%(a) 09/26/11 7,900,000(b) �
Mountain Empire Portfolio 3.97%(a) 09/28/11 17,304,000(b) �

321,484,000 94,980,000

Total fixed and variable debt 462,542,000 185,899,000

Less: discount (1,780,000) (98,000)

Mortgage loan payables, net $ 460,762,000 $ 185,801,000

(a) Represents the interest rate in effect as of December 31, 2008.

(b) As of December 31, 2008, we had variable rate mortgage loans on 20 of our properties with effective interest
rates ranging from 1.90% to 4.75% per annum and a weighted average effective interest rate of 3.33% per
annum. However, as of December 31, 2008, we had fixed rate interest rate swaps, ranging from
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4.51% to 6.02%, on our variable rate mortgage loan payables on 20 of our properties, thereby effectively fixing
our interest rate on those mortgage loan payables.

(c) As of December 31, 2007, we had variable rate mortgage loans on six of our properties with effective interest
rates ranging from 6.15% to 6.78% per annum and a weighted average effective interest rate of 6.35% per
annum. However, as of December 31, 2007, we had fixed rate interest rate swaps, ranging from 5.52% to 6.02%,
on all of our variable rate mortgage loan payables, thereby effectively fixing our interest rate on those mortgage
loan payables.

(d) We have a mortgage loan in the principal amount of $50,322,000 secured by Epler Parke Building B, 5995 Plaza
Drive, Nutfield Professional Center, Medical Portfolio 2 and Academy Medical Center.

The principal payments due on our mortgage loan payables as of December 31, 2008 for each of the next five years
ending December 31 and thereafter is as follows:

Year Amount

2009 $ 11,900,000
2010 $ 123,410,000
2011 $ 199,029,000
2012 $ 2,047,000
2013 $ 15,512,000
Thereafter $ 110,644,000

The table above does not reflect all available extension options. Of the amounts maturing in 2010, $64,596,000 have
two one year extensions available and $54,717,000 have a one year extension available. Of the amounts maturing in
2011, $180,831,000 have two one year extensions available.

Unsecured Note Payables to Affiliate

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, we entered into, and subsequently paid down, the following unsecured note payables with NNN
Realty Advisors, evidenced by unsecured promissory notes:

Date of Note Amount
Maturity

Date
Interest

Rate
Date Paid in

Full

06/30/08 $ 6,000,000 12/30/14 4.96% 07/07/08
09/05/07 $ 6,100,000 03/05/08 6.86% 09/11/07
08/30/07 $ 1,300,000 03/01/08 6.85% 09/04/07
06/08/07 $ 4,000,000 12/08/07 6.82% 06/18/07
03/09/07 $ 1,000,000 09/09/07 6.84% 03/28/07

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 229



01/22/07 $ 7,500,000 07/22/07 6.86% 03/28/07

The unsecured note payables to affiliate bore interest at a fixed rate and required monthly interest-only payments for
the terms of the unsecured note payables to affiliate. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, there were no amounts
outstanding under the unsecured note payables to affiliate.

Because these loans were related party loans, the terms of the unsecured note payables to affiliate were approved by
our board of directors, including a majority of our independent directors, and deemed fair, competitive and
commercially reasonable by our board of directors.

8.  Derivative Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, or SFAS No. 133, as amended and
interpreted, establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including
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certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities. We utilize derivatives such as
fixed interest rate swaps to add stability to interest expense and to manage our exposure to interest rate movements.
Consistent with SFAS No. 133 we record derivative financial instruments on our accompanying consolidated balance
sheets as either an asset or a liability measured at fair value. SFAS No. 133 permits special hedge accounting if certain
requirements are met. Hedge accounting allows for gains and losses on derivatives designated as hedges to be offset
by the change in value of the hedged item(s) or to be deferred in other comprehensive income.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, no derivatives were designated as fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
Derivatives not designated as hedges are not speculative and are used to manage our exposure to interest rate
movements, but do not meet the strict hedge accounting requirements of SFAS No. 133. Changes in the fair value of
derivative financial instruments are recorded in loss on derivative financial instruments in our accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.

The following table lists the derivative financial instruments held by us as of December 31, 2008:

Notional Amount Index Rate Fair Value Instrument Maturity

$       14,500,000 LIBOR 5.97% $ (870,000) Swap 09/28/10
$ 8,300,000 LIBOR 5.86% $ (512,000) Swap 11/30/10
$ 8,853,000 LIBOR 5.52% $ (480,000) Swap 12/31/10
$ 10,943,000 LIBOR 5.52% $ (593,000) Swap 12/31/10
$ 22,000,000 LIBOR 5.59% $ (1,167,000) Swap 12/30/10
$ 29,917,000 LIBOR 6.02% $ (1,776,000) Swap 10/01/10
$ 21,340,000 LIBOR 5.23% $ (976,000) Swap 01/31/11
$ 5,800,000 LIBOR 4.70% $ (221,000) Swap 03/06/11
$ 7,235,000 LIBOR 4.51% $ (168,000) Swap 05/03/10
$ 24,800,000 LIBOR 4.85% $ (554,000) Swap 03/31/10
$ 50,322,000 LIBOR 5.60% $ (1,797,000) Swap 06/30/10
$ 12,870,000 LIBOR 5.65% $ (460,000) Swap 06/30/10
$ 58,000,000 LIBOR 5.59% $ (1,972,000) Swap 06/26/10
$ 21,400,000 LIBOR 5.27% $ (936,000) Swap 09/23/11
$ 7,900,000 LIBOR 5.16% $ (355,000) Swap 09/26/11
$ 17,304,000 LIBOR 5.87% $ (1,361,000) Swap 09/28/13

The following table lists derivative financial instruments held by us as of December 31, 2007:

Notional Amount Index Rate Fair Value Instrument Maturity

$       14,500,000 LIBOR 5.97% $ (306,000) Swap 09/28/10
$ 8,300,000 LIBOR 5.86% $ (164,000) Swap 11/30/10
$ 8,853,000 LIBOR 5.52% $ (23,000) Swap 12/31/10
$ 10,943,000 LIBOR 5.52% $ (65,000) Swap 12/31/10
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$ 22,000,000 LIBOR 5.59% $ (117,000) Swap 12/30/10
$ 30,384,000 LIBOR 6.02% $ (702,000) Swap 10/01/10

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the fair value of our derivative financial instruments was $(14,198,000) and
$(1,377,000), respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, we recorded $12,821,000, $1,377,000 and $0, respectively, as an increase to
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interest expense related to the change in the fair value of our derivative financial instruments. See Note 16, Fair Value
Measurements for a further discussion of the fair value of our derivative financial instruments.

9.  Line of Credit

We have a loan agreement, or the Loan Agreement, with LaSalle and KeyBank, in which we obtained a secured
revolving line of credit with LaSalle and KeyBank in an aggregate maximum principal amount of $80,000,000. The
actual amount of credit available under the Loan Agreement is a function of certain loan to cost, loan to value and
debt service coverage ratios contained in the Loan Agreement. The maximum principal amount of the Loan
Agreement may be increased to $120,000,000 subject to the terms of the Loan Agreement. Also, additional financial
institutions may become lenders under the Loan Agreement. The initial maturity date of the Loan Agreement is
September 10, 2010, which may be extended by one 12-month period subject to satisfaction of certain conditions,
including payment of an extension fee equal to 0.20% of the principal balance of loans then outstanding.

At our option, loans under the Loan Agreement bear interest at per annum rates equal to: (1) the London Interbank
Offered Rate, or LIBOR, plus a margin of 1.50%, (2) the greater of LaSalle�s prime rate or the Federal Funds Rate (as
defined in the Loan Agreement) plus 0.50%, or (3) a combination of these rates.

The Loan Agreement contains various affirmative and negative covenants that are customary for facilities and
transactions of this type, including limitations on the incurrence of debt by us and our subsidiaries that own properties
that serve as collateral for the Loan Agreement, limitations on the nature of our business, and limitations on our
subsidiaries that own properties that serve as collateral for the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement also imposes
the following financial covenants on us and our operating partnership, as applicable: (1) a minimum ratio of operating
cash flow to interest expense, (2) a minimum ratio of operating cash flow to fixed charges, (3) a maximum ratio of
liabilities to asset value, (4) a maximum distribution covenant and (5) a minimum net worth covenant, all of which are
defined in the Loan Agreement. In addition, the Loan Agreement includes events of default that are customary for
facilities and transactions of this type. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, we were in compliance with all such
covenants and requirements.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, borrowings under our secured revolving line of credit with LaSalle and KeyBank
totaled $0 and $51,801,000, respectively. Borrowings as of December 31, 2007 bore interest at a weighted average
interest rate of 6.93% per annum.

10.  Identified Intangible Liabilities, Net

Identified intangible liabilities, net consisted of the following as of December 31, 2008 and 2007:

December 31,
2008 2007

Below market leases, net of accumulated amortization of $1,400,000 and $245,000
as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, (with a weighted average
remaining life of 113 months and 55 months as of December 31, 2008 and 2007,

$ 8,128,000 $ 1,639,000
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$ 8,128,000 $ 1,639,000

Amortization expense recorded on the identified intangible liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006 was $1,280,000, $255,000 and
$0, respectively, which is recorded to rental income in our accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
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Estimated amortization expense on the identified intangible liabilities as of December 31, 2008 for each of the next
five years ending December 31 and thereafter is as follows:

Year Amount

2009 $ 1,751,000
2010 $ 1,441,000
2011 $ 1,013,000
2012 $ 841,000
2013 $ 704,000
Thereafter $ 2,378,000

11.  Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

We are not presently subject to any material litigation nor, to our knowledge, is any material litigation threatened
against us, which if determined unfavorably to us, would have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Environmental Matters

We follow the policy of monitoring our properties for the presence of hazardous or toxic substances. While there can
be no assurance that a material environmental liability does not exist at our properties, we are not currently aware of
any environmental liability with respect to our properties that would have a material effect on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Further, we are not aware of any environmental liability or any
unasserted claim or assessment with respect to an environmental liability that we believe would require additional
disclosure or the recording of a loss contingency.

Other Organizational and Offering Expenses

Our other organizational and offering expenses are being paid by our advisor or its affiliates on our behalf. These
other organizational and offering expenses include all expenses (other than selling commissions and the marketing
support fee which generally represent 7.0% and 2.5% of our gross offering proceeds, respectively) to be paid by us in
connection with our offering. These expenses will only become our liability to the extent other organizational and
offering expenses do not exceed 1.5% of the gross proceeds of our offering. As of December 31, 2008, our advisor
and its affiliates have not incurred other organizational and offering expenses that exceed 1.5% of the gross proceeds
of our offering. As of December 31, 2007, our advisor and its affiliates had incurred other organizational and offering
expenses of $1,086,000 in excess of 1.5% of the gross proceeds of our offering, and therefore these expenses are not
recorded in our accompanying consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2007, however, these expenses
were recorded and have been paid in 2008. In the future, to the extent our advisor or its affiliates incur additional other
organizational and offering expenses in excess of 1.5% of the gross proceeds of our offering, these amounts may
become our liability. See Note 12, Related Party Transactions � Offering Stage, for a further discussion of other
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Chesterfield Rehabilitation Center

The operating agreement with BD St.  Louis Development, LLC, or BD St. Louis, for G&E Healthcare REIT/Duke
Chesterfield Rehab, LLC, or the JV Company, which owns Chesterfield Rehabilitation Center, provides that from
January 1, 2010 to March 31, 2010, our operating partnership has the right and option to purchase the 20.0%
membership interest in the JV Company held by BD St. Louis at a fixed price of
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$3,900,000. We anticipate exercising our right to purchase the 20.0% membership interest. However, if we do not
exercise that right, the operating agreement provides that from January 1, 2011 to March 31, 2011, BD St. Louis has
the right and option to sell all, but not less than all, of its 20.0% membership interest in the JV Company to our
operating partnership at the greater of $10.00 or the fair market value as determined in accordance with the operating
agreement. As of December 31, 2008 the estimated redemption value is $3,133,000.

Other

Our other commitments and contingencies include the usual obligations of real estate owners and operators in the
normal course of business. In our opinion, these matters are not expected to have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

12.  Related Party Transactions

Fees and Expenses Paid to Affiliates

Some of our executive officers are also executive officers and employees and/or holders of a direct or indirect interest
in our advisor, our sponsor, Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, or other affiliated entities. Upon the effectiveness of our
offering, we entered into the Advisory Agreement and a dealer manager agreement, or the Dealer Manager
Agreement, with Grubb & Ellis Securities, Inc., or Grubb & Ellis Securities, or our dealer manager. These agreements
entitle our advisor, our dealer manager and their affiliates to specified compensation for certain services as well as
reimbursement of certain expenses.

On November 14, 2008, we amended and restated the Advisory Agreement with our advisor and Grubb & Ellis Realty
Investors. The Advisory Agreement, as amended November 14, 2008, was effective as of October 24, 2008, and
expires on September 20, 2009.

In the aggregate, for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of
Inception) through December 31, 2006, we incurred $82,622,000, $38,283,000 and $312,000, respectively, to our
advisor or its affiliates as detailed below.

Offering Stage

Selling Commissions

Our dealer manager receives selling commissions of up to 7.0% of the gross offering proceeds from the sale of shares
of our common stock in our offering other than shares of our common stock sold pursuant to the DRIP. Our dealer
manager may re-allow all or a portion of these fees to participating broker-dealers. For the years ended December 31,
2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006, we incurred
$36,307,000, $14,568,000 and $0, respectively, in selling commissions to our dealer manager. Such selling
commissions are charged to stockholders� equity (deficit) as such amounts are reimbursed to our dealer manager from
the gross proceeds of our offering.

Marketing Support Fee and Due Diligence Expense Reimbursements
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Our dealer manager receives non-accountable marketing support fees of up to 2.5% of the gross offering proceeds
from the sale of shares of our common stock in our offering other than shares of our common stock sold pursuant to
the DRIP. Our dealer manager may re-allow a portion up to 1.5% of the gross offering proceeds for non-accountable
marketing fees to participating broker-dealers. In addition, we may reimburse our dealer manager or its affiliates an
additional 0.5% of the gross offering proceeds to participating broker-dealers for accountable bona fide due diligence
expenses. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of
Inception) through December 31, 2006, we incurred
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$13,209,000, $5,382,000 and $0, respectively, in marketing support fees and due diligence expense reimbursements to
our dealer manager. Such fees and reimbursements are charged to stockholders� equity (deficit) as such amounts are
reimbursed to our dealer manager or its affiliates from the gross proceeds of our offering.

Other Organizational and Offering Expenses

Our other organizational and offering expenses are paid by our advisor or Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors on our
behalf. Our advisor or Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors are reimbursed for actual expenses incurred up to 1.5% of the
gross offering proceeds from the sale of shares of our common stock in our offering other than shares of our common
stock sold pursuant to the DRIP. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28,
2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006, we incurred $5,630,000, $3,170,000 and $0, respectively, in
offering expenses to our advisor and its affiliates. Other organizational expenses are expensed as incurred, and
offering expenses are charged to stockholders� equity (deficit) as such amounts are reimbursed to our advisor or its
affiliates from the gross proceeds of our offering.

Acquisition and Development Stage

Acquisition Fee

For the period from September 20, 2006 through October 24, 2008, our advisor or its affiliates received, as
compensation for services rendered in connection with the investigation, selection and acquisition of properties, an
acquisition fee of up to 3.0% of the contract purchase price for each property acquired or up to 4.0% of the total
development cost of any development property acquired, as applicable.

In connection with the Advisory Agreement, as amended November 14, 2008, the acquisition fee payable to our
advisor or its affiliate for services rendered in connection with the investigation, selection and acquisition of our
properties was reduced from up to 3.0% to an amount determined as follows:

� for the first $375,000,000 in aggregate contract purchase price for properties acquired directly or indirectly by
us after October 24, 2008, 2.5% of the contract purchase price of each such property;

� for the second $375,000,000 in aggregate contract purchase price for properties acquired directly or indirectly
by us after October 24, 2008, 2.0% of the contract purchase price of each such property, which amount is
subject to downward adjustment, but not below 1.5%, based on reasonable projections regarding the
anticipated amount of net proceeds to be received in our offering; and

� for above $750,000,000 in aggregate contract purchase price for properties acquired directly or indirectly by us
after October 24, 2008, 2.25% of the contract purchase price of each such property.

The Advisory Agreement, as amended November 14, 2008, also provides that we will pay an acquisition fee in
connection with the acquisition of real estate related assets in an amount equal to 1.5% of the amount funded to
acquire or originate each such real estate related asset.
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Our advisor or its affiliate will be entitled to receive these acquisition fees for real estate and real estate related assets
acquired with funds raised in our offering, including acquisitions completed after the termination of the Advisory
Agreement, as amended November 14, 2008, subject to certain conditions.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, we incurred $16,226,000, $12,253,000 and $0, respectively, in acquisition fees to our advisor or
its affiliates. Through December 31, 2008, acquisition fees are capitalized as part of the purchase price allocations.
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Reimbursement of Acquisition Expenses

Our advisor or its affiliates are reimbursed for acquisition expenses related to selecting, evaluating, acquiring and
investing in properties. Acquisition expenses, excluding amounts paid to third parties, will not exceed 0.5% of the
purchase price of the properties. The reimbursement of acquisition fees and expenses, including real estate
commissions paid to unaffiliated parties, will not exceed, in the aggregate, 6.0% of the purchase price or total
development costs, unless fees in excess of such limits are determined to be commercially competitive, fair and
reasonable to us by a majority of our directors not interested in the transaction and by a majority of our independent
directors not interested in the transaction. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from
April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006, we incurred $24,000, $12,000 and $0, respectively,
for such expenses to our advisor and its affiliates, excluding amounts our advisor and its affiliates paid directly to third
parties. Through December 31, 2008, acquisition expenses are capitalized as part of the purchase price allocations.

Operational Stage

Asset Management Fee

For the period from September 20, 2006 through October 24, 2008, our advisor or its affiliates were paid a monthly
fee for services rendered in connection with the management of our assets in an amount equal to one-twelfth of 1.0%
of the average invested assets calculated as of the close of business on the last day of each month, subject to our
stockholders receiving annualized distributions in an amount equal to at least 5.0% per annum on average invested
capital. The asset management fee is calculated and payable monthly in cash or shares of our common stock at the
option of our advisor or one of its affiliates.

In connection with the Advisory Agreement, as amended November 14, 2008, the monthly asset management fee we
pay to our advisor in connection with the management of our assets was reduced from one-twelfth of 1.0% of our
average invested assets to one-twelfth of 0.5% of our average invested assets.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, we incurred $6,177,000, $1,590,000 and $0, respectively, in asset management fees to our
advisor and its affiliates, which is included in general and administrative in our accompanying consolidated statements
of operations.

Property Management Fee

Our advisor or its affiliates are paid a monthly property management fee equal to 4.0% of the monthly gross cash
receipts from each property managed. For properties managed by other third parties besides our advisor or its
affiliates, our advisor or its affiliates will be paid up to 1.0% of the gross cash receipts from the property for a monthly
oversight fee. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of
Inception) through December 31, 2006, we incurred $2,372,000, $591,000 and $0, respectively, in property
management fees and oversight fees to our advisor and its affiliates, which is included in rental expenses in our
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Lease Fee
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Our advisor or its affiliates, as the property manager, may receive a separate fee for leasing activities in an amount not
to exceed the fee customarily charged in arm�s length transactions by others rendering similar services in the same
geographic area for similar properties, as determined by a survey of brokers and agents in such area ranging between
3.0% and 8.0% of gross revenues generated from the initial term of the lease. For the years ended December 31, 2008
and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006, we incurred
$1,248,000, $265,000 and $0, respectively, to Realty and its affiliates in lease fees.
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On-site Personnel and Engineering Payroll

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors incurred payroll for on-site personnel and engineering on our
behalf of $1,012,000, $162,000 and $0, respectively, which is included in rental expenses in our accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.

Operating Expenses

We reimburse our advisor or its affiliates for expenses incurred in rendering services to us, subject to certain
limitations on our operating expenses. However, we cannot reimburse our advisor or its affiliates for operating
expenses that in the four consecutive fiscal quarters then ended exceed the greater of: (1) 2.0% of our average invested
assets, as defined in the Advisory Agreement, or (2) 25.0% of our net income, as defined in the Advisory Agreement
unless our independent directors determine that such excess expenses were justified based on unusual and
non-recurring factors they deem sufficient. For the 12 months ended December 31, 2008, our operating expenses did
not exceed this limitation. Our operating expenses as a percentage of average invested assets and as a percentage of
net income were 1.2% and 81.4%, respectively, for the 12 months ended December 31, 2008.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors incurred on our behalf $278,000, $203,000 and $312,000,
respectively, in operating expenses which is included in general and administrative in our accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

Related Party Services Agreement

We entered into a services agreement, effective January 1, 2008, with Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors for subscription
agreement processing and investor services. The services agreement had an initial one year term and is automatically
renewed for successive one year terms. Since Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors is the managing member of our advisor,
the terms of this agreement were approved and determined by a majority of our directors, including a majority of our
independent directors, as fair and reasonable to us and at fees charged to us in an amount no greater than the cost to
Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors for providing such services to us, which amount shall be no greater than that which
would be paid to an unaffiliated third party for similar services. The services agreement requires Grubb & Ellis Realty
Investors to provide us with a 180 day advance written notice for any termination, while we have the right to terminate
upon 30 days advance written notice.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, we incurred $130,000, $0 and $0, respectively, for investor services that Grubb & Ellis Realty
Investors provided to us, which is included in general and administrative in our accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, our advisor and its affiliates incurred $172,000, $0 and $0, respectively, in subscription
agreement processing that Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors provided to us. As an other organizational and offering
expense, these subscription agreement processing expenses will only become our liability to the extent cumulative
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Compensation for Additional Services

Our advisor or its affiliates are paid for services performed for us other than those required to be rendered by our
advisor or its affiliates under the Advisory Agreement. The rate of compensation for these
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services must be approved by a majority of our board of directors, including a majority of our independent directors,
and cannot exceed an amount that would be paid to unaffiliated third parties for similar services. For the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006,
we incurred $7,000, $3,000 and $0, respectively, for tax services that Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors provided to us,
which is included in general and administrative in our accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Liquidity Stage

Disposition Fee

Our advisor or its affiliates will be paid, for services relating to a sale of one or more properties, a disposition fee up to
the lesser of 1.75% of the contract sales price or 50.0% of a customary competitive real estate commission given the
circumstances surrounding the sale, as determined by our board of directors, which will not exceed market norms. The
amount of disposition fees paid, plus any real estate commissions paid to unaffiliated parties, will not exceed the
lesser of a customary competitive real estate disposition fee given the circumstances surrounding the sale or an
amount equal to 6.0% of the contract sales price. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period
from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006, we did not incur such disposition fees.

Subordinated Participation Interest

Subordinated Distribution of Net Sales Proceeds

Upon liquidation of our portfolio, our advisor will be paid a subordinated distribution of net sales proceeds. The
distribution will be equal to 15.0% of the net proceeds from the sales of properties, after subtracting distributions to
our stockholders of: (1) their initial contributed capital (less amounts paid to repurchase shares of our common stock
pursuant to our share repurchase program) plus (2) an annual cumulative, non-compounded return of 8.0% on average
invested capital. Actual amounts depend upon the sales prices of properties upon liquidation.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, we did not incur such distribution.

Subordinated Distribution upon Listing

Upon the listing of shares of our common stock on a national securities exchange, our advisor will be paid a
distribution equal to 15.0% of the amount by which: (1) the market value of our outstanding common stock at listing
plus distributions paid prior to listing exceeds (2) the sum of the total amount of capital raised from stockholders (less
amounts paid to repurchase shares pursuant to our share repurchase plan) and the amount of cash that, if distributed to
stockholders as of the date of listing, would have provided them an annual 8.0% cumulative, non-compounded return
on average invested capital through the date of listing. Actual amounts depend upon the market value of shares of our
common stock at the time of listing, among other factors. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for
the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006, we did not incur such distribution.

Subordinated Distribution upon Termination
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Upon termination of the Advisory Agreement, other than a termination by us for cause, our advisor will be entitled to
receive a distribution from our operating partnership in an amount equal to 15.0% of the amount, if any, by which:
(1) the fair market value of all of the assets of our operating partnership as of the date of the termination (determined
by appraisal), less any indebtedness secured by such assets, plus the cumulative distributions made to us by our
operating partnership from our inception through the termination
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date, exceeds (2) the sum of the total amount of capital raised from stockholders (less amounts paid to redeem shares
pursuant to our share repurchase plan) plus an annual 8.0% cumulative, non-compounded return on average invested
capital through the termination date. However, our advisor will not be entitled to this distribution if our shares have
been listed on a national securities exchange prior to the termination of the Advisory Agreement.

Pursuant to the terms of the Partnership Agreement Amendment, our advisor may elect to defer its right to receive a
subordinated distribution from our operating partnership after the termination of the Advisory Agreement subject to
certain conditions.

On November 14, 2008, we entered into an amendment to the partnership agreement for our operating partnership, or
the Partnership Agreement Amendment. The Partnership Agreement Amendment provides that after the termination
of the Advisory Agreement without cause, if there is a listing of our shares of common stock on a national securities
exchange or a merger in which our stockholders receive in exchange for shares of our common stock shares of a
company that are tracked on a national securities exchange, our advisor will be entitled to receive a distribution from
our operating partnership in an amount equal to 15.0% of the amount, if any, by which: (1) the fair market value of the
assets of our operating partnership (determined by appraisal as of the listing date or merger date, as applicable) owned
as of the termination of the Advisory Agreement, plus any assets acquired after such termination for which our advisor
was entitled to receive an acquisition fee (as described above under Advisory Agreement � Acquisition Fee), or the
Included Assets, less any indebtedness secured by the Included Assets, plus the cumulative distributions made by our
operating partnership to us and the limited partners who received partnership units in connection with the acquisition
of the Included Assets, from our inception through the listing date or merger date, as applicable, exceeds (2) the sum
of the total amount of capital raised from stockholders and the capital value of partnership units issued in connection
with the acquisition of the Included Assets through the listing date or merger date, as applicable, (excluding any
capital raised after the completion of our offering) (less amounts paid to redeem shares pursuant to our share
repurchase plan) plus an annual 8.0% cumulative, noncompounded return on such invested capital and the capital
value of such partnership units measured for the period from inception through the listing date or merger date, as
applicable.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, we did not incur such distribution.

Accounts Payable Due to Affiliates, Net

The following amounts were outstanding to affiliates as of December 31, 2008 and 2007:

December 31,
Entity Fee 2008 2007

Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors Operating Expenses $ 33,000 $ 79,000
Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors Offering Costs 797,000 798,000
Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors Due Diligence � 25,000
Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors On-site Payroll and Engineering 207,000 51,000
Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors Acquisition Related Expenses 103,000 4,000
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Grubb & Ellis Securities Selling Commissions
and Marketing Support Fees 1,120,000 288,000

Realty Asset and Property Management Fees 726,000 941,000
Realty Lease Commissions 77,000 170,000

$ 3,063,000 $ 2,356,000
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Unsecured Note Payables to Affiliate

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, we incurred $2,000, $84,000 and $0, respectively, in interest expense to NNN Realty Advisors.
See Note 7, Mortgage Loan Payables, Net and Unsecured Note Payables to Affiliate � Unsecured Note Payables to
Affiliate, for a further discussion.

13.  Minority Interests

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, we owned a 99.99% general partnership interest in our operating partnership and
our advisor owned a 0.01% limited partnership interest in our operating partnership. As such, 0.01% of the earnings of
our operating partnership are allocated to minority interests.

In addition, as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, we owned an 80.0% interest in the JV Company that owns the
Chesterfield Rehabilitation Center which was purchased on December 20, 2007. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007,
the balance was comprised of the minority interest�s initial contribution and 20.0% of the earnings at the Chesterfield
Rehabilitation Center. For the year ended December 31, 2008, we recorded a purchase price allocation adjustment
related to the Chesterfield Rehabilitation Center.

14.  Stockholders� Equity (Deficit)

Common Stock

Through December 31, 2008, we granted an aggregate of 90,200 shares of restricted common stock to our independent
directors and affiliates pursuant to the terms and conditions of our 2006 Incentive Plan. Through December 31, 2008,
we issued 73,824,809 shares of our common stock in connection with our offering and 1,660,176 shares of our
common stock under the DRIP, and repurchased 109,748 shares of our common stock under our share repurchase
plan. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, we had 75,465,437 and 21,449,451 shares of our common stock
outstanding, respectively.

We are offering and selling to the public up to 200,000,000 shares of our $0.01 par value common stock for $10.00
per share and up to 21,052,632 shares of our $0.01 par value common stock to be issued pursuant to the DRIP at $9.50
per share. Our charter authorizes us to issue 1,000,000,000 shares of our common stock.

Preferred Stock

Our charter authorizes us to issue 200,000,000 shares of our $0.01 par value preferred stock. As of December 31, 2008
and 2007, no shares of preferred stock were issued and outstanding.

Distribution Reinvestment Plan

We adopted the DRIP that allows stockholders to purchase additional shares of common stock through the
reinvestment of distributions, subject to certain conditions. We registered and reserved 21,052,632 shares of our
common stock for sale pursuant to the DRIP in our offering. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for
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the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006, $13,099,000, $2,673,000 and $0,
respectively, in distributions were reinvested and 1,378,795, 281,381 and 0 shares of our common stock, respectively,
were issued under the DRIP. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, a total of $15,772,000 and $2,673,000, respectively,
in distributions were reinvested and 1,660,176 and 281,381 shares of our common stock, respectively, were issued
under the DRIP.

Share Repurchase Plan

Our board of directors has approved a share repurchase plan. On August 24, 2006, we received SEC exemptive relief
from rules restricting issuer purchases during distributions. The share repurchase plan allows
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for share repurchases by us when certain criteria are met by the requesting stockholders. Share repurchases will be
made at the sole discretion of our board of directors. Funds for the repurchase of shares of our common stock will
come exclusively from the proceeds we receive from the sale of shares of our common stock under the DRIP.

Our board of directors adopted and approved certain amendments to our share repurchase plan which became effective
August 25, 2008. The primary purpose of the amendments is to provide stockholders with the opportunity to have
their shares of our common stock redeemed, at the sole discretion of our board of directors, during the period we are
engaged in a public offering at increasing prices based upon the period of time the shares of common stock have been
continuously held. Under the amended share repurchase plan, redemption prices range from $9.25 per share, or 92.5%
of the price paid per share, following a one year holding period to an amount equal to not less than 100% of the price
paid per share following a four year holding period. Under the previous share repurchase plan, stockholders could
only request to have their shares of our common stock redeemed at $9.00 per share during the period we are engaged
in a public offering.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, we repurchased 109,748 shares of our common stock, for an aggregate
amount of $1,077,000. During the year ended December 31, 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of
Inception) through December 31, 2006, we did not repurchase any share of our common stock.

2006 Incentive Plan and Independent Directors Compensation Plan

Under the terms of our 2006 Incentive Plan, the aggregate number of shares of our common stock subject to options,
shares of restricted common stock, stock purchase rights, stock appreciation rights or other awards, including those
issuable under its sub-plan, the 2006 Independent Directors Compensation Plan, will be no more than
2,000,000 shares.

On September 20, 2006 and October 4, 2006, we granted an aggregate of 15,000 shares and 5,000 shares, respectively,
of restricted common stock, as defined in our 2006 Incentive Plan, to our independent directors under the 2006
Independent Director Compensation Plan. On April 12, 2007, we granted 5,000 shares of restricted common stock to
our newly appointed independent director. On each of June 12, 2007 and June 17, 2008, in connection with their
re-election, we granted 12,500 shares of restricted common stock in the aggregate to our independent directors. Each
of these restricted stock awards vested 20.0% on the grant date and 20.0% will vest on each of the first four
anniversaries of the date of grant.

On November 14, 2008, we granted Mr. Peters 40,000 shares of restricted common stock under, and pursuant to the
terms and conditions of, our 2006 Incentive Plan. The shares of restricted common stock will vest and become
non-forfeitable in equal annual installments of 33.3% each, on the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant
date.

The fair value of each share of restricted common stock was estimated at the date of grant at $10.00 per share, the per
share price of shares of our common stock in our offering, and is amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period. Shares of restricted common stock may not be sold, transferred, exchanged, assigned, pledged, hypothecated
or otherwise encumbered. Such restrictions expire upon vesting. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006, we recognized compensation
expense of $130,000, $96,000 and $51,000, respectively, related to the restricted common stock grants, which is
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included in general and administrative in our accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Shares of restricted
common stock have full voting rights and rights to dividends.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, there was $623,000 and $228,000, respectively, of total unrecognized
compensation expense, net of estimated forfeitures, related to nonvested shares of restricted common stock. As of
December 31, 2008, this expense is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted average period of 2.8 years.
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As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the fair value of the nonvested shares of restricted common stock was $685,000
and $260,000, respectively. A summary of the status of the nonvested shares of restricted common stock as of
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, and the changes for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, is presented below:

Weighted
Restricted Average Grant
Common Date Fair

Stock Value

Balance � April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) � $          �
Granted 20,000 10.00
Vested (4,000) 10.00
Forfeited � �

Balance � December 31, 2006 16,000 10.00
Granted 17,500 10.00
Vested (7,500) 10.00
Forfeited � �

Balance � December 31, 2007 26,000 10.00
Granted 52,500 10.00
Vested (10,000) 10.00
Forfeited � �

Balance � December 31, 2008 68,500 $ 10.00

Expected to vest � December 31, 2008 68,500 $ 10.00

15.  Subordinated Participation Interest

On November 14, 2008, we entered into an amendment to the partnership agreement for our operating partnership, or
the Partnership Agreement Amendment. Pursuant to the terms of the Partnership Agreement Amendment, our advisor
may elect to defer its right to receive a subordinated distribution from our operating partnership after the termination
of the Advisory Agreement, subject to certain conditions.

The Partnership Agreement Amendment provides that after the termination of the Advisory Agreement if there is a
listing of our shares on a national securities exchange or a merger in which our stockholders receive in exchange for
shares of our common stock shares of a company that are tracked on a national securities exchange, our advisor will
be entitled to receive a distribution from our operating partnership in an amount equal to 15.0% of the amount, if any,
by which: (1) the fair market value of the assets of our operating partnership (determined by appraisal as of the listing
date or merger date, as applicable) owned as of the termination of the Advisory Agreement, plus any assets acquired
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after such termination for which our advisor was entitled to receive an acquisition fee (as described above under
Advisory Agreement � Acquisition Fee), or the Included Assets, less any indebtedness secured by the Included Assets,
plus the cumulative distributions made by our operating partnership to us and the limited partners who received
partnership units in connection with the acquisition of the Included Assets, from our inception through the listing date
or merger date, as applicable, exceeds (2) the sum of the total amount of capital raised from stockholders and the
capital value of partnership units issued in connection with the acquisition of the Included Assets through the listing
date or merger date, as applicable, (excluding any capital raised after the completion of our offering) (less amounts
paid to redeem shares of our common stock pursuant to our share repurchase plan) plus an annual 8.0% cumulative,
non-compounded return on such invested capital and the capital value of such partnership units measured for the
period from inception through the listing date or merger date, as applicable.
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In addition, the Partnership Agreement Amendment provides that after the termination date in the event of a
liquidation or sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the operating partnership, or an other liquidity event, then
our advisor will be entitled to receive a distribution from our operating partnership in an amount equal to 15.0% of the
net proceeds from the sale of the Included Assets, after subtracting distributions to our stockholders and the limited
partners who received partnership units in connection with the acquisition of the Included Assets of: (1) their initial
invested capital and the capital value of such partnership units (less amounts paid to repurchase shares pursuant to our
share repurchase program) through the date of the other liquidity event plus (2) an annual 8.0% cumulative,
non-compounded return on such invested capital and the capital value of such partnership units measured for the
period from inception through the other liquidity event date.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, we have not recorded any charges to earnings related to the subordinated participation interest.

16.  Fair Value of Financial Instruments

We use fair value measurements to record fair value of certain assets and to estimate fair value of financial
instruments not recorded at fair value but required to be disclosed at fair value under SFAS No. 107, Disclosure About
Fair Value of Financial Instruments, or SFAS No. 107.

Financial Instruments Reported at Fair Value

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We invest in money market funds which are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy because they are
valued using unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical securities.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Currently, we use interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risk associated with floating rate debt. The valuation of
these instruments is determined using widely accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analysis
on the expected cash flows of each derivative. This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the derivatives, including
the period to maturity, and uses observable market-based inputs, including interest rate curves, foreign exchange rates,
and implied volatilities. The fair values of interest rate swaps are determined using the market standard methodology
of netting the discounted future fixed cash payments and the discounted expected variable cash receipts. The variable
cash receipts are based on an expectation of future interest rates (forward curves) derived from observable market
interest rate curves.

To comply with the provisions of SFAS No. 157, we incorporate credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect
both our own nonperformance risk and the respective counterparty�s nonperformance risk in the fair value
measurements. In adjusting the fair value of our derivative contracts for the effect of nonperformance risk, we have
considered the impact of netting and any applicable credit enhancements, such as collateral postings, thresholds,
mutual puts, and guarantees.
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Although we have determined that the majority of the inputs used to value our derivatives fall within Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy, the credit valuation adjustments associated with our derivatives utilize Level 3 inputs, such as
estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihood of default by us and our counterparties. However, as of
December 31, 2008, we have assessed the significance of the impact of the credit valuation adjustments on the overall
valuation of our derivative positions and have determined that the credit valuation adjustments are not significant to
the overall valuation of our derivatives. As a result, we have determined that our derivative valuations in their entirety
are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Assets and liabilities at fair value

The table below presents our assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2008,
aggregated by the level in the fair value hierarchy within which those measurements fall.

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for
Identical Assets Significant Other Significant

and Liabilities
Observable

Inputs
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 1 ) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

Assets
Money market funds $   110,330,000 $   � $              � $ 110,330,000

Total assets at fair value $ 110,330,000 $ � $ � $ 110,330,000

Liabilities
Derivative financial
instruments $ � $ (14,198,000) $ � $ (14,198,000)

Total liabilities at fair value $ � $   (14,198,000) $ � $ (14,198,000)

We did not have any fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as of December 31,
2008.

Financial Instruments Disclosed at Fair Value

SFAS No. 107 requires disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments, whether or not recognized on the face of
the balance sheet. Fair value is defined under SFAS No. 157.

Our consolidated balance sheets include the following financial instruments: real estate note receivables, net, cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts and other receivables, net, accounts payable and accrued liabilities,
accounts payable due to affiliates, net, mortgage loan payables, net and borrowings under the line of credit.

The carrying value of our note receivables, net reasonably approximates fair value based on expected interest rates for
notes to similar borrowers with similar terms and remaining maturities. We consider the carrying values of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts and other receivables, net and accounts payable and accrued liabilities to
approximate fair value for these financial instruments because of the short period of time between origination of the
instruments and their expected realization. The fair value of accounts payable due to affiliates, net is not determinable
due to the related party nature.
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The fair value of the mortgage loan payable is estimated using borrowing rates available to us for mortgage loan
payables with similar terms and maturities. As of December 31, 2008, the fair value of the mortgage loan payables
was $456,606,000, compared to the carrying value of $460,762,000. As of December 31, 2007, the fair value of the
mortgage loan payables was $181,067,000, compared to the carrying value of $185,801,000. The fair value of our
secured revolving line of credit with LaSalle and KeyBank as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $0 and
$51,801,000, compared to a carrying value of $0 and $51,801,000.
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17.  Tax Treatment of Distributions

The income tax treatment for distributions reportable for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was as
follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006

Ordinary income $ 5,879,000 21.0% $ 915,000 15.3% $  �   �%
Capital gain � � � � � �
Return of capital 22,163,000 79.0 5,081,000 84.7 � �

$ 28,042,000 100% $ 5,996,000 100% $ � �%

18.  Future Minimum Rent

Rental Income

We have operating leases with tenants that expire at various dates through 2037 and in some cases subject to
scheduled fixed increases or adjustments based on the consumer price index. Generally, the leases grant tenants
renewal options. Leases also provide for additional rents based on certain operating expenses. Future minimum rent
contractually due under operating leases, excluding tenant reimbursements of certain costs, as of December 31, 2008
for each of the next five years ending December 31 and thereafter is as follows:

Year Amount

2009 $ 83,797,000
2010 $ 77,291,000
2011 $ 68,364,000
2012 $ 62,464,000
2013 $ 50,866,000
Thereafter $ 213,320,000

Total $ 556,102,000

A certain amount of our rental income is from tenants with leases which are subject to contingent rent provisions.
These contingent rents are subject to the tenant achieving periodic revenues in excess of specified levels. For the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31,
2006, the amount of contingent rent earned by us was not significant.
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19.  Business Combinations

For the year ended December 31, 2008, we completed the acquisition of 21 consolidated properties, adding a total of
approximately 2,920,000 square feet of GLA to our property portfolio. The aggregate purchase price of the 21
properties was $542,976,000 plus closing costs of $14,213,000. See Note 3, Real Estate Investments, for a listing of
the properties acquired and the dates of acquisition. Results of operations for the property acquisitions are reflected in
our consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2008 for the periods subsequent to the
acquisition dates.

In accordance with SFAS No. 141, we allocated the purchase price to the fair value of the assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed, including allocating to the intangibles associated with the in place leases, considering the
following factors: lease origination costs and tenant relationships. Certain allocations as of December 31, 2008 are
subject to change based on information received within one year of the purchase date related to one or more events at
the time of purchase which confirm the value of an asset acquired or a
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liability assumed in an acquisition of a property. The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition for our properties where the purchase price exceeded 10.0%
of the aggregate purchase price of the 21 properties and all other properties aggregated together:

Total

Land $ 55,062,000
Building and improvements 418,060,000
Above market leases 8,768,000
In place leases 41,308,000
Tenant relationships 38,694,000
Leasehold interest 926,000
Master lease 349,000

Total assets acquired 563,167,000
Below market leases (7,768,000)

Total liabilities assumed (7,768,000)

Net assets acquired $ 555,399,000

Assuming the property acquisitions discussed above had occurred on January 1, 2008, for the year ended
December 31, 2008, pro forma revenues, net income (loss) and net income (loss) per basic and diluted share would
have been $109,346,000, $(40,590,000) and $(0.95), respectively.

Assuming the property acquisitions discussed above had occurred on January 1, 2007, for the year ended
December 31, 2007, pro forma revenues, net income (loss) and net income (loss) per basic and diluted share would
have been $75,711,000, $(32,134,000) and $(3.23), respectively.

The pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of the operating results that would have been obtained had the
acquisitions occurred at the beginning of the periods presented, nor are they necessarily indicative of future operating
results.

20.  Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to a concentration of credit risk are primarily cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash and accounts receivable from tenants. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, we had cash
and cash equivalent and restricted cash accounts in excess of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or FDIC, insured
limits. We believe this risk is not significant. Concentration of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable from
tenants is limited. We perform credit evaluations of prospective tenants, and security deposits or letters of credit are
obtained upon lease execution. In addition, we evaluate tenants in connection with the acquisition of a property.
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For the year ended December 31, 2008, we had interests in seven consolidated properties located in Texas, which
accounted for 17.1% of our total rental income and interests in five consolidated properties located in Indiana, which
accounted for 15.5% of our total rental income. Medical Portfolio 3 accounts for 11.3% of our aggregate total rental
income. This rental income is based on contractual base rent from leases in effect as of December 31, 2008.
Accordingly, there is a geographic concentration of risk subject to fluctuations in each state�s economy.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, none of our tenants at our consolidated properties accounted for 10.0% or
more of our aggregate annual rental income
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For the year ended December 31, 2007, we had interests in three consolidated properties located in Ohio, which
accounted for 15.1% of our total rental income, interests in six consolidated properties located in Florida, which
accounted for 14.2% of our total rental income and interest in three consolidated properties located in Georgia, which
accounted for 12.8% of our total rental income. This rental income is based on contractual base rent from leases in
effect as of December 31, 2007. Accordingly, there is a geographic concentration of risk subject to fluctuations in
each state�s economy.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, one of our tenants at our consolidated properties accounted for 10.0% or more
of our aggregate annual rental income, as follows:

Percentage
of Lease

2007 Annual
2007

Annual GLA Expiration

Tenant Base Rent * Base Rent Property
(Square

Feet) Date

Institute for Senior Living of
Florida $ 4,095,000 11.2 %

East
Florida
Senior
Care
Portfolio 355,000 05/31/14

* Annualized rental income is based on contractual base rent from leases in effect as of December 31, 2007. The loss
of the tenant or their inability to pay rent could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of
operations.

For the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006, we did not own any properties.

21.  Per Share Data

We report earnings (loss) per share pursuant to SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings (loss) per share
attributable for all periods presented are computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of
shares of our common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share are computed based on
the weighted average number of shares of our common stock and all potentially dilutive securities, if any. Shares of
restricted common stock give rise to potentially dilutive shares of common stock.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through
December 31, 2006, we recorded a net loss of $28,448,000, $7,666,000 and $242,000, respectively. As of
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, 68,500 shares, 26,000 shares and 16,000 shares, respectively, of restricted
common stock were outstanding, but were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because such
shares of restricted common stock were anti-dilutive during these periods.
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22.  Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Set forth below is the unaudited selected quarterly financial data. We believe that all necessary adjustments, consisting
only of normal recurring adjustments, have been included in the amounts stated below to present fairly, and in
accordance with GAAP, the unaudited selected quarterly financial data when read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements.
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Quarters Ended
December 31,

2008
September 30,

2008 June 30, 2008 March 31, 2008

Revenues $     27,108,000 $      23,920,000 $   16,273,000 $   13,117,000
Expenses (24,814,000) (22,671,000) (15,078,000) (12,569,000)

Income before other income
(expense) 2,294,000 1,249,000 1,195,000 548,000
Other expense, net (18,890,000) (6,887,000) (681,000) (7,237,000)

(Loss) income before minority
interests (16,596,000) (5,638,000) 514,000 (6,689,000)

Minority interests 117,000 (47,000) (188,000) 79,000

Net (loss) income $ (16,479,000) $ (5,685,000) $ 326,000 $ (6,610,000)

Net income (loss) per share � basic $ (0.25) $ (0.12) $ 0.01 $ (0.27)

Net income (loss) per share �
diluted $ (0.25) $ (0.12) $ 0.01 $ (0.27)

Weighted average number of
shares outstanding �
Basic 65,904,688 47,735,536 33,164,866 24,266,342

Diluted 65,904,688 47,735,536 33,165,015 24,266,342

Quarters Ended
December 31,

2007
September 30,

2007 June 30, 2007
March 31,

2007

Revenues $      8,914,000 $       4,787,000 $ 3,183,000 $     742,000
Expenses (8,850,000) (5,545,000) (3,726,000) (1,003,000)

Income (loss) before other income
(expense) 64,000 (758,000) (543,000) (261,000)
Other expense, net (4,070,000) (1,175,000) (660,000) (271,000)

Loss before minority interests (4,006,000) (1,933,000) (1,203,000) (532,000)
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Minority interests 8,000 � � �

Net loss $ (3,998,000) $ (1,933,000) $ (1,203,000) $ (532,000)

Loss per share � basic and diluted $ (0.21) $ (0.15) $ (0.18) $ (0.73)

Weighted average number of shares
outstanding � basic and diluted 18,893,438 13,223,746 6,727,995 730,986

23.  Subsequent Events

Status of our Offering

From January 1, 2009 through March 13, 2009, we had received and accepted subscriptions in our offering for
15,206,071 shares of our common stock, for an aggregate amount of $151,903,000, excluding shares of our common
stock issued under the DRIP. As of March 13, 2009, we had received and accepted subscriptions in our offering for
89,030,880 shares of our common stock, for an aggregate amount of $889,301,000, excluding shares of our common
stock issued under the DRIP.
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Share Repurchases

In January 2009, we repurchased 133,842 shares of our common stock, for an aggregate amount of $1,310,000, under
our share repurchase plan.

Property Acquisitions

In March 2009, we acquired a medical condo and a four-building medical office property comprising 188,000 square
feet of gross leasable area in two states, for an aggregate purchase price of $34,104,000.

Termination of Services Agreement

On March 17, 2009, Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors provided notice of its termination of the Services Agreement,
pursuant to which it provides subscription processing and investor relations services to us. The termination will be
effective September 20, 2009.
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December 31, 2008

Cost Gross Amount at Which
Initial Cost to Company Capitalized Carried at Close of Period

Buildings, Subsequent Buildings,
Improvements

and to
Improvements

and Accumulated Date of Date
Encumbrances Land Fixtures Acquisition(a) Land Fixtures Total(b) Depreciation(d)(e) construction acquired

Southpointe
Office Parke
and Epler
Parke I
(Medical
Office) Indianapolis, IN $      9,146,000 $ 2,889,000 $        10,015,000 $      130,000 $ 2,889,000 $        10,145,000 $ 13,034,000 $          (754,000)

1991 &
1996/2002 01/22/07

Crawfordsville
Medical Office
Park and
Athens Surgery
Center
(Medical
Office) Crawfordsville, IN 4,264,000 699,000 5,473,000 � 699,000 5,473,000 6,172,000 (364,000) 1998/2000 01/22/07

The Gallery
Professional
Building
(Medical
Office) St. Paul, MN 6,000,000 1,157,000 5,009,000 1,008,000 1,157,000 6,017,000 7,174,000 (450,000) 1979 03/09/07

Lenox Office
Park, Building
G (Office) Memphis, TN 12,000,000 1,670,000 13,626,000 23,000 1,670,000 13,649,000 15,319,000 (1,275,000) 2000 03/23/07

Commons V
Medical Office
Building
(Medical
Office) Naples, FL 9,939,000 4,173,000 9,070,000 � 4,173,000 9,070,000 13,243,000 (471,000) 1991 04/24/07

Yorktown
Medical Center
and Shakerag

Peachtree City and
Fayetteville, GA

13,530,000 3,545,000 15,792,000 49,000 3,545,000 15,841,000 19,386,000 (1,192,000) 1987/1994 05/02/07
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Medical Center
(Medical
Office)

Thunderbird
Medical Plaza
(Medical
Office) Glendale, AZ 14,000,000 3,842,000 19,680,000 275,000 3,842,000 19,955,000 23,797,000 (1,205,000)

1975, 1983,
1987 05/15/07

Triumph
Hospital
Northwest and
Triumph
Hospital
Southwest
(Healthcare
Related
Facility)

Houston and
Sugarland, TX � 3,047,000 28,550,000 (1,000) 3,047,000 28,549,000 31,596,000 (1,829,000) 1986/1989 06/08/07

Gwinnett
Professional
Center
(Medical
Office) Lawrenceville, GA 5,604,000 1,290,000 7,246,000 198,000 1,290,000 7,444,000 8,734,000 (426,000) 1985 07/27/07

1 and 4 Market
Exchange
(Medical
Office) Columbus, OH 14,500,000 2,326,000 17,208,000 276,000 2,326,000 17,484,000 19,810,000 (883,000) 2001/2003 08/15/07

Kokomo
Medical Office
Park (Medical
Office) Kokomo, IN 8,300,000 1,779,000 9,613,000 225,000 1,779,000 9,838,000 11,617,000 (589,000)

1992, 1994,
1995, 2003 08/30/07

St. Mary
Physicians
Center
(Medical
Office) Long Beach, CA 8,280,000 1,815,000 10,242,000 (4,000) 1,815,000 10,238,000 12,053,000 (386,000) 1992 09/05/07

2750 Monroe
Boulevard
(Office) Valley Forge, PA � 2,323,000 22,634,000 (3,000) 2,323,000 22,631,000 24,954,000 (1,052,000) 1985 09/10/07

East Florida
Senior Care
Portfolio
(Healthcare
Related
Facility)

Jacksonville,
Winter Park and
Sunrise, FL 29,917,000 10,078,000 34,870,000 (1,000) 10,078,000 34,869,000 44,947,000 (1,887,000)

1985, 1988,
1989 09/28/07
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Northmeadow
Medical Center
(Medical
Office) Roswell, GA 7,865,000 1,245,000 9,109,000 171,000 1,245,000 9,280,000 10,525,000 (441,000) 1999 11/15/07

Tucson
Medical Office
Portfolio
(Medical
Office) Tucson, AZ � 1,309,000 17,574,000 181,000 1,309,000 17,755,000 19,064,000 (738,000)

1979, 1980,
1994 1970,
1985, 1990, 11/20/07

Lima Medical
Office
Portfolio
(Medical
Office) Lima, OH � 701,000 18,336,000 37,000 701,000 18,373,000 19,074,000 (930,000)

1996, 2004,
1920 12/07/07

Highlands
Ranch Park
Plaza (Medical
Office)

Highlands Ranch,
CO 8,853,000 2,240,000 10,426,000 255,000 2,240,000 10,681,000 12,921,000 (490,000) 19,831,985 12/19/07

Park Place
Office Park
(Medical
Office) Dayton, OH 10,943,000 1,987,000 11,341,000 138,000 1,987,000 11,479,000 13,466,000 (603,000)

1987, 1988,
2002 12/20/07

Chesterfield
Rehabilitation
Center
(Medical
Office) Chesterfield, MO 22,000,000 4,212,000 27,901,000 � 4,212,000 27,901,000 32,113,000 (807,000) 2007 12/20/07

Medical
Portfolio 1
(Medical
Office)

Overland, KS and
Largo, Brandon,
and Lakeland, FL 21,340,000 4,206,000 28,373,000 810,000 4,206,000 29,183,000 33,389,000 (1,035,000)

1978, 1986,
1997, 1995 02/01/08
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Cost Gross Amount at Which
Initial Cost to Company Capitalized Carried at Close of Period

Buildings, Subsequent Buildings,
Improvements

and to
Improvements

and Accumulated Date of Date
Encumbrances Land Fixtures Acquisition(a) Land Fixtures Total(b) Depreciation(d)(e) construction acquired

Fort Road
Medical
Building
(Medical
Office) St. Paul, MN $       5,800,000 $   1,571,000 $           5,786,000 $           21,000 $     1,571,000 $            5,807,000 $ 7,378,000 $           (184,000) 1981 03/06/08

Liberty Falls
Medical
Plaza
(Medical
Office)

Liberty
Township, OH � 842,000 5,639,000 1,000 842,000 5,640,000 6,482,000 (155,000) 2008 03/19/08

Epler Parke
Building B
(Medical
Office) Indianapolis, IN 3,861,000 857,000 4,497,000 (17,000) 857,000 4,480,000 5,337,000 (183,000) 2004 03/24/08

Cypress
Station
Medical
Office
Building
(Medical
Office) Houston, TX 7,235,000 1,345,000 8,312,000 11,000 1,345,000 8,323,000 9,668,000 (254,000) 1981/2004-2006 03/25/08

Vista
Professional
Center
(Medical
Office) Lakeland, FL � 1,082,000 3,588,000 (29,000) 1,082,000 3,559,000 4,641,000 (150,000) 1996/1998 03/27/08

Senior Care
Portfolio 1
(Healthcare

Arlington,
Galveston, Port
Arthur and Texas

24,800,000 4,871,000 30,002,000 � 4,871,000 30,002,000 34,873,000 (679,000) 1993, 1994, 1994,
1994/1996 1964/1969

1959/1963

Various

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 271



Related
Facility)

City, TX and
Lomita and El
Monte, CA

Amarillo
Hospital
(Healthcare
Related
Facility) Amarillo, TX � 1,110,000 17,688,000 � 1,110,000 17,688,000 18,798,000 (331,000) 2007 05/15/08

5995 Plaza
Drive
(Office) Cypress, CA 16,830,000 5,109,000 17,961,000 58,000 5,109,000 18,019,000 23,128,000 (398,000) 1986 05/29/08

Nutfield
Professional
Center
(Medical
Office) Derry, NH 8,808,000 1,075,000 10,320,000 38,000 1,075,000 10,358,000 11,433,000 (172,000) 1963/1990 & 1996 06/03/08

SouthCrest
Medical
Plaza
(Medical
Office) Stockbridge, GA 12,870,000 4,259,000 14,636,000 (103,000) 4,259,000 14,533,000 18,792,000 (307,000) 2005-2006 06/24/08

Medical
Portfolio 3
(Medical
Office) Indianapolis, IN 58,000,000 9,355,000 70,259,000 1,335,000 9,355,000 71,594,000 80,949,000 (1,744,000)

1995, 1993, 1994,
1996, 1993, 1995,
1989, 1988, 1989,

1992, 1989 06/26/08

Academy
Medical
Center
(Medical
Office) Tuczon, AZ 5,016,000 1,193,000 6,106,000 154,000 1,193,000 6,260,000 7,453,000 (163,000) 1975-1985 06/26/08

Decatur
Medical
Plaza
(Medical
Office) Decatur, GA 7,900,000 3,166,000 6,862,000 325,000 3,166,000 7,187,000 10,353,000 (118,000) 1976 06/27/08

Medical
Portfolio 2
(Medical
Office)

O�Fallon and
St. Louis, MO
and Keller and
Wichita Falls, TX 30,216,000 5,360,000 33,506,000 43,000 5,360,000 33,549,000 38,909,000 (674,000)

2001, 2001, 2006,
1957/1989/2003 &

2003 Various

Renaissance
Medical
Centre

Bountiful, UT 20,323,000 3,701,000 24,442,000 � 3,701,000 24,442,000 28,143,000 (345,000) 2004 06/30/08
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(Medical
Office)

Oklahoma
City Medical
Portfolio
(Medical
Office)

Oklahoma City,
OK � � 25,976,000 456,000 � 26,432,000 26,432,000 (208,000) 1991, 1996/2007 09/16/08

Medical
Portfolio 4
(Medical
Office)

Phoenix, AZ,
Parma and
Jefferson West,
OH, and
Waxahachie,
Greenville, and
Cedar Hill, TX 29,898,000 2,632,000 38,652,000 343,000 2,632,000 38,995,000 41,627,000 (415,000)

1972/1980 & 2006,
1977, 1984, 2006,

2007, 2007 Various

Mountain
Empire
Portfolio
(Medical
Office)

Kingsport and
Bristol, TN and
Pennington Gap
and Norton, VA 17,304,000 804,000 18,400,000 � 804,000 18,403,000 19,207,000 �

1986/1991/1993/1982/
1990,1997/1976 &

2007, 1986, 1993 &
1995, 1981 &

1987/1999 09/12/08

Mountain
Plains � TX
(Medical
Office)

San Antonio and
Webster, TX � 1,248,000 34,858,000 � 1,248,000 34,858,000 36,106,000 (363,000)

1998, 2005, 2006,
2006 12/18/08

Marietta
Health Park
(Medical
Office) Marietta, GA 7,200,000 1,276,000 12,197,000 � 1,276,000 12,197,000 13,473,000 � 2000 12/22/08

$ 462,542,000 $ 107,389,000 $ 721,775,000 $ 6,403,000 $ 107,389,000 $ 728,181,000 $ 835,570,000(c) $ (24,650,000)
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Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc.

SCHEDULE III � REAL ESTATE OPERATING PROPERTIES AND
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION � (Continued)

(a) The cost capitalized subsequent to acquisition is net of dispositions.

(b) The changes in total real estate for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period from April 28,
2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Amount

Balance as of April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) $ �
Acquisitions �
Additions �
Dispositions �

Balance as of December 31, 2006 �
Acquisitions 356,565,000
Additions 1,046,000
Dispositions (33,000)

Balance as of December 31, 2007 357,578,000
Acquisitions 473,132,000
Additions 6,590,000
Dispositions (1,730,000)

Balance as of December 31, 2008 $ 835,570,000

(c) The aggregate cost of our real estate for federal income tax purposes was $994,509,000.

(d) The changes in accumulated depreciation for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the period
from April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) through December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Amount

Balance as of April 28, 2006 (Date of Inception) $ �
Additions �
Dispositions �

Balance as of December 31, 2006 �
Additions 4,590,000
Dispositions (2,000)

Balance as of December 31, 2007 4,588,000
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Additions 20,523,000
Dispositions (461,000)

Balance as of December 31, 2008 $ 24,650,000

(e) The cost of building and improvements is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
39 years and the shorter of the lease term or useful life, ranging from one month to 241 months, respectively.
Furniture, fixtures and equipment is depreciated over five years.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc.

(Registrant)

By /s/  Scott D. Peters

Scott D. Peters

Chief Executive Officer and President
(principal executive officer)

Date March 27, 2009

By /s/  Kellie S. Pruitt

Kellie S. Pruitt

Chief Accounting Officer
(principal financial officer and principal
accounting officer)

Date March 27, 2009

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

By /s/  Scott D. Peters

Scott D. Peters

Chief Executive Officer and President
(principal executive officer)

Date March 27, 2009

By /s/  Kellie S. Pruitt

Kellie S. Pruitt

Chief Accounting Officer
(principal financial officer and principal
accounting officer)

Date March 27, 2009

By /s/  Maurice J. DeWald

Maurice J. DeWald

Director

Date March 27, 2009

By /s/  W. Bradley Blair, II

W. Bradley Blair, II

Director
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Date March 27, 2009

By /s/  Warren D. Fix

Warren D. Fix

Director

Date March 27, 2009

By /s/  Larry L. Mathis

Larry L. Mathis

Director

Date March 27, 2009

By /s/  Gary T. Wescombe

Gary T. Wescombe

Director

Date March 27, 2009
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Following the consummation of the merger of NNN Realty Advisors, Inc., which previously served as our sponsor,
with and into a wholly owned subsidiary of Grubb & Ellis Company on December 7, 2007, NNN Healthcare/Office
REIT, Inc., NNN Healthcare/Office REIT Holdings, L.P., NNN Healthcare/Office REIT Advisor, LLC, NNN
Healthcare/Office Management, LLC, Triple Net Properties, LLC and NNN Capital Corp. changed their names to
Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc., Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Holdings, L.P., Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT
Advisor, LLC, Grubb & Ellis Healthcare Management, LLC, Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, LLC, and Grubb & Ellis
Securities, Inc. respectively. The following Exhibit List refers to the entity names used prior to the name changes in
order to accurately reflect the names of the parties on the documents listed.

Pursuant to Item 601(a)(2) of Regulation S-K, this Exhibit Index immediately precedes the exhibits.

The following exhibits are included, or incorporated by reference, in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2008 (and are numbered in accordance with Item 601 of Regulation S-K

3.1 Third Articles of Amendment and Restatement of NNN Healthcare/Office REIT, Inc. (included as
Exhibit 3.1 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 and incorporated
herein by reference)

3.2 Articles of Amendment, effective December 10, 2007 (included as Exhibit 3.1 to our Current Report on
Form 8-K filed December 10, 2007)

3.3 Bylaws of NNN Healthcare/Office REIT, Inc. (included as Exhibit 3.2 to the registrant�s Registration
Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-133652) filed on April 28, 2006 and incorporated herein by
reference)

4.1 Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. Share Repurchase Plan, effective August 25, 2008 (included as
Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on for 8-K filed August 25, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

4.2 Form of Subscription Agreement (included as Exhibit B to the prospectus)
4.3 Distribution Reinvestment Plan (included as Exhibit C to the prospectus)
4.4 Escrow Agreement (included as Exhibit 4.4 to our Quarterly Report on the Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

September 30, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference)
10.1 Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement among Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc., Grubb & Ellis

Healthcare REIT Holdings, LP, Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Advisory, LLC and Grubb & Ellis Realty
Investors, LLC (included as Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 19, 2008
and incorporated herein by reference)

10.2 Agreement of Limited Partnership of NNN Healthcare/Office REIT Holdings, L.P. (included as
Exhibit 10.2 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006 and
incorporated herein by reference)

10.2.1 Amendment No. 1 to Agreement of Limited Partnership of Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT Holdings, LP
(included as Exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 19, 2008 and incorporated
herein by reference)

10.3� NNN Healthcare/Office REIT, Inc. 2006 Incentive Plan (including the 2006 Independent Directors
Compensation Plan) (included as Exhibit 10.3 to the registrant�s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (File
No. 333-133652) filed on April 28, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.4� Amendment to the NNN Healthcare/Office REIT, Inc. 2006 Incentive Plan (including the 2006
Independent Directors Compensation Plan) (included as Exhibit 10.4 to the registrant�s Registration
Statement on Form S-11, Amendment No. 6 (File No. 333-133652) filed on September 12, 2006 and
incorporated herein by reference)

10.5
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Form of Indemnification agreement executed by W. Bradley Blair, II, Maurice J. DeWald, Warren D. Fix,
Gary T. Wescombe, Scott D. Peters, Danny Prosky, Andrea R. Biller and Larry L. Mathis (included as
Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 5, 2007 and incorporated herein by
reference)
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10.6 Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Property and Escrow Instructions by and between Fort Road
Associated Limited Partnership and Triple Net Properties, LLC, dated January 14, 2008 (included as
Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 12, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference)

10.7 First Amendment to Agreement of Sale by and among TST Overland Park, L.P., TST El Paso Properties,
Ltd., TST Jacksonville II, LLC, TST Tampa Bay, Ltd., TST Largo ASC, Ltd., TST Brandon, Ltd., and TST
Lakeland, Ltd. and Triple Net Properties, LLC, dated January 18, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.2 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 7, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.8 ISDA Master Agreement by and between National City Bank and G&E Healthcare REIT Chesterfield
Rehab Hospital, LLC, dated January 20, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K
filed February 1, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.9 First Amendment to Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Property and Escrow Instructions by and
between Fort Road Associates Limited Partnership and Triple Net Properties, LLC, dated January 31, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 12, 2008 and incorporated herein
by reference)

10.10 Second Amendment to Agreement of Sale by and among TST Overland Park, L.P., TST El Paso Properties,
Ltd., TST Jacksonville II, LLC, TST Tampa Bay, Ltd., TST Largo ASC, Ltd., TST Brandon, Ltd., TST
Lakeland, Ltd., Triple Net Properties, LLC and LandAmerica Financial Group, Inc., dated February 1, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.3 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 7, 2008 and incorporated
herein by reference)

10.11 Assignment and Assumption of Agreement of Sale by and between Triple Net Properties, LLC and G&E
Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 1, LLC, dated February 1, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.4 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 7, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.12 Loan Agreement by and between G&E Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 1, LLC and Wachovia Bank,
National Association, dated February 1, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.5 to our Current Report on Form 8-K
filed February 7, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.13 Promissory Note by G&E Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 1, LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank, National
Association, dated February 1, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.6 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed
February 7, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.14 Mortgage, Assignment, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing (West Bay) by G&E Healthcare REIT
Medical Portfolio 1, LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank, National Association, dated February 1, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.7 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 7, 2008 and incorporated
herein by reference)

10.15 Mortgage, Assignment, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing (Largo) by G&E Healthcare REIT Medical
Portfolio 1, LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank, National Association, dated February 1, 2008 (included as
Exhibit 10.8 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 7, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference)

10.16 Mortgage, Assignment, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing (Central Florida) by G&E Healthcare REIT
Medical Portfolio 1, LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank, National Association, dated February 1, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.9 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 7, 2008 and incorporated
herein by reference)

10.17 Mortgage, Assignment, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing (Brandon) by G&E Healthcare REIT
Medical Portfolio 1, LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank, National Association, dated February 1, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.10 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 7, 2008 and incorporated
herein by reference)

10.18 Mortgage, Assignment, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing (Overland Park) by G&E Healthcare REIT
Medical Portfolio 1, LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank, National Association, dated February 1, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.11 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 7, 2008 and incorporated
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10.19 Repayment Guaranty by Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. in favor of Wachovia Bank, National
Association, dated February 1, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.12 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed
February 7, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.20 Environmental Indemnity Agreement by G&E Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 1, LLC and Grubb &
Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. for the benefit of Wachovia Bank, National Association, dated February 1,
2008 (included as Exhibit 10.13 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 7, 2008 and
incorporated herein by reference)

10.21 ISDA Interest Rate Swap Agreement by and between Triple Net Properties, LLC and Wachovia Bank,
National Association, dated February 1, 2008, as amended on February 6, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.14
to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 7, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.22 First Amendment to Promissory Note by and between NNN Gallery Medical, LLC, NNN Realty Advisors,
Inc. and LaSalle Bank National Association, released from escrow on February 20, 2008 and effective as of
February 12, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 26, 2008
and incorporated herein by reference)

10.23 Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Property and Escrow Instructions by and between NHP Cypress
Station Partnership, LP and Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, LLC, dated February 22, 2008 (included as
Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 31, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference)

10.24 Second Amendment to Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Property and Escrow Instructions by and
between Fort Road Associates Limited Partnership and Triple Net Properties, LLC, dated March 5, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.3 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 12, 2008 and incorporated herein
by reference)

10.25 Assignment and Assumption of Purchase Agreement by and between Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, LLC
and G&E Healthcare REIT Fort Road Medical, LLC, dated March 6, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.4 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 12, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.26 Promissory Note by G&E Healthcare REIT Fort Road Medical, LLC in favor of LaSalle Bank National
Association, dated March 6, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.5 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed
March 12, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.27 Mortgage, Security Agreement, Assignment of Leases and Rents and Fixture Filing by G&E Healthcare
REIT Fort Road Medical, LLC for the benefit of LaSalle Bank National Association, dated March 6, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.6 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 12, 2008 and incorporated herein
by reference)

10.28 Guaranty of Payment by Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. in favor of LaSalle Bank National
Association, dated March 6, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.7 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed
March 12, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.29 Environmental Indemnity Agreement by G&E Healthcare REIT Fort Road Medical, LLC and Grubb &
Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. for the benefit of LaSalle Bank National Association, dated March 6, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.8 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 12, 2008 and incorporated herein
by reference)

10.30 Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Property and Escrow Instructions by and between Epler Parke,
LLC and Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, LLC, dated March 6, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.1 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 28, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.31 ISDA Interest Rate Swap Confirmation Letter Agreement by and between G&E Healthcare REIT
Fort Road Medical, LLC and LaSalle Bank National Association, dated March 10, 2008 (included as
Exhibit 10.9 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 12, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference)

10.32 Second Amendment to Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Property and Escrow Instructions by and
between Liberty Falls, LLC, Triple Net Properties, LLC, and Dave Chrestensen and Todd Crawford, dated
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10.33 Assignment and Assumption of Purchase Agreement by and between Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, LLC
and G&E Healthcare REIT Liberty Falls Medical Plaza, LLC, dated March 19, 2008 (included as
Exhibit 10.4 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 25, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference)

10.34 Assignment and Assumption of Purchase Agreement by and between Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, LLC
and G&E Healthcare REIT Epler Parke Building B, LLC, dated March 24, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.2
to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 28, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.35 Assignment and Assumption of Purchase Agreement by and between Grubb & Ellis Realty Investors, LLC
and G&E Healthcare REIT Cypress Station, LLC, dated March 25, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.2 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 31, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.36 Promissory Note by G&E Healthcare REIT Cypress Station, LLC in favor of National City Bank, dated
March 25, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.3 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 31, 2008 and
incorporated herein by reference)

10.37 Deed of Trust, Security Agreement, Assignment of Leases and Rents and Financing Statement by G&E
Healthcare REIT Cypress Station, LLC for the benefit of National City Bank, dated March 25, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.4 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 31, 2008 and incorporated herein
by reference)

10.38 Limited Guaranty of Payment by Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. for the benefit of National City
Bank, dated March 25, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.5 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 31,
2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.39 Environmental Indemnity Agreement by G&E Healthcare REIT Cypress Station, LLC and Grubb & Ellis
Healthcare REIT, Inc. for the benefit of National City Bank, dated March 25, 2008 (included as
Exhibit 10.6 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 31, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference)

10.40 Purchase and Sale Agreement and Escrow Instructions by and between HCP, Inc. and HCPI/Indiana, LLC
and G&E Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 3, LLC, dated May 30, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.1 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 4, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.41 Commercial Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases and Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing by
G&E Healthcare REIT Amarillo Hospital, LLC to and for the benefit of Jeffrey C. Baker, Esq., Trustee and
LaSalle Bank National Association, dated June 23, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on
Form 8-K filed June 25, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.42 Joinder Agreement by G&E Healthcare REIT Amarillo Hospital, LLC in favor of LaSalle Bank National
Association, dated June 23, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed
June 25, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.43 Environmental Indemnity Agreement by Grubb and Ellis Healthcare REIT Holdings, L.P., G&E Healthcare
REIT Amarillo Hospital, LLC and Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. to and for the benefit of LaSalle
Bank National Association, dated June 23, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.3 to our Current Report on
Form 8-K filed June 25, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.44 Loan Agreement by and among G&E Healthcare REIT 5995 Plaza Drive, LLC, G&E Healthcare REIT
Academy, LLC, G&E Healthcare REIT Epler Parke Building B, LLC, G&E Healthcare REIT Nutfield
Professional Center, LLC and G&E Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 2, LLC and Wachovia Financial
Services, Inc., dated June 24, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed
June 27, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.45 Promissory Note by G&E Healthcare REIT 5995 Plaza Drive, LLC, G&E Healthcare REIT Academy,
LLC, G&E Healthcare REIT Epler Parke Building B, LLC, G&E Healthcare REIT Nutfield Professional
Center, LLC and G&E Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 2, LLC in favor of Wachovia Financial
Services, Inc., dated June 24, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed
June 27, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 284



146

Edgar Filing: Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 285



Table of Contents

10.46 Deed of Trust, Assignment, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing by G&E Healthcare REIT 5995 Plaza
Drive, LLC in favor of Wachovia Financial Services, Inc., dated June 24, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.3 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.47 Deed of Trust, Assignment, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing by G&E Healthcare REIT Academy,
LLC in favor of Wachovia Financial Services, Inc., dated June 24, 2008 and delivered June 26, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.4 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2008 and incorporated herein
by reference)

10.48 Deed of Trust, Assignment, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing by G&E Healthcare REIT Medical
Portfolio 2, LLC in favor of Wachovia Financial Services, Inc., dated June 24, 2008 (included as
Exhibit 10.5 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.49 Mortgage, Assignment, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing by G&E Healthcare REIT Epler Parke
Building B, LLC in favor of Wachovia Financial Services, Inc., dated June 24, 2008 (included as
Exhibit 10.6 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.50 Mortgage, Assignment, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing (Overland Park) by G&E Healthcare REIT
Nutfield Professional Center, LLC in favor of Wachovia Financial Services, Inc., dated June 24, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.7 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2008 and incorporated herein
by reference)

10.51 Repayment Guaranty by Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. in favor of Wachovia Financial Services,
Inc., dated June 24, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.8 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2008
and incorporated herein by reference)

10.52 Environmental Indemnity Agreement by G&E Healthcare REIT 5995 Plaza drive, LLC and Grubb & Ellis
Healthcare REIT, Inc. for the benefit of Wachovia Financial Services, Inc., dated June 24, 2008 (included
as Exhibit 10.9 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference)

10.53 Environmental Indemnity Agreement by G&E Healthcare REIT Academy, LLC and Grubb & Ellis
Healthcare REIT, Inc. for the benefit of Wachovia Financial Services, Inc., dated June 24, 2008 (included
as Exhibit 10.10 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference)

10.54 Environmental Indemnity Agreement by G&E Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 2, LLC and Grubb &
Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. for the benefit of Wachovia Financial Services, Inc., dated June 24, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.11 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2008 and incorporated herein
by reference)

10.55 Environmental Indemnity Agreement by G&E Healthcare REIT Epler Parke Building B, LLC and Grubb &
Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. for the benefit of Wachovia Financial Services, Inc., dated June 24, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.12 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2008 and incorporated herein
by reference)

10.56 Environmental Indemnity Agreement by G&E Healthcare REIT Nutfield Professional Center, LLC and
Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. for the benefit of Wachovia Financial Services, Inc., dated June 24,
2008 (included as Exhibit 10.13 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2008 and incorporated
herein by reference)

10.57 Loan Agreement by and between G&E Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 3, LLC, The Financial
Institutions Party Hereto, as Banks, and Fifth Third Bank, as Agent, dated June 26, 2008 (included as
Exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 1, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.58 Syndicated Promissory Note (1) by G&E Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 3, LLC for the benefit of Fifth
Third Bank, dated June 26, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.3 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 1,
2008 and incorporated herein by reference)
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10.59 Syndicated Promissory Note (2) by G&E Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 3, LLC for the benefit of Fifth
Third Bank, dated June 26, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.4 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 1,
2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.60 Guaranty of Payment by Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. for the benefit of Fifth Third Bank, dated
June 26, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.5 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 1, 2008 and
incorporated herein by reference)

10.61 Mortgage, Security Agreement, Fixture Filing and Assignment of Leases and Rents (Boone County) by and
between G&E Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 3, LLC and Fifth Third Bank, dated June 26, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.6 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 1, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference)

10.62 Mortgage, Security Agreement, Fixture Filing and Assignment of Leases and Rents (Hamilton County) by
and between G&E Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 3, LLC and Fifth Third Bank, dated June 26, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.7 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 1, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference)

10.63 Mortgage, Security Agreement, Fixture Filing and Assignment of Leases and Rents (Hendricks County) by
and between G&E Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 3, LLC and Fifth Third Bank, dated June 26, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.8 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 1, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference)

10.64 Mortgage, Security Agreement, Fixture Filing and Assignment of Leases and Rents (Marion County) by
and between G&E Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 3, LLC and Fifth Third Bank, dated June 26, 2008
(included as Exhibit 10.9 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 1, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference)

10.65 Environmental Indemnity Agreement by G&E Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 3, LLC and Grubb &
Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. to and for the benefit of Fifth Third Bank, dated June 26, 2008 (included as
Exhibit 10.10 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 1, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.66 Modification of Loan Agreement by and among G&E Healthcare REIT Medical Portfolio 3, LLC, Grubb&
Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. and Fifth Third Bank, dated June 27, 2008 (included as Exhibit 10.1 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 3, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.67� Employment Agreement by and between Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. and Scott D. Peters
(included as Exhibit 10.3 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 19, 2008 and incorporated
herein by reference)

10.68� Amendment to the Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc. 2006 Independent Directors Compensation Plan,
effective January 1, 2009

21.1* Subsidiaries of Grubb & Ellis Healthcare REIT, Inc.
31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2* Certification of Chief Accounting Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as created by Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2* Certification of Chief Accounting Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as created by Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* Filed herewith.

� Compensatory plan or arrangement.
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